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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the” Board”), | am pleased to
present the Annual Report of China Castson 81 Finance Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2024. The Company is
an investment company pursuant to Chapter 21 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR

As at 31 December 2024, our net asset value amounted to about
HK$31.9 million and decreased by about HK$17.4 million, as
compared to that of last year. During the year, the Group suffered
an operational loss of about HK$21.6 million (2023: HK$6.3
million).

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's portfolio value decreased by
HK$11.2 million and amounted to about HK$20.1 million. Our
portfolio comprised a mix of Hong Kong-listed equities which were
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The
current and non-current portions of the listed equities portfolio
were in the amount of about HK$11.7 million and HK$8.4 million,
respectively.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Market Review
During the year, in the US, the Dow, Nasdag and S&P500 rose

12.9%, 28.6% and 23.3% respectively. Market sentiment turned
bullish as major central banks commenced monetary easing amid
signs of moderating inflation. In the US, the Federal Reserve
lowered interest rates three times for a total of 100 basis points
during September 2024 to December 2024. Rate-sensitive
technology stocks in the US outperformed, supported by
favourable prospects for the artificial intelligence sector. Economic
data remained resilient. The market was optimistic on the
economic outlook under the new US administration, given
anticipation of pro-business policies including deregulation of the
financial sector, tax cuts and increased spending.

In Hong Kong, the Hang Seng Index (“HSI”) and the Hang Seng
TECH Index increased 17.7% and 18.7% respectively. The HSI had
accumulated gain after the Mainland authorities announced a
series of new policy stimuli in late September 2024 and hit a
two-year high in October 2024. Hong Kong's market performance
was benefited by the market sentiment improved following
optimism over policy support introduced by the Mainland
authorities, which spurred international investors’ confidence in
Mainland-related stocks.

Nevertheless, a weaker Renminbi added to worries about earnings
of Mainland stocks in HKD terms. In addition, uncertainties about
trade relations between the Mainland and the West as well as
geopolitical conflicts in the Middle East, Ukraine and the Korean
Peninsula weighed on the market.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETREHRE

Revenue
The higher market turnover in the Hong Kong stock market in

2024 was partly due to price effect following the market rebound
and improvement in investor sentiment. Under the circumstances,
the Group try to explore more focus on the index constituents of
major Hang Seng indices for seeking better return during the year.
However, due to the inactive trading volume of non-constituent
stocks market, the overall trading volume of the Group during the
year was affected. Consequently, the gross proceeds from the
disposal of investments for the year ended 31 December 2024
decreased to about HK$23.4 million (2023: about HK$71.5
million).

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the revenue of the Group
of about HK$0.3 million (2023: HK$0.2 million) primarily comprised
dividend income from our equity investments.

Loss from operations
For the year ended 31 December 2024, the loss from operations

increased from HK$6.3 million to about HK$21.6 million. The fair
value loss was about HK$10.4 million which was due to the
performance of the non-constituent stocks market.

Net (losses)/gains on financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss
For the year ended 31 December 2024, we recorded net fair value

losses from our listed equity investment portfolio of approximately
HK$10.4 million while there were net fair value gains of about
HK$13.0 million in prior year. During the year, we had tried to
explore more in index constituents of major Hang Seng indices and
the current losses were mainly due to the net fair value losses of
certain non-constituent stock.
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Other income
For the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, other income

mainly represented the bank interest income.

Other gains and losses
For the year ended 31 December 2024, other gains and losses

mainly represented the gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment and write back of accruals.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, other gains and losses
mainly represented losses on disposal of property, plant and
equipment.

Administrative expenses and other operating expenses
Administrative expenses for the year decreased from about

HK$18.4 million in prior year to about HK$10.6 million. The
employment benefit expenses decreased during the year due to
the retirement of several staffs in the last quarter of 2023.
Professional fees decreased to about HK$0.08 million (2023:
HK$2.0 million), and the expenses in prior year were mainly related
to the change of Company’s name and the possible cash offer
received by the Company in early January 2023. Other operating
expenses remain stable to the level of about HK$1.2 million (2023:
HK$1.1 million).

Interest in an associate
The interest in an associate represented our interests in the 30%

shareholdings of Superb Kingdom Limited and its subsidiaries and
it had no carrying value at the reporting date.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREME

PROSPECTS

The conflict between China and US has been ongoing and US
recently imposed investment curbs that will restrict US companies,
private equity and venture capital funds from investing in China’s
microchips, artificial intelligence, quantum computing,
biotechnology and clean energy projects. At the Central Economic
Work Conference of Mainland China, China intends to promote
industrial innovation through scientific and technological
innovation, especially using disruptive and cutting-edge
technologies to give birth to new industries, new models, new
momentum, and to enhance productivity. We will consider
investment prospects in these sectors if suitable.

In addition, the recent US’s tariffs on Chinese goods had a broad
impact on the US economy, consumers, and international relations,
leading to increased costs, supply chain disruptions, and ongoing
trade tensions. Going forward, external macro factors remain the
major risks.

Market sentiment turned bullish as major central banks
commenced monetary easing amid signs of moderating inflation.
Both central banks signalled further interest rate cuts in 2025.
Although some market participants are of the view that the new
US administration’s policies may affect the future paths of inflation
and interest rate cuts, the market was optimistic on the economic
outlook under the new US administration.

However, uncertainties about trade relations between the US and
its trading partners heightened. Investor sentiment was also
affected by ongoing geopolitical conflicts in the Middle East,
Ukraine and the Korean Peninsula. Valuation concerns persisted as
major US and European market indices hit successive record highs.

The Company will continue its investing activities in a prudent but
proactive manner. We will emphasise on diversification of
investment in the second half of the year which is crucial for our
risk management. We will also consider various ways to enhance
our financial strength with an aim to improve our overall
performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS V/

EREWED T

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2024, the bank and cash balances decreased to
approximately HK$4.3 million (2023: HK$12.2 million) and the net
current assets decreased to approximately HK$15.8 million (2023:
HK$31.6 million). The decrease in bank and cash balances was
mainly due to financing the operational losses. As at 31 December
2024, the Group had no material capital commitment (2023: Nil).

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2024, the Group maintained a low level of
gearing ratio of 0.2% as defined by total borrowings divided by
total equity (31 December 2023: 1.2%).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
As at 31 December 2024, property, plant and equipment amounted

to approximately HK$7.8 million (2023: HK$8.3 million).

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE PLACING

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement on 13
December 2024 (the “Announcement”) in relation to placing of
28,284,000 new ordinary shares of the Company (the “Placing”)
which raised net proceeds of approximately HK $4.12 million (the
“Net Proceeds”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERBNWE DN

BE-_ZT-_NF+_A=+—HIL KEFEE
PEDFIBRIBF R WBA - Wt SRBZ A
rrE < BERERER - TREIIFAFHREFHE

Part of the Net Proceeds from the Placing was utilised up to 31
December 2024 and are intended to be applied in accordance with
the proposed application set out in the Announcement. The below

table sets out the details of the application of the Net Proceeds: ZERES
Unutilised
Amount Net Proceeds Timeline
Intend use of utilised up to as at for utilizing
the Net 31 December 31 December the remaining
Proceeds 2024 2024 Net Proceeds
BE-S-N#F R=B-NF
FeRERE +ZA=+-HLt +ZA=+-Hz HTHERERE
HERZ ZBEBHLE ABAMSNERHE ZBARRER
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BE#ET BEET BEET
(approximately) (approximately) (approximately)
(#%) (#%) (#%)
Potential investments BERE 2.00 (0.68) 132 By 30 June 2025
—Z-1F
NAZTBEHZA
General working capital —KEEER 2.12 - 2.12 By 30 June 2025
—T-RfF
NAZTHHZH
4.12 (0.68) 344
MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL EXRBRES
During the year, save for deregistration or strike-off of certain FR BABRBEMPEEELEMIHEIGEET
inactive subsidiaries for the purpose of corporate group =m S R B A RN 0 AN B E 1T (] P

BRARZEAKBHHE -

rationalisation, there were no significant acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries by the Group.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2024, the Company's total number of issued
shares was 169,707,187 (2023: 141,423,187 shares) at par value
of HK$0.01 each.

By way of the share placement in December 2024, the Company
issued a total of 28,284,000 ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.153
each. The par value of such shares is HK$0.01 each.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The 2022 Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on
27 June 2022. During the year, no share options were granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed. There are no shares options
outstanding as at 31 December 2024.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The net gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
held as at 31 December 2024 to the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements amounted to approximately
HK$2.2 million.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The investment portfolio primarily comprises listed equities in Hong
Kong stock market, and other funds are usually maintained in the
banks. Majority of them are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
The Board considered the Group had no significant exposure to
foreign exchange fluctuation as at the balance sheet date.

PLEDGE OF THE GROUP'S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, the office premises with a carrying
amount of about HK$7.8 million (2023: HK$8.3 million) was
pledged for an instalment loan.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had 15 employees and
directors (2023: 13). The remuneration packages for the employees
and the directors were in line with the prevailing market practice
and are determined on the basis of performance and experience.
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Disclosure required under the Listing Rules in relation to each
of the major investments held by the Group as at the balance
sheet date are mainly set out in the note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements in pages 178 to 184 of this
report.

The abovementioned major investments represented
investments in equity securities of issuers listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
performance of such listed issuers during their respective
latest financial period/year, material factors underlying their
respective results and financial position, significant events, if
any, during their respective financial periods under review,
and their respective future prospects are disclosed in their
respective announcements/reports made available on the
website of HKEx. To facilitate a review on the performance of
the significant investments held by the Group, relevant
information is extracted from such announcements/reports
and provided below for easy reference. The Company has not
independently verified the information published by such
listed issuers. All monetary and percentage figures cited
below are approximate figures only.

These significant investments are held for achieving capital
appreciation or generating interest or dividend income. To
meet our investment objective, listed securities are managed
and reviewed on a portfolio basis. Regarding listed equities,
the buy and hold strategy and short-term trading tactics are
used to enhance the investment returns. Investment in
unlisted equities is reviewed on an investment-by-investment
basis and can typically provide a high return if there is a
successful exit.
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1. CHINA ORIENTED INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(“CHINA ORIENTED") (STOCK CODE: 1871. HK)

1.1

1.2

China Oriented are a provider of driving training services
based in Zhumadian City, Henan province, the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC"). China Oriented engage in
the provision of driving training services through our
two major operating subsidiaries, namely Shun Da
Shun Da School is a
qualified level Il driving school established and

School and Tong Tai School.

commenced operation in 2012 which offers driving
training services for preparation for driving tests of
Small Vehicles. Tong Tai School is a qualified level |
driving school established and commenced operation in
2014 which offers driving training services for
preparation for driving tests of both Large Vehicles and
Small Vehicles.

In the first half of its financial year 2024, China Oriented
revenue decreased by approximately Renminbi (“RMB")
5.3 million to approximately RMB18.1 million (or
approximately 22.5% on a year-on-year basis). Its net
loss was approximately RMB2.3 million and dropped
from approximately RMB1.0 million on a year-on-year
basis.

The net asset value as at 30 June 2024 was
approximately RMB192.8 million (31 December 2023:
RMB189.6 million).

The share price of China Oriented on the Stock
Exchange at the end of December 2024 changed to
HK$0.199 (31 December 2023: HK$0.209), down about
4.8%. The highest and lowest trading prices of China
Oriented’s shares on the Stock Exchange during the
twelve months ended 31 December 2024 were
HK$0.435 and HK$0.182, respectively.
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE GROUP

REEBEFEE2ETEREZHE

2. ALLEGRO CULTURE LIMITED ("ALLEGRO CULTURE")
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS KINGKEY INTELLIGENCE
CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED) (STOCK CODE: 0550.
HK)

2.1 Allegro Culture acts as an investment holding company
and the principal activities of its major subsidiaries
include provision of advertising services, sales of medical
and health products, provision of E-commerce services
and investment holding.

2.2 lts revenue for the financial year 2022 increased by
approximately HK$19.3 million (or approximately 55.3%
on a year-on-year basis) to approximately HK$54.2
million.

Its loss for the year was approximately HK$8.7 million as
compared to a loss of approximately HK$7.0 million for
the prior year.

2.3 The net asset value as at 31 December 2022 was
approximately HK$196.1 million (31 December 2021:
HK$177.0 million).

2.4 In the first half of its financial year 2023, Allegro
Culture revenue decreased by approximately HK$8.8
million to approximately HK$20.2 million. Its net loss
was approximately HK$10.0 million and dropped
approximately HK$8.8 million on a year-on-year basis.

2.5 Due to the delay in publication of its 2023 Annual
Results and the dispatch of its 2023 Annual Report,
trading in the shares of Allego Culture on the Stock
Exchange has been suspended since 9:00 a.m. on
Tuesday, 2 April 2024.
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2.6 The share price of Allegro Culture on the Stock
Exchange at the end of December 2024 changed to
HK$0.134 (31 December 2023: HK$0.46), down 70.9%.
The highest and lowest trading prices of Allegro
Culture’s shares on the Stock Exchange during the
twelve months ended 31 December 2024 were HK$0.45
and HK$0.126, respectively.

XIAOMI CORPORATION (“XIAOMI") (STOCK CODE:

1810.HK)

3.1 Xiaomi was principally engaged in development and
sales of smartphones, [oT and lifestyle products,
provision of internet services and investments holding in
the PRC and other countries or regions.

3.2 lIts revenue for the financial year 2024 increased by
approximately RMB94,936.2 million (or approximately
35.0% on a year-on-year basis) to approximately
RMB365,906.4 million.

3.3 Its profit for the year was approximately RMB23,578.4
million as compared to a profit of approximately
RMB17,474.2 million for the prior year.

3.4 The net asset value as at 31 December 2024 was
approximately RMB189,205.1 million (31 December
2023: RMB164,261.8 million).

3.5 The share price of Xiaomi on the Stock Exchange at the
end of December 2024 changed to HK$34.5 (31
December 2023: HK$15.6), up 121.2%. The highest
and lowest trading prices of Xiaomi’s shares on the
Stock Exchange during the twelve months ended 31
December 2024 were HK$34.5 and HK$12.12,
respectively.
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE GROUP

REBEFBEZER
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SKY BLUE 11 COMPANY LIMITED("SKY BLUE 11")

(STOCK CODE: 1010.HK)

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED |

The principal businesses of the Sky Blue 11 were i) the
design and sales of integrated circuits and semi
conductors parts, ii) executive jet management, and iii)
manufacturing and sales of yachts and other yachts
related businesses.

In the first half of its financial year 2024, Sky Blue 11
revenue decreased by approximately HK$85.7 million to
approximately HK$16.0 million (or approximately 84.3%
on a year-on-year basis). Its net loss was approximately
HK$24.1 million and increased approximately HK$23.2
million on a year-on-year basis.

The net assets value as at 30 June 2024 was
approximately HK$10.8 million (31 December 2023 net
liabilities value : HK$3.0 million).

The share price of Sky Blue 11 on the Stock Exchange at
the end of December 2024 changed to HK$0.42 (31
December 2023: HK$0.69), down 39.1%. The highest
and lowest trading prices of Sky Blue 11's shares on the
Stock Exchange during the twelve months ended 31
December 2024 were HK$0.78 and HK$0.27,
respectively.
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5. CHINA MOBILE LIMITED (“CHINA MOBILE") (STOCK
CODE: 941.HK)

5.1

5.2

53

5.4

As the leading ICT services provider in the mainland of
China, China Mobile provides communications and
information services in all 31 provinces, autonomous
regions and directly-administered municipalities
throughout the mainland of China and in Hong Kong
SAR, and boasts a world-class telecommunications and
information operator with the world’s largest network
and customer base, a leading position in profitability,
brand value and market value ranking. Its businesses
primarily consist of voice, data, broadband, dedicated
lines, IDC, cloud computing, 10T and other services in
the Customer, Home, Business and New markets.

Its revenue for the financial year 2024 increased by
approximately RMB31,450 million (or approximately
3.1% on a year-on-year basis) to approximately
RMB1,040,759 million.

Its profit for the year was approximately RMB138,526
million as compared to a profit of approximately
RMB131,935 million for the prior year.

The net asset value as at 31 December 2024 was
approximately RMB1,396,539 million (31 December
2023: RMB1,345,985 million).

The share price of China Mobile on the Stock Exchange
at the end of December 2024 changed to HK$76.6 (31
December 2023: HK$64.8), up about 18.2%. The
highest and lowest trading prices of China Mobile’s
shares on the Stock Exchange during the twelve months
ended 31 December 2024 were HK$78.3 and HK$63.8,
respectively.
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE GROUP
REBEAEZIEREZHE

6. CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY GROUP LIMITED
(“CHOW TAI FOOK") (STOCK CODE: 1929.HK)

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED |

Chow Tai Fook was listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong in December 2011.
Offering a wide variety of products, services and
channels, the Chow Tai Fook’s brand portfolio comprises
the Chow Tai Fook flagship brand with curated retail
experiences, and other individual brands including
Hearts On Fire, Enzo, Soinlove And Monologue.

Chow Tai Fook is committed to delivering sustainable
long-term value creation for its stakeholders by
enhancing the quality of earnings and driving higher
value growth. With an extensive retail network of nearly
8,000 stores across China as well as multiple locations
globally, and a growing e-commerce business, Chow Tai
Fook is implementing targeted online-to-offline ("020")
strategies to strengthen its competitiveness in today’s
omni-channel retail environment.

In the first half of its financial year 2025, its revenue
decreased by HK$10,118.6 million to HK$39,407.7
million (or approximately 20.4% on a year-on-year
basis). Its net profit was approximately HK$2,564.0
million as compared to a profit of approximately
HK$4,616.7 million for the prior year.

The net asset value as at 30 September 2024 was
approximately HK$26,381.4 million (31 March 2024:
HK$26,745.6 million).

The share price of Chow Tai Fook on the Stock
Exchange at the end of December 2024 was HK$6.73.
The highest and lowest trading prices of Chow Tai
Fook's shares on the Stock Exchange during the twelve
months ended 31 December 2024 were HK$12.82 and
HK$5.86, respectively.
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7.

ALIBABA GROUP HOLDING LIMITED (“ALIBABA
GROUP") (STOCK CODE: 9988.HK)

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

Alibaba Group businesses are comprised of China
commerce, International commerce, Local consumer
services, Cainiao, Cloud, Digital media and
entertainment, and Innovation initiatives and others. An
ecosystem has developed around Alibaba Group
platforms and businesses that consists of consumers,
merchants, brands, retailers, third-party service
providers, strategic alliance partners and other
businesses.

Net revenues for the nine months ended 31 December
2024 were approximately RMB759.9 billion (USD104.1
billion), an increase of approximately 5.6% from the
prior year.

Net Income from operations for the nine months ended
31 December 2024 was approximately RMB114.0 billion
(USD15.6 billion), compared to approximately RMB70.4
billion for the prior year.

The net asset value as at 31 December 2024 was
approximately RMB1,094.8 billion (USD150.0 billion)
(31 March 2024: approximately RMB1,112.6 billion).

The share price of Alibaba Group on the Stock Exchange
at the end of December 2024 changed to HK$82.4 (31
December 2023: HK$75.6), down about 9.0%. The
highest and lowest trading prices of Alibaba Group’s
shares on the Stock Exchange during the twelve months
ended 31 December 2024 were HK$115.1 and
HK$65.45 respectively.
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE GROUP
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8. HSBC HOLDINGS PLC (“HSBC") (STOCK CODE: 0005.

HK)
8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED |

HSBC's business can be segmented into: (i) wealth and
personal banking; (ii) commercial banking; (iii) global
banking and markets. The interest rate environment,
operation efficiency and the global business
environment are the key factors affecting its underlying
results.

Net operating income for the full year of 2024 were
approximately USD62,440 million, a decrease of
approximately 0.3% from the full year of 2023. Profit
for the full year of 2024 was approximately USD24,999
million, compared to approximately USD24,559 million
for the full year of 2023.

The net asset value as at 31 December 2024 was
approximately USD192,273 million (31 December 2023:
USD192,610 million).

The share price of HSBC on the Stock Exchange at the
end of December 2024 was HK$75.800. The highest
and lowest trading prices of HSBC's shares on the Stock
Exchange during the twelve months ended 31
December 2024 were HK$75.800 and HK$58.35
respectively.
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CHINA LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
(“CHINA LIFE") (STOCK CODE: 2628.HK)

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

China Life and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the writing of life, health, accident and other types of
personal insurance business; reinsurance business for
personal insurance business; fund management business
permitted by national laws and regulations or approved
by the State Council of the PRC.

For the nine months ended 30 September 2024, China
Life's operating income increased by RMB151,293
million to RMB427,180 million. Its net profit was
approximately RMB105,904 million and increased
approximately RMB66,647 million on a year-on-year
basis.

The net asset value as at 30 September 2024 was
approximately RMB577,615 million (31 December 2023:
RMB337,716 million).

The share price of China Life on the Stock Exchange at
the end of December 2024 was HK$14.68. The highest
and lowest trading prices of China Life’s shares on the
Stock Exchange during the twelve months ended 31
December 2024 were HK$20.55 and HK$8.83
respectively.
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE GROUP
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10. LONGFOR GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED (“LONGFOR
GROUP") (STOCK CODE: 0960.HK)

10.1

10.2

10.3

Longfor Group was founded in Chongging in 1993 and
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in 2009.
Longfor Group is primarily engaged in property
development, investment, and management. It has built
a nationwide presence over the years with a land bank
of 41.4m sm as at Jun 24. Longfor Group’s contracted
sales have ranked it in the top 10 among HK-listed
China property developers since its listing and it was
one of the first developers involved in the development
of shopping malls in China. Longfor Group has built an
extensive track record of over 15 years in the
maintenance and operation of commercial properties.

For the six months ended 30 June 2024, Longfor
Group’s revenue decreased by approximately
RMB15,189.4 million to approximately RMB46,855.1
million. Its net profit was approximately RMB6,975.0
million and drop by approximately RMB2,320.4 million
on a year-on-year basis.

The net asset value as at 30 June 2024 was
approximately RMB242,182.0 million (31 December
2023: RMB236,458.3 million).

10.4 The share price of Longfor Group on the Stock Exchange

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED |

at the end of December 2024 was HK$10.0. The highest
and lowest trading prices of Longfor Group’s shares on
the Stock Exchange during the twelve months ended 31
December 2024 were HK$18.76 and HK$7.67
respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXELWE

11

INTRODUCTION

The board of directors (the “Board”) is pleased to present the
corporate governance report of the Company for the year of
2024,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining and implementing
a high standard of corporate governance and recognises that
good governance can help the business to deliver its
strategies, generate shareholder value and meet its
obligations towards shareholders and other stakeholders. The
Company has established a governance structure, and
embeds governance and principles in the business to ensure
accountability, fairness, integrity and transparency.

The Board adheres to corporate governance practices by
adopting and complying with the established rules, codes,
guidelines under the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Company has followed the
CG Code and formulated its own policies and procedures
regarding the corporate governance practices. During the
year of 2024, the Company complied with all of the
provisions under the CG Code except for the following:

(a) Code provision C.5.8
It is required that an agenda and accompanying board
papers should be sent, in full, to all Directors for regular
board meetings and as far as practicable in all other
cases. These papers should be sent in a timely manner
and at least 3 days before the intended date of a board
or board committee meeting (or other agreed period).

Due to the practical reasons, agenda and related board
papers have not been sent, in full, in 3 days in advance
to certain meetings of the Board or Board Committee.
Save for the disclosure of certain inside information
which required timely publication of announcements,
the Company Secretary has used the best endeavours to
fulfil the above practice of three days advance notice.

1.1
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(b) Code provision C.2.1
The code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the role of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

Currently, the Chairman is Dr. Lam Man Chan. The
major duties of the Chairman are to provide leadership
to the Board and spearhead overall corporate
development and strategic planning whilst the Chief
Executive Officer is responsible for implementing the
decisions and strategy approved by the Board and
managing day-to-day operations of the Group with the
supports of the Executive Director.

The responsibilities of the chief executive officer of the
Company have been taken up by the other members of
the Board and senior management of the Company.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed issuers (the “Model Code")
contained in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its codes of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors on
terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in
the Model Code.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, having made specific
enquiry of all the Directors, all the Directors of the Company
have confirmed that they had fully complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code regarding the
securities transactions by the Directors and there were no
incidents of non-compliance with the required standard set
out in the Model Code.
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2.1

2.2

CORPORATE PURPOSE, STRATEGY AND
GOVERNANCE

The mission of the Company is to become a well-known
investment company in Hong Kong, and our business
philosophy is to benefit “Employee, Shareholders and
Community.” We believe that sustainable development is the
key to our success, and the positive impact on the community
as well as the environment will bring long term value to all of
our key stakeholders.

As an investment company under the Chapter 21 of the
Listing Rules, our primary investment objective is to achieve
capital appreciation and generating stable income from
interests and dividends. The Company will also consider ways
to integrate Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")
factors in our investing processes.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has overall responsibility for the management of
the Company and the implementation of its investment
policy, which includes, inter alia, the adoption of long term
corporate strategies, assessment of investment projects,
supervision of its management and review of its financial
performance to ensure that the Company’s investments are
conducted in accordance with its objectives.

INVESTMENT MANAGER

The Company appoints a professional investment manager to
manage its investment portfolio. With effect from 25 January
2021, Success Advance Investments Limited had been
appointed as the Company’s investment manager (the
Appointment”) for a term of two years from 25 January
2021. Upon the expiry of the original fixed term of the
Appointment on 25 January 2023, the Appointment has been
and will be extended automatically for a further term of one
year subject to the termination by either party with notice.
Currently, our Investment Manager agreed to receive a
monthly fee of HKD32,500 subject to mutual review as
necessary.
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CULTURE
The Company establishes its purposes, values and strategy as

mentioned above in Section 2. The Company emphasizes a
culture of creating long term value to stakeholders and we
recognize the importance of creating and maintaining a
culture of inclusion in our workplace and implementing
female and family-friendly incentives. We strive to maintain a
suitable workplace for all employees, promote economic
growth and create more job opportunities. We also reckons
that our sustainable performance is aligned to good
governance practices and a culture of compliance has been
cultivated amongst our staff. All directors act with integrity
and promote the above desired cultures.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out in code provision A.2.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code. The Board had reviewed the
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

TRAINING
Under code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance

Code, the board should review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior
management. All directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. Through the course of their
directorship, Directors are updated on any developments or
changes affecting the Company and their obligations to it at
regular Board meetings. In order to ensure that Directors
continue to further their understanding of the issues facing
the Group, the Company will further strengthen the provision
of Board training, ranging from corporate governance to
regulatory issues.
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3.1

Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution into the Board
remains informed and relevant. All Directors have participated
in continuous professional development by studying materials
relevant to their duties and responsibilities. The Company
Secretary also provided relevant training materials for the
self-study of Directors.

During the year, relevant reading materials, including
regulatory updates, seminar handouts and briefings, have
also been provided to the Directors for their reference and
studying to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices.

BOARD COMPOSITION

There are currently five Directors in the Board: the Chairman,
one Executive Director, and three Independent non-executive
Directors (“INEDs"”). The Board regularly reviews its size and
composition to ensure that the Board can have a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspective appropriate to
the requirements of our investment business. We started to
develop our own board skill matrix and emphasized the
investment skills and knowledge, risk management and
compliance knowledge.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (this “Policy”)

The Company has set out the approach to achieve diversity of
its board of directors (the “Board”) of China Castson 81
Finance Company Limited (the “Company”). The Company
recognises the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of its performance and to maintain high standards
of corporate governance.
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With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service with the Group. The
ultimate decision will be based on merits and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The
nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination
Committee”) will review this Policy and the measurable
objectives, at least annually as appropriate, to ensure the
effectiveness of this Policy. The Nomination Committee will
discuss any revisions that may be required, recommend any
such revisions to the Board, and monitor the implementation
of this Policy.

Under Code provision B.1.3, the board should review the
implementation and effectiveness of the diversity policy on
annual basis. The Nomination Committee will also report
annually on the Board’s composition under diversity
perspectives. Currently, there is a female director on the
board and the Nomination Committee recommended us to
maintain a female director on the board as our target. The
Board also revised the board diversity policy accordingly.
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3.2 The Directors’ biographical details are set out in the section

of “Biography of Directors” on pages 104 to 108. The Board
members for the year ended 31 December 2024 and as at the
date up to this report were:

Chairman and Non-Executive Director
Dr. Lam Man Chan

Executive Director
Mr. Lee Kwok Leung

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy

Ms. Law So Fun

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a
year at approximately quarterly intervals in addition to other
Board meetings that are required for significant and
important issues, and for statutory purposes. The Board
meetings are attended by a majority of the Directors in
person or through other electronic means of communication.
Appropriate and sufficient information is provided to the
Board members in a timely manner to keep them abreast of
the Group’s latest development and thus assist them in
discharging their duties.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, other than
resolutions passed in writing by all the Directors, the Board
held six (6) meetings for all directors and one (1) meeting
between the Chairman and all Independent Non-executive
Directors. During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Company convened an annual general meeting (“AGM").
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The attendance of the Directors at the Board Meetings and
General Meetings for the year ended 31 December 2024 is
set out as below:

Name of Directors

BE-T-ME+-A=t-RLEEE
BEERBEAT ZEF L ERAT
m :

Number of meetings attended

EEME HEEERE
Board
Meetings AGM SGM

EEged RREFAE RREIXS
Chairman and Non-Executive Director ~ FRERFMTEE
Dr. Lam Man Chan M E L 7 1 N/A i3
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Lee Kwok Leung TEREE 6 1 N/AZ 8 F
Independent Non-executive Directors BUEHITES
Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon REBEL 1 N/AT 3 F
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy BIRERE 1 N/A 33 A
Ms. Law So Fun BEZRt 7 1 N/A i A
To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial, BEEEMFEN RZTE-_WF+=A

business or family relationship among members of the Board
as at 31 December 2024. All of them are free to exercise their
individual judgment.

RE-APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board has met

with the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), Rule 3.10(2) and Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules, relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive directors, representing
at least one third of the Board, and with at least one
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of
his independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Company considers each of them to be
independent.
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3.5

According to Code provision B.2.3, INEDs who have served
more than nine years on board, their further appointment
should be subject to separate resolution.

TERM OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The current Non-executive Director and Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term, all Directors (including Executive and
Non-executive) of the Company are subject to retirement by
rotation at the annual general meeting as specified in the
bye-laws of the Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

During the year, the Board size and composition was
reviewed by the Nomination Committee. With the use of the
board skill matrix, the Committee assisted the Board to
ensure that there are diversity of skills, experience,
perspective, gender representation on the board.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and
ensure that they are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
also ensure the timely publication of such financial statements.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, RSM
Hong Kong, with regard to their reporting responsibilities on
the Company’s financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 120 to 124.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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THE CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The code provision C.2. stipulates that the role of Chairman

and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

Currently, the Chairman is Dr. Lam Man Chan and the major
duties of the Chairman are to provide leadership to the Board
and spearhead overall corporate development and strategic
planning whilst the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
implementing the decisions and strategy approved by the
Board and managing day-to-day operations of the Group
with the supports of the Executive Director.

The responsibilities of the chief executive officer of the
Company have been taken up by the other members of the
Board and senior management of the Company.

Meeting between Chairman and Independent
Non-executive Directors

The Code provision C.2.7 of the Corporate Governance Code
states that the chairman of the board of directors of a listed
issuer should hold meetings with the independent
non-executive directors at least annually without the presence
of other directors. During the year, the Chairman had held a
meeting with the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the presence of other directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

4.3.1 Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Company was established
with its written terms of reference formulated in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
The Audit Committee currently consists of three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Dr. Ng
Chi Yeung, Simon, Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy and
Ms. Law So Fun. Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The Audit Committee has adopted terms of reference
which are in line with the CG Code. The Audit
Committee met regularly during the year to review the
completeness, accuracy and fairness of the Company’s
financial statements, the Company’s financial reporting
system and internal control procedures, the scope and
nature of the external audit and matters concerning the
engagement of external auditor.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing
the Company’s interim and annual financial statements
and making recommendations as to the approval of the
Company’s interim and annual financial statements by
the Board.

During the year, the Audit Committee held four (4)
meetings and the attendance of the members at the
meetings for the year ended 31 December 2024 is set
out as below:

ERZBECRMELRER TR —
@ZZHMEE%EI BERZEBERFANTE
MBTEH  WRIARAMHRE
Z TR /Eﬁﬁléﬁﬂi%if ZA/N
Bl SRS HIE R ARREE IR T
ShER IR 2 BB MM E A K R B 41
BZHmEEzEH -

ERZBENAREMNARAZTH
&ﬁfﬁﬂx#&i‘% W HEFGRIER

REIZHERFEMBEHRRIBHER
R

FAN BEZZESRTTHAGRE
E-FNF+—A
—t+—HIEFEZEHNFEB I

Number of
Name of Members meetings attended
REXA RS R
Independent Non-executive Directors BUEHITES
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy (Chairman) BIBESLE(EE) 4
Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon REHEL 4
Ms. Law So Fun BEZLL 4
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4.3.2 Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was
established primarily to review and make recommendations
to the Board on matters relating to the remuneration of
the Directors and the senior management of the
Company. The Remuneration Committee currently
consists of three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely, Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon, Mr. Tam Yuk Sang,
Sammy and Ms. Law So Fun. Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy
is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted terms of
reference which are in line with the CG Code to review
the remuneration policy and remuneration packages of
the Directors.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one
(1) meeting and has reviewed the level of Independent
non-executive directors’ fees by making comparison to
peers.

The attendance of the members at the meeting for the
year ended 31 December 2024 is set out as below:

Name of Members

A32NEES

ARBHFMEEENIZETEZBNR
BREERARBSRERE 2 H M
FEARRHEAESSFLERER
R-¥MEEEREH=RBUIFH
TEF MREHBEL FRERLE
RBEZZZTHEK - BREXRERS
MEEex/F -

FMEZEeERMELEERTRI—
HeBERE EBREARNESRZ
FNBR R FHMETE -

FH-FHEEEERITT —(1)RE
o WEABERZFELBEMBRE L
HRITEZTZHREKF -

ERERBZEZ_ZT_NMF+=A
—t+—HUEFEZEHHFEB RIS
R

Number of
meeting attended

MEKE HEERIRE
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFEBITES

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy (Chairman) B (EE) 1
Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon REHBL 1
Ms. Law So Fun BBSmT 1

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
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4.3.3 Nomination Committee 4331RBEER
The Nomination Committee currently consists of one RELZECHEHR —BHITEE A
Executive Director, namely, Mr. Lee Kwok Leung and ZEREE AR =B IIEHITE
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Dr. F-MREBEL - %hif‘ii&ﬁé
Ng Chi Yeung, Simon, Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy and R A THEK - REBHE LT REES
Ms. Law So Fun. Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon is the FE e

Chairman of the Committee.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has FR IRZZEGHEFTS 2K
reviewed the composition, structure, size of the board 0E - BEUREESEZ(LETT
and the board diversity. at e
During the year, the Nomination Committee held two FA RZEZEESBRITTRQOARE
(2) meetings and the attendance of the members at the EORSKEREZE-_ZE-_MWFE+_=A
meetings for the year ended 31 December 2024 is set =t+—HLEFEZERZHERFRE
out as below: R
Number of
Name of Members meetings attended
MEERA HESEHRRE
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Lee Kwok Leung FEIBREE 2
Independent Non-executive Directors BUEHITES
Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon (Chairman) REBELT (FE)
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy EBELAE
Ms. Law So Fun BEZLL
4.4 COMPANY SECRETARY 4.4 NEIWME
Ms. Cheng Suk Fun (“Ms. Cheng”), the Company Secretary RS+ ([Bz+]) » KRAFBR AW
of the Company, possesses the qualifications and experience E BEELMRBRANEIGRERARIWE
as a company secretary as required under Rule 3.28 of the FEEREER BrutREBE_T_M
Listing Rules. Ms. Cheng has duly complied with the relevant F+-_A=1+—BItFECEZABTET
professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the HAEINEZ HBEHEEEIETE -
Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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The Company Secretary plays an important role in supporting
the board by ensuring good information flow within the
board and that board policy and procedures are followed.
She is responsible for advising the board through the
chairman and/or the chief executive on governance matters
and also facilitate induction and professional development of
directors.

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and
have day-to-day knowledge of our affairs.

She reports to the board chairman and/or the chief executive.
All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that board procedures, and all
applicable law, rules and regulations, are followed.

DIVIDEND POLICY
The Board of China Castson 81 Finance Company Limited (the

“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) has
adopted the dividend policy which aims to provide stable
returns to its shareholders and to maintain a healthy financial
position which allows the Company to take advantage of any
investment opportunities that may arise from time to time.

Subject to the applicable laws in Bermuda and the Company’s
bye-laws, the Board may propose final dividends on an annual
basis and/or may declare interim dividends or special
dividends from time to time. The Board will consider, inter
alia, the Company’s and the Group’s operating results,
accumulated and future earnings, dividends received from the
Group companies, gearing, liquidity position, capital
commitment requirement and investment opportunities of
the Group, the volatility expected in its future earnings,
financial flexibility, tax considerations, flotation costs and
contractual and legal restrictions. General economic
conditions and relevant external factors will also be taken
into account.

The dividend payout ratio may vary from year to year. There
is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount for any given period.
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4.6

4.7

Subject to the applicable laws in Bermuda and the Company’s
bye-laws, dividends may be paid in cash or to be satisfied
wholly or partly in the form of allotment of shares by the
Company. The Board may also consider the issuance of bonus
shares or distribution of specific assets of any kind, including
debentures or warrants to subscribe securities of the
Company or any other company, on a basis permitted by the
applicable laws and regulations and in such manner as the
Board thinks expedient. The Board will regularly review the
dividend policy and will amend and/or modify the dividend
policy if necessary.

DIRECTORS' LIABILITIES INSURANCE
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for

Directors’ liabilities in respect of potential legal actions
against the Directors arising out of corporate activities of the
Group pursuant to code provision C.1.8 of the CG Code.
Such directors’ liability insurance will be reviewed and
renewed annually. Throughout the year ended 31 December
2024, no claim has been made against the Directors.

INDUCTION AND DEVELOPMENT

Newly appointed directors of the Company will receive a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on
appointment. Every new Board member will receive our latest
version of Policies and Procedures manual which includes the
terms of reference of the Board and various board
committees, our investment policies and the guidelines on
conducts which include policies governing conflicts of
interest, anti-corruption guidelines of Directors and staff.

All directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. Ongoing training can help Directors keep abreast of
current trends, regulatory requirements and issues facing the
Group while remains informed and relevant. Our company
secretaries have arranged suitable training for directors.
Further details of training to our Directors and staff are set
out in the Section 4.3 of the ESG Report.
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CONFLICT MANAGEMENT

If a substantial shareholder or a director of the Company has
a potential conflict of interest in a material matter to be
considered by the Board, that matter should be dealt with by
a physical board meeting (telephonic or videoconferencing
may be counted as physical attendance) instead of a written
resolution. Independent non-executive directors who have no
material interest therein should be present at that board
meeting.

AUDIT, INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of
annual financial statements. We publishes the annual and
interim results within three months and two months
respectively after the relevant period ends. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024,
the Board adopted appropriate accounting policies
consistently, made prudent and reasonable judgements and
estimates, and ensured that the financial statements were
prepared on a going concern basis and show a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2024 and of the Group's consolidated financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate system
of internal control for the Company and has regularly
reviewed the internal control policy so as to safeguard the
Group's assets. During the year, the Company identified and
evaluated its key risks and likely uncertainties. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the findings and risk profile of the
Company.

Internal audit function

Given its lean operations, the Company’s internal audit
function has been primarily provided by professional firms.
During the year, Reanda HK CPA Limited reviewed the internal
control procedures relating to the of certain risk areas of the
Group.
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Framework of risk management

Risk management is defined as the overall process of

identifying and understanding its own risks and taking

informed actions. This is to help it achieve its strategic

objectives, reduce the likelihood of failure and decrease the

uncertainty of overall business performance. Such risks would

include material risks relating to ESG factors.

(a)

Responsibility of the Board and the management

The Company adopts a simple and practical approach
towards the risk management process. The Company
embeds the risk management features within our
investment management as well as operational areas
(including finance, human resources, and information
technology) and these operating units adopt the risk
management systems on a day-to-day basis.

These systems are designed to mitigate the risk of failure
to achieve relevant objectives, and provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement or loss.
Moreover, the management annually reviews and
updates its risk profile, aiming to provide assurance to
the Board on the effectiveness of the risk management
systems, and the Board will oversee the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems on an ongoing
basic.

The Company has established policies for improper conduct
reporting (i.e. whistleblowing) and anti-corruption,
respectively. Further details are set out in Section 5.3 of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on page 82.
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Risk management working group and role of the Audit
Committee

A risk management working group is mainly to advise
the Board on the Group’s risk profile and risk
assessment; to consider current and emerging risks and
risk exposures relating to the Group’s business and
strategies to ensure that appropriate arrangements are
in place to control and mitigate the risks effectively; and
to review the Group’s risk management policy on a
regular basis.

The Audit Committee supports the Board in monitoring
the risk exposure, the design and operating
effectiveness of the underlying risk management and
internal controls systems. The Audit Committee, acting
on behalf of the Board, oversees the following process:

- regular reviews of the principal business risks, and
related control measures, the strengths and
weaknesses of the overall internal controls system
and action plans for improvement;

- regular reviews of internal audit reports, including
action plans to address the identified control
weaknesses, status update and its

implementations; and

- regular reports by the external auditors of any
control issues identified in the course of their work
and discussion with the external auditors of the
scope of their respective review and findings.

The Audit Committee will then report to the Board after
due review of the effectiveness of the Group's system
of internal controls. The Board considers the works and
findings of the Audit Committee in forming its own
view on the effectiveness of the system.
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5.2.1

5.2.2

Risk profile

Our approach for managing risk is underpinned by our
understanding of our current risk exposures, and how
our risks are changing over time. The risk assessment
includes identifying relevant objectives, identifying
events that could affect the achievement of objectives,
determining risk tolerance, assessing the likelihood/
significance of risks and evaluating the portfolio of risks.
Internal controls and risk management are integrated
into our investment operations.

The risk management working group performed the
continuous risk assessment, and maintained and
updated its risk register. It also reviewed emergent risks.
The following are considered to be relatively high risks
to us: a. Political/Geopolitical Risk, b. Risk on high cost
c. Volatility Risk, d. Equity Price Risk,
e. Strategic Risk, f. Inability to obtain further capital,

of capital,

g. Inflationary Risk, h. Currency Risk, i. Liquidity Risk
and j. Regulatory Risk.

Principal Risks identified
The following highlights the major risks to the Group
based on the annual risk assessment conducted in 2024.

Risks
B

5.1 BlRREE
ARARERRE 2 FEZARAAEHIR
ﬁﬂ 8 2 TR AR K% A R R\ e 20 1] B B )
////// BT E RBRTEEIEHAER

Bif #AAZEERBBREZSFMH
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ARl EBRIZE - ARG E R A
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Mitigation Plan(s)
RERTHE

1.  Political/Geopolitical Risk E{3& b 45 B34 B i
Political risk is an important factor for allocation of
investment portfolio, which can minimize the
negative effects arising on the occurrence of
significant or unexpected political events.
BoaRBES KK EEAEN —EEERHEK  Hit
FEASAEBIBAEMHELERELANBATER
B &IE -

Geopolitical risk is the risk associated with the
tensions between national governments that affect
the normal course of international relations. Lack
of such awareness may result in wrong investment
decision-making.

4 BUS B B 2 B R BT 2 Fa B R R IE B
ERERTZENERBE HZARNEZTRA
BESIBUEHEERAIRE R -

Monitoring of development of the key political
events.

EREARBUAEMHHER

Incorporate geopolitical risk into the investment
process, together with Investment Manager.
HIEELE -8 HMEBURRRAAKRER

12 o
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Risks
0

Mitigation Plan(s)
BT E

There are three kinds of geopolitical risk: event
risk, exogenous risk and thematic risk.
BoREMEBURRR - FHER - IMERR
[ Bz o

54

a) Event risk evolves set dates known in advance.
EHREREELENERTEHEREE -

b)  Exogenous risk is a sudden or unanticipated
risk.

SRR R — R RAR SR BIEMBIR E g o

¢)  Thematic risk is a known risk that evolves
and expands over a period of time.
ZHEEARE-BEARRE T -REHANE
K o

Risk on high cost of capital & & £ R4 A K
Risk on high cost of capital is the risk that the
Company’s unsatisfactory performance may result
in higher cost of capital.
RESHARBEARRIEETBEEUBESK
RS H E R -

Volatility Risk 3§ 5f /& k&

It arises from the change of value of an investment
or portfolio as a result of the volatility of the
underlying assets.
KBEBRBRRREAEANZEERIAER 2R
BEYREEAEBEEZD -
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Assessment of geopolitical threats by
consideration of likelihood it will occur, speed of
its impact, and the size and nature of the impact.
BRERATAMNTENE TENREARY
EHRBREERFHHBEBUARE

a) Event risk: To assess the consequence of
political events which often result in
changes to investor expectation related to
a country’s cooperative stance.

EHRER: FEBAEHNER ZFF
HAEEEBRREEH —EARRNAELS
B T8 HA B8 A B -

b)  Exogenous risk: To assess time impact of
sudden uprisings, invasions, or the
aftermath of natural disasters.

SNVERBE - FTERBESEEH  ARKBARKL
ERBNBHFE-

Q) Thematic risk: To assess climate change,
cyber threats and ongoing threat of
terrorism.

HERR  FERIEE(\  BEEE R
BRRMEREE

Regularly review the financial performance and
cash flow forecast and monitoring the interest
rate movement and the cost of capital of the
Company.

AN AR ZHBERERR S RETRR L &
R KB RE S

Monitoring the volatility of the underlying
investments and considering using appropriate
financial instruments with Investment Manager.
HEEKEERERREZ KBTI ERERS
HEemIA-



Risks Mitigation Plan(s)
Bk RER T8
4. Equity Price Risk B A< B 1% & &

Price risk arises from fluctuation in market prices of
our investment in listed equity securities. The
management manages the exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of listed equity securities with different
risk exposure.

BEREBRRAREQAGMKE LMRAEBES 2TH
BREY EEEFBABAIARRERE 2 £
RAFBHEEREEZER

Strategic Risk % B &g

Strategic risk may arise from the pursuit of an
unsuccessful business plan, failed business decision
or from a failure to respond well to changes in the
business environment.
REEERRNARERINERRGTE  BRAR
KRR ZEREEBIREEL -

Inability to obtain further capital ;X ENE
ZES

Unsatisfactory financial performance may be an
obstacle to raise capital.
MBEETERAREHRSEES -

Constantly reviewing the investment strategies
with the Investment Manager and consider to
devise appropriate equity investment strategy.
HEERBETHERRERE UERHTES
R E R o

Reviewing the strategic asset allocation and
regular update of capital market expectations
together with the Investment Manager.

ER AR EERREEREYTHEHFER
TS TEH -

Regularly monitoring the Company’s financial
performance and the capital market.
EHMBEARNRIZMBEREREART -
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Risks Mitigation Plan(s)
0 BT E
7. Inflationary Risk #RE M

Inflationary risk is the risk that inflation will
undermine an investment’s returns through a
decline in purchasing power.
ARERESEREFIRABBE N TRMESRK
B wey b o

Bond payments are most at inflationary risk
because their payouts are generally based on fixed
interest rates, meaning an increase in inflation
diminishes their purchasing power.
BFOXNRINBRARTROZESZK AR
XRNREBREREEHNEEL  EERZFBR L
FEHISSEE D -

The World Economic Outlook issued by the
International Monetary Fund forecasted global
inflation forecasted to decline steadily, from 6.8
percent in 2023 to 5.9 percent in 2024 and 4.5
percent in 2025.
BEEEEESASEMO(ERRBERE)TRA -
PHBRESA T _=ZFMN6.8%IBF THREZ
T NFEMNS9% R T RAFNL5% -

Currency Risk & # & i#

Currency risk or exchange rate risk refers to the
exposure, in regard to unpredictable gains or loss
due to changes in the value of one currency in
relation to another currency.
BEEEREXRREREHN —BEEHERS
—RE¥NEEZEIMELENTABANERA
M o) 2 Bz o

Liquidity Risk i 8/ & & & k&

It is the potential risks that our Group will be
unable to meet its obligations when they fall due
because of an inability to obtain adequate funding
or liquidate assets.
RBECREBREAEERAREESEHE S
BESEMEEBTIRECT ZEERR -

Monitoring the interest rate exposures to
implement appropriate measures.
BRI R E R AE MEEE A -

Consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure if arises.

R ERINER R - ZBHEITE I -

Holding sufficient liquid assets to ensure that
sufficient cash flows are available to meet all
financial commitments and to capitalize
opportunities for business expansions.

FRB/AEARRDEE HREARHRDR
EEMBEMEEE  URICERBIERERS -



Risks
Bk

Mitigation Plan(s)
iR a8l

10.

11.

12.

Regulatory Risk 252 [E

Regulatory risk is the risk that a change in regulations
or legislation will adversely affect a security,
company, or industry.
EERRERERIENERTHZS - RAIHTT
XEETNEZEZAR -

Close monitoring of the regulatory risk in relation
to each of the investee company, and reporting to
be made as appropriate.
EYENEBESERKREARNEERR - WiE
R o

Pandemic Risk & 15 & k&

The latest surveillance data showed that the
overall local activity of COVID-19 remains at a low
Organization’s latest surveillance data showed that
JN.1 is the most prevalent variant. At the same
time, KP.2 and KP.3 are also detected in the
sewage surveillance and human infection cases.
However, the current information does not
suggest JN.1 or KP.2 or KP.3 will cause a more
severe disease than the previous prevalent XBB
and its descendant lineages.

BT BRI BUR MR - RIh20198ME Sm A B 88
EERIR E R IMEKTE - RIBH REEABN &
SEMNBERT INTBERITHERERSIK -
A B > 75 7K B ORI A0 48 Rk 2 8 2= b A R BIIKP.2
FMKP.3 = 28T - BRI KRB & BB RIN.TZKP. 23k
KP.3& & SE Al 1T BUXBB R H 18 X 55 R 5| B E &

Compliance risk — Breach of Listing Rules or
other financial regulations 23 EAK—ER LT
A HEMER A

This is the risk of legal or regulatory sanctions,
financial loss, or damage to reputation that arises
when a company fails to comply with relevant
laws and regulations.

BT RRIARBEFHBER LRSI BRI ENE
BREEHH  MBEAIREIXBZAR -

Incorporate regulatory risk in the investment
process.

EREBETHEERRAAZEZS -

Monitor the development of the pandemic.
EREIERER -

Regularly updating and provision of ongoing
training.
E AT T AR R B IE AN o
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Risks
0

Mitigation Plan(s)
BRI

13. Concentration Risk £ 5 /& i

Concentration of equity price may arise if the
Group has a significant investment in a single
equity investment. Details of the major investment
are disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.
BRABEERAIRRAREERKRENE KA
REBER - FEREZABRGEEUBRRM T
21485 -

14. Investment Risk 3% & @ k%
Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of
occurrence of losses on any particular unlisted
investment.

RERRAAERTAMBEBGELHTREZEER
Z A BEME ©

15. Climate Change Risk & {&% £t JE I%
Details are set out in the section of TCFD Report
on pages 95 to 103 of this report.
15 RAREFISE 1038 6 R % 18 7 B 75 42 52
TENERES D o

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board as to the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditors, which is subject to the approval by the
Board and at general meetings of the Company by the shareholders.
For the year ended 31 December 2024, the fee paid/payable in
respect of audit services and non-audit services to the Company’s
auditor, RSM Hong Kong, was approximately HK$290,000 and
HK$30,000 respectively.

REMUNERATION

Details of Directors’ remunerations during the Reporting
Period are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Regularly monitoring the position sizing limits
and reviewing the concentration analysis.
EHERRUIEGIRELREEETREEDN -

Monitoring and assessing the development of
investee companies.

ERNTFEREHRARZIEER -
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1.2

SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The implementation of shareholders communication policy
(including two-way communication channels and review of
their effectiveness) is a new mandatory requirement and has
been complied with. The Board and management maintain a
continuing dialogue with the Group's shareholders and
investors through various channels. First, the Company’s
publications include financial reports (interim and annual
reports), results announcements, corporate announcement,
circulars and other regulatory disclosures. These aim to enable
the Group's shareholders to have timely and updated
information of the Group. The other channels are through
the Company’s websites (http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/810
and/or http://www.hk0810.com.hk); and annual general
meetings and other general meetings.

The Company has approved its shareholders communication
policy during the year, and believes it is appropriate and
effective. The policy is also available on the Company’s websites.

Further details about the Group’s engagement activities with
shareholders and other stakeholders in 2024 are set out in
the Section 2.4 of the Environment, Social and Governance
Report on pages 61 to 64.

SHAREHOLDERS MEETINGS

At each general meeting, the chairman of that meeting will
propose a separate resolution for each substantially separate
issue with the advice of the Company’s lawyers as necessary
and avoid “bundling” resolutions unless they are
interdependent and linked forming one significant proposal.

The Chairman, other members of the Board and the external
auditor attend the annual general meeting to meet the
shareholders. The chairmen of the audit, remuneration, and
nomination committee (as appropriate) also attend such
meeting and the Directors will answer questions raised by the
shareholders on the issues set out in the meeting’s agenda.
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PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING THE SHAREHOLDERS'
ENQUIRES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Address: Unit 18, 9/F., Block B, Focal Industrial Centre, 21
Man Lok Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Email: info@hk0810.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

Shareholders can submit a written requisition to move a
resolution at the shareholders’ meeting. The number of
shareholders shall represent not less than one-twentieth of
the total voting rights of all shareholders having at the date
of the requisition a right to vote at the shareholders’ meeting,
or who are no less than one hundred shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution,
accompanied by a statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution of the business to be dealt with at the
shareholders’ meeting. It must also be signed by all the
shareholders concerned and be deposited at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 18, 9/F.,
Block B, Focal Industrial Centre, 21 Man Lok Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon, for the attention of the Company
Secretary not less than six weeks before the shareholders’
meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution and not less than one week before the
shareholders’ meeting in case of any other requisition.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
serving the notice for the resolution and circulating the
statement submitted by the shareholders concerned under
applicable laws and rules.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

7.3

1.4

BRROEESFEHEAZRF

BEAMEERA RN ELEER RS
EHRMEEREES - ANRNEZBE
HEmMT

ik BN ELA MR EE215%
B LEPOBEIEISE

EI : info@hk0810.com

BRMAEARBZERAG LAESS
EHEM -

RERRERRELEEBRZER

BRARHEAZRERRAE L&H)
R CBMRABEARERLZFARLARE
BERRAS ERRNBERNERRES
TORZAHZ2—WMBRR PR —8
BER -

EREVANNPEBRERELN ETHEB
—TFHRIME - RABRAEMAIRERE
KRN EE  HEBABERRERS &
BIEMER - HMMEHBEBREES
WAERRRAGRITAINA (WA EK
BRBERIRER2BE) RBRREAGRTH
—B(HAERMEMER) ZERXARARE
B X EEEME (I ABEBNELAHR
Y21 E S TEFRLBEIEISE) « fBrt
A BABIME -

HEARRBLHFAERMANIE  UX
NARRBRARERERERMBE L RFESR
B N M ERE R R M BRI & AT E
ERR
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SECTION 1 INTRODUCTION

1.1

Messages from the Chairman
On behalf of the Company, | am pleased to present the

Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") report of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2024. This report
demonstrates our ongoing efforts and commitment
enhancing our sustainability performance in areas such as
employee care and community participation. We are
committed to fulfilling societal obligations by fostering a
collaborative and inclusive workplace culture and creating a
positive impact on the community where we operate.

In 2024, global financial markets will continue to face
challenges and continue to be affected by the consequences
of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2023. As climate change
intensifies, extreme weather events continue to occur more
frequently, including severe droughts, powerful hurricanes,
devastating floods and wildfires, which have profound
impacts on societies and economies around the world. In
2024, natural disasters around the world further highlighted
the urgency of climate change. In Turkey and Syria, the
aftermath of the earthquakes continues to affect
communities as they rebuild. In the northeastern United
States, the damage caused by floods has posed significant
challenges to the local economy and infrastructure. Many
regions around the world have experienced abnormally high
temperatures and droughts, which have not only affected
agricultural production but also further exacerbated poverty
and food insecurity.

The impacts of climate change are exacerbating the social
and economic challenges facing billions of people. As the
global demand for green economic transformation becomes
increasingly urgent, countries have increased their investment
in sustainable development in 2024. Enterprise and investors
are increasingly paying attention to environmental, social and
governance factors and striving to adopt sustainable business
practices to address the growing climate challenge.

%1%11 (=]
1.1 EEHE

AANZBRERARA  MAREAKEEE—
E_E+ - A=+t—BLFENRE
e kEn((RE e kER]) WS -
ABERTTHRMEETIHERELILR2E
FEHRAMBERRRANBEZS IR
A e BAIBAOR LLﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ@Am
THESAXEETHEEME  LHHEME
%%Emmﬁ@§$%$wi°

RoT-mE - 2R BHRETY
W YT ZF == RIS

BERTHRERFE - EERKRZ/LINE -
BRERA - RARMR - MEMK&MAﬁ
BmAREHTER ﬁENQWMﬁ

ﬁ&%@%MXT%i? oS

F %ﬁ%im%%ﬁ%ﬁ—i&@T%
REERERERE - T HEMAAEHE
BRRRT BEZEMEEELR - ERNX
BRI EEN KL ELE AL
EEAREAUE -ERAZEMETRE
2aMEZ:  TEITBRELE  TMEESE
kERTRMEBRL -

RIEZBENFEEBATRBIANARTDY
ARt e REEKE - AR 2RY
HREREEUNFERLEREY  SER-
“EMART HAFEERNENK - B
EMBEEMRBEAIRE L@ RER
AE BENEBRASERERMEELED
B RIRKE -

FEER 81 2RAMRAR |

—E-MEFHR 49



50

The Company will try to identify and consider potential
investment opportunities in new economy sector and
sustainable agriculture, green food, and biotech driven
through new technological breakthrough. As part of ESG
investing, the sectors are generally considered to be
benefitted from the ESG opportunities or can reduce the ESG
risks. ESG investing is an approach to managing assets where
ESG factors are explicitly incorporated in investment decisions
with long-term return of the investment portfolio in mind. In
particular, to address the climate -related risks. it is generally
preferable to identify those sectors which are more likely to
be adversely affected by the transition to a low-carbon
economy and will tilt away from companies that are
carbon-intensive or own fossil fuel reserves, and tilts towards
companies that generate green revenues as far as possible.
This can further integrate the ESG factors into our investing
operations. With this new focus, the Company will not
restrict its private equity investments mainly in the internet
finance sector and could take a diversified approach in order
to enhance the long term returns at a level of risk suitable to
the Company and its shareholders.

The introduction of the new shareholders communication
policy in prior years. This aims to set out the Company’s
strategies for maintaining continuous and open
communication with its shareholders to establish a two-way
relationship and communication. Engagement is regarded as
one of the key initiatives for improving governance. As we
advance, we continue our commitment to understanding the
needs of our stakeholders and the community, and hope to
build a better community where we operate.
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1.2

1.3

Our Corporate Values
The Company’s mission is to become a well-known

investment company in Hong Kong. Our business philosophy
is “to benefit Employees, Shareholders and Community.”

Sustainable development is the key to our success, and the
positive impact on the community as well as the environment
will bring long-term value to all key stakeholders. As an
investment company, our primary objective is to achieve
capital appreciation as well as generating stable income from
interests and dividends. The Company also concerns about
the ESG factors and their impacts on our investment
portfolio. ESG investing recognises the generation of
long-term sustainable returns should be dependent on stable,
well-functioning and well-governed social, environmental and
economic systems. It can enhance long term value by using
ESG factors to mitigate risks and identify growth
opportunities.

In the course of our investment operations, we also
implement various tasks of sustainable development, and
employees care to ensure adherence to our business
philosophy.

Basis for Preparation of the Report
This report was prepared in accordance with the ESG

Reporting Guide set out in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules
using the internal data of the Group.

All important areas were identified through stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessment. We approached
stakeholders via various channels to obtain opinions on ESG
issues in our business, and set priorities on the important
areas to be reported by reference to their impacts on the
environment, economy and society and on stakeholders. We
aim to provide objective, accurate and fair information in this
report.
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1.4 Reporting Period and Boundary

1.5

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED |

The reporting period is from 1 January 2024 to 31 December
2024. Unless otherwise specified, the report covers the
investment operations of our office in Hong Kong and the
office operation is considered to be small in terms of
headcounts and office space.

A detailed content index of the ESG Reporting Guide issued
by the Stock Exchange is included in the end of this report.
Regarding the information of our corporate governance,
please refer to the corporate governance report.

Reporting Principles

We adopt the four reporting principles outlined in the ESG
Reporting Guide, aiming to respond to ESG matters that are
relevant to the stakeholders and our operations.

~

(
Materiality EE

Through regular communication regularly
with stakeholders, we strike to better
understand their concerns about sustainability
issues that affect them. Based on the results
of the communication, we re-examine and
confirm the material issues of this report.
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4 i
Balance ¥

In order to disclose our ESG performance in

an impartial manner, we maintain a balance
of reporting and disclosure of the progress
and ongoing challenges in the key areas.
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Quantitative E1t
We have developed data collection procedures
to record and monitor ESG metrics with the
coordination of the ESG working group.
Where applicable, this report discloses the
guantitative data for the year to allow
stakeholders to understand our performance.
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Consistency — & 1% B
In accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide
of the Stock Exchange, the quantitative
information in this Report has been prepared
in a consistent manner to allow readers to
compare with the previous reports of

the Company.
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1.6 Feedback

This report is published in both Chinese and English. If there
is any discrepancy, the English version shall prevail. Your
feedback will help us to improve the content disclosed in the
report and you are welcome to provide us with your valuable
comments.

SECTION 2 SUSTAINABLE STRATEGY

2.1

Sustainable Development Goals
The Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) are a collection of

17 interlinked goals designed to be a “blueprint to achieve a
better and more sustainable future for all”, and are intended
to be achieved by the year 2030. According to the
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) issued by the United
Nations, progress on more than 50% of targets of the SDGs
is weak and insufficient; on 30%, it has stalled or gone into
reverse. These include key targets on poverty, hunger and
climate. The COVID-19 pandemic and the triple crises of
climate change, biodiversity loss and pollution are having a
devastating and lasting impact. This has been amplified by
Russia’s invasion of Ukraine, which has driven increases in the
prices of food and energy and in the cost of access to
finance, creating a global cost-of-living crisis affecting billions
of people. The financial services industry is considered as a
vital enabler for the real economy and could support
improved economic well-beings through prosperity under the
SDGs 7 to 11. It also positively influences ESG practices of
investee companies under SDGs 13 to 16. Investing in
renewable energy (SDGs 7,13) and other infrastructure
projects (SDGs 6,9) can also meet demands of impact
investors.
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We have identified the priorities for the SDGs related to the RMEmMrEAEEEKBERNTHESR
Group’s operations and integrated them to better guide REEELEE UHEEES LNEHH
ESG-related activities. BERE e REGEBEE -

The Group’s actions that are aligned with SDGs

SDGs A/ E#ER AR AKENTHEUTREARREE -

mg‘mﬁmﬂs Goal 3- good health We continue implemented a series of guidelines and
and well-being measures to ensure the safety of employees, and spared no
_A/\/\' B1R3 - RIFEEREBAL effort to prevent and control the pandemic.

BMEBLZE —RIREBEEILZE2MN A REK 20K
IR IBERIE T AE

Goal 5 - gender equality This is achieved by recognizing the importance of creating

BiE5- HRIEE and maintaining a culture of inclusion in our workplace and
implementing female and family-friendly incentives.
RERE AR BMRBINEIESMEERER &
BAEXCWEEMN - WiEEHIm LR KER T RS -

Eégm\'nﬂggmu Goal 8 - decent work We strive to maintain a suitable workplace for all employees,
and economic promote economic growth and create more job
/\/" growth opportunities. Please refer to the Section 4.2 “Health and
‘I BiZ 8- 8m T{EM Safety” for further details.
B BB I RMAERERE —ESBNIIESHA  REKLHE
R VEIEEEHERS -FEF2H42/RFER R
— & e
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2.2 Management Approach and Structure
An efficient management structure and regular communication

with

stakeholders are important to lead our sustainable

development. An ESG management structure has been

developed with a dedicated ESG Working Group in place to

ensure the effective implementation of ESG policies and

measures. We gather the feedbacks and expectations of

internal and external stakeholders through regular

engagement. This helps us to evaluate our operations, mitigate

the ESG-related risks and seize business opportunities.

2.2.1

222

Board statement on oversight and
management of ESG Issues

Below is the statement from the Company’s Board of
Directors (the "Board”) explaining the oversight of ESG
issues and how the Group approaches the management
of ESG issues.

Governance Structure and Board’s Oversight

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG
strategy and reporting. It provides oversight of ESG
issues with an emphasis on the Group’s long-term
development and positioning, through the Sustainability
Governance Structure outlined below.

Sustainability Governance Structure

The Board is responsible for steering our ESG’s overall
direction. The Executive Committee is charged with the
responsibility to guide the ESG Working Group in
implementing ESG policies and measures, and oversees
the running of our ESG system.
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Responsible party 8& %5 Core responsibility #Z /0 EE

It
N
i

Shareholders and other Stakeholders

R R E A AR

Board of Directors o Provides strategic advice to the Executive Committee
BExg MATEEGRHEERER

Executive Committee o Implements ESG-related procedures and internal control
WITEE® measures

WMITIRE e RERHBRERF MABIES

o Oversees work of the ESG working Group
EERE #HelkBARAIENENTIE

o Approves ESG Reports, and ensures the accuracy of the key
performance indicator data

EHRRR HENEAME  UBREREZIEZRHED

M
ESG Working Group o Facilitates the implementation of ESG policies across
R g RERIENE business units

EBEXHMAEAERRE  HEREABRR

o Collates ESG key performance indicator data

EIRRE 48 MEAHRABIEREIR

o Prepares ESG Reports
REIRE g REBWRE

o Reports to the Executive Committee on the implementation
status of ESG initiatives
MATEEEREABRE L RESBENNITER

The Sustainability Governance Structure is mainly RBEEEETAEBIEHBENMISENR
supported by the ESG Working Group, constituted by AR @ REBTIE A
senior representatives from a cross-section of 2R E R

departments. The structure also includes:

e Executive Committee; e HWITEZBG:
. Risk Management Working Group reporting to the . EBEEI(NE ERmEfFe s
Board and Audit Committee. MEEeER -
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2.2.3 ESG Management Approach and Strategy

The Board approved the Sustainability Framework
including sustainability priorities, as well as the
long-term sustainability goals and targets for each of
the sustainability priorities, after taking into
consideration such factors as international benchmarks
and best practices.

The approved Sustainability Framework covers the
following four sustainability priorities:

o Climate Resilience: Adapt to climate change and
decarbonize the business

° Resource Management: Optimize the use and
management of natural resources (energy, water
and materials)

o Well-being: Sustain a healthy, inclusive and safe
environment and promote social wellbeing

o Sustainable Investment and ESG Investing:
Promote sustainability practices in investment

Our Environmental Policy

2231 Policy Statement
We are committed to minimising the
environmental impacts of their business. Good
business practices can have a fundamental effect
on environmental protection. We seek to conduct
its activities in an environmentally responsible
manner and to develop a range of management
practices aimed at promoting sustainable
development.

2232 Sustainable Development
We endeavor to achieve a high standard of
environmental care in developing its business and
to give due consideration to environmental risks
that would damage the natural and built
environment in conducting its business. We
believe that such conduct would add value to us
and our stakeholders, and contribute to the
enhancement of the environment and the
well-being of the society.
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2233 Management Practices
We seek to implement sound environmental
programmes that use resources more efficiently
and effectively. These include the following:

o Promote energy efficiency

° Improve consumption of materials to reduce
waste generation and dispose of waste in an
environmentally acceptable manner

° Promote recycling and the use of recycled or
environmentally friendly materials

. Give preference to suppliers and contractors
who adopt environmentally friendly practices

° Meet all relevant environmental, health and
safety laws and regulations

o Support environmental initiatives, partly
through our community programmes

2234 Promoting Environmental Awareness
We seek to promote public awareness of the
importance of environmental protection and of
the responsibility of management, employees and
other stakeholders to work in partnership for the
benefit of the environment. It is committed to
communicating environmental practices externally.

2.2.4 Investment Operations
The Group believes that its sustainable performance is
linked to good environmental practices and pays
attention to environmental factors in its decision-making

processes.

We strive to incorporate environmental risk assessments
into investment decisions. Investees are expected to
fulfil the appropriate compliance obligations applicable
to their business.
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All employees are encouraged to conduct their duties in
an environmentally responsible manner. The Group’s
environmental policy was approved by the Board of
Directors and forms an integral part of its corporate
social responsibility. Senior executives are tasked with
its implementation. The environmental policy will be
monitored and periodically reviewed in the light of new
developments.

ESG risks and opportunities to the Company are
identified by the ESG Working Group. ESG risks are
managed by the Risk Management Working Group and
ESG opportunities are addressed by the relevant
departments and functions.

2.2.5 Review of Progress and Relevance to Business
The Sustainability Framework, sustainability priorities,
long-term sustainability goals and targets, and KPIs are
set with reference to the Group’s principal business in
the Investment sector. The Board reviews progress on
the implementation of the sustainability goals and
targets with reference to the KPIs principally through
regular reporting of the ESG Working Group to the
Executive Committee.

2.3 Materiality Assessment
An internal materiality assessment was conducted by our ESG

Working Group together with the senior management. We
have taken into our account of the following factors:

a. overall mission and, corporate values, policies and
procedures manual, its risk management framework,
risk register and related studies/analyses.

b. Laws, regulations, international agreements, or
voluntary agreements of strategic significance to the
Company.

c.  Main topics and future challenges for the investment
companies, particularly considering relevant guidance
and resources.
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Regarding external materiality assessment, stakeholder

engagement is an important tool that a company can use to

identify, develop and achieve accountable and strategic

responses to ESG issues. In order to understand the

significant operational subjects that are sufficiently concerned
by the stakeholders, our ESG Working Group adopted a
systematic approach of identification, prioritization and

review and conduct surveys or interviews with internal and

external stakeholders to identify the sufficiently important

and relevant ESG issues which are the sustainable focuses

that the Group needs to pay close attention.

The following flowchart summarizes the materiality analysis

process:

BRI EZMENG  EF—HEEFR
AMNERBESE  HAEPARRERE
HekERZEE# HEREEAER
ARBUENEE - STHEMNZHEEETD
FENBEAKERE - HPINERE L&k
ERTENEAD R —ERSEMREA
BEEFREES L WHAINPF A
MEETHESETA  ABERNER
RAEBENENRE He8REAHE  &F
FZESAEEFTETYAINATHEER
B

BA T 57 A2 B 1 28 5 4 032

Updated ESG issues based on the results of the internal materiality assessment

and the Company’s previous ESG Report with reference to the HKEX's ESG

Reporting Guide, non-financial disclosure of the peers and focus areas of

IDENTIFICATION

media coverage

Bl N N R I s s o .
; RENBESHTEARRAATRENEE  HEREARS  W2EES
BRPT CRIE - g RERWREES) AEFVBEERBARERREN
BEEE - FHIRE g RELHEE
ASSESSMENT Collected the materiality scores of ESG issues rated by both internal and
ey external stakeholders mainly through a questionnaire survey

TERBHSHE - WERINSNEBEELRE HEREHENERNK

A5

Based on the responses to “importance to stakeholders” and “importance to

PRIORITISATION
BrHF

ERMRRENTEAZR

the Company” the materiality scores of stakeholders were compiled, each and
every ESG issue ranked and the results presented in a materiality matrix

RipY [HNEHEEENEENE] M
HEAENEZETS

[HRARMEBEEN] AFEE  BEMNS

HE-ERR LS RERMEBEETHF  LHERN

After an analysis of the results, a further review was conducted by the ESG

CONFIRMATION
R

Working Group

BRI @ hBERTHENMBERETHTERBIFE—TES

We have identified four material topics: “Climate Change”,

“Development and Training”, “Anti-corruption” and

“Community Investment”. Going forward, we will enhance our

ESG management and strive to optimize our ESG performance.
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2.4 Stakeholders Engagement
Stakeholders are entities or individuals that can reasonably be

expected to be significantly affected by our activities; and/or
whose actions can reasonably be expected to affect our
ability of to successfully implement our strategies and achieve
our objectives.

Our external stakeholder groups mainly include: Investors/
shareholders/members, Suppliers/business partners,
Employees, Government and regulators, Non-government
organisations (“NGOs"”) and lobby groups, Local
communities, Competitors/peers and/or Experts and
specialists (e.g. professional/industry associations and
academia). If the ESG Working Group does not have the
resources to contact representatives from every stakeholder
group, we focus on key stakeholders only.

The following table outlines the expectations and demands of
major stakeholders and related communication channels:

Expectation and

Major communication

demand on of ESG
HIRE - HE
HERER

RERN

\

MR E SR

i 25 RETAREBRRMOES
EBBEVE R RATHTABEY
B BRI TR RIERK B B8
NEOEBXERIAL

m

D

TAIEHNED ) 2= $HF§%E¥ EFE|EE
BE/RR/ S8 HEREBHBHYE

B8 : E&}T&WM&% JEB AL ([9E
BAT4EE]) R EEE s A @ B|F
HF RE: R/ RERPINEE ER
HEREE) - WRE g kERIEN
M ERERF AT RN = EEE RS
MAREK  BMREFREZHEEEE -

TERBREZ N
KRB ARE

5 E B E R B B I B SRIA

Communication

and responses

RERERE

Stakeholder channels

FzHEE IREERE

Employees Regular meetings o

&S plg
Performance appraisal o
BUER
Trainings
= o
Employee caring activities
BERELY
Office pub||cat|ons/ema|ls
WAZHRY,EF
Online learning
EREE

Shareholders Members' general °

and investors meetings

RERREE eV N .
Annual and interim reports
FERERPHERE
Shareholders meetings °
e+

Corporate official website e

REE M

Remuneration and benefits o
8 R

Career Development and
Training opportunities .
BERRLEIIKE

Anti-corruption

RERF

Financial Performance 0
IEERH

Corporate Transparency o
Risk Control

REEAE R R
Development and Training
BR LA
Anti-corruption

R&S

Community Investment

HtREE .

Encourage participation in
continuous training
HE2 AR
Competitive salary and
benefits

ABFNOFE REH

Improve profitability
HERMEN

Regular publication of NAV
per share and routine
information disclosure on
the website of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange
EHRREREEFER
PN B 2 P AR Ut B R 1
TERRE

Strive to improve risk
management and internal
control systems
BhERREE RN
ERZG
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Expectation and

Major communication demand on of ESG Communication
Stakeholder channels HIRIE  HERERD and responses
FzmRE IREERE HERFR BEREE
Service providers . Regular meetings . Development and Training Promote timely
and suppliers e BRE R communication
PR 1R 48 % A PE 7 . Emails o Anti-corruption REREER
BFHMHF k&S . Fulfil contractual
o Regular review and o Community Investment obligations
feedback HRRE Bi1a08%
EHRERRE . Build responsible supply
. Corporate official website chain
NGIEWE BUMEEEE
Governments and . Websites of Government . Compliance of laws and . Adhere to the laws and
regulatory bodies and regulatory bodies regulations regulations
HBBRREERE BT R BB R HEERER EERER
. Anti-corruption . Pay and tax and duties in
k&S full on time
. Pay tax and duties in K2R E
accordance with the law
i il
Communities and o Charity donations U Community Investment J Participate in charity
Non-governments Zr=iom HERE activities
organisations (NGOs) g Sponsorships . Giving back to society REZETH)
HERERFAS 28] EELE . Committed to charities
o Visits to NGOs o Environmental protection BWVAREE
BlEE BR o Adhere to green operation
. Volunteer activities and reduce the usage of
SRELY fuel
BT e BB RAD I
A
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Materiality Matrix

During the year, the Group identified a number of
environmental, social and operating-related issues, and
assessed their importance to stakeholders and the Group,
mainly through surveys and interviews. These assessments
helped the Group to ensure that its development could be in
line with stakeholders’ expectations, and demands. The
matters of concern are set out in the following materiality
matrix:

ShERERME (BIFIZSHEEAENEENY)

External assessment (importance to stakeholders)

EEMERE

RER AEEERHZHRE HE8R
EERERE YETEBEBAERFAK
A E M EE R SR E R A KRB
ERR -REFEEASEEREESH
RENTENDARENRELRTL - H
TAEBRENUATEE B

Materiality Matrix
EEMIERE

[ ]
at = =
B3 B8

B7
Development and Anti-Corruption Community Investment
Training R&F HERE

BRRIE

PEOBAEA

Labour Standard
S TER

B e

Al
Emissions  Use of Resources The Environment and Climate Change
B BiREH Nature Resources RRE(L
RERRARR °
H
- @
. fm g a
B6 B5 B2
Product Responsibility Supply Chain Management Health and Safety
HTER HrEEERE REEZ2
Internal assessment (importance to the Group)
AERE (HARBHNEEM)
[ 4
QEnvironment RIE A} Employment 1& &

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility: N/A

a@ Operations & &
F

EHB6 : EmEE : TE&
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The subject areas in the above table used the taxonomy in the ESG
Reporting Guide issued by the HKEX for Environment (subject area
A) and Social (subject area B) areas. Detail of which can also be
found at the content index set out on pages 84 to 94 of this
report.

SECTION 3 OUR ENVIRONMENT

We are committed to balancing operations and environment
protection, and aim to contribute to a green and environmental-
friendly society through energy conservation and emissions
reduction.

In order to fulfil the corporate citizen responsibilities, the Group
strives to promote sustainability and continuously employ new
technologies and new measures to minimize the environmental risk
and impact of its business operations, thus achieving sustainable
development. The Group strictly complies with all applicable
environmental laws and regulations. During the year, there were
no cases of violation of relevant regulations or code of conduct
within the Group.

3.1 Environmental Responsibility
3.1.1 Management policy

The Group's office operations do not directly generate
significant air emissions, hazardous waste or waste
water discharge and thus environmental issues are
identified to be non-material aspects. The most
common emission from our daily business activities is
greenhouse gas (“GHG") emission, mainly generated
from the consumption of purchased electricity and the
fuel.

Environmental protection is very important for our
sustainable development. The environmental
management system is spearheaded by the ESG
Working Group in accordance with our environmental
policy. Our policy strives to achieve a high standard of
environmental care in developing our business and to
give due consideration to environmental risks that
would damage the natural and built environment in
conducting our business.
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3.1.2

3.1.3

Management practices are implemented to control GHG
emissions and reduce the generation of both hazardous
and non-hazardous wastes, so as to minimize the
environmental risk and impact of the Company’s
operations.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
During the year, the Group was not aware of any
non-compliance of environmental laws and regulations
in Hong Kong that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to emissions of waste gases and
greenhouse gases, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes. We were not subject to any
punishment for violating applicable laws and
regulations.

Energy conservation

As energy consumption accounts for a major part of the
Group’s GHG emissions, we seek to implement sounds
environmental practices that can achieve energy
conservation.

We promote energy efficiency by deploying natural light
and use energy-saving lightings, where feasible. Our
conference room windows can allow more natural
sunlight to go in and reduce the use of LED lighting.
Refrigerator is kept away from sunlight and well
ventilated. The air filters of air-conditioners are cleaned
regularly to improve cool air flow efficiency. We have
implemented switch off light policy and used energy
consumption equipment (e.g. computer will be switched
automatically while not in use). Energy saving mode of
vehicles is also compulsorily activated.

BRERERER  EHREREH
W*ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂﬁiﬁxwm3$
Mg AR B LLEBHHIRFER R
FTERERIE -
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3.1.4 Waste reduction 314D EY

We have implemented procedures to ensure proper
disposal of solid waste and reduce waste at sources.
The Group’s wastes are mainly classified into two
categories in its business, including general wastes and
recyclable wastes. The Group does not generate any
hazardous waste in the ordinary course of business
because of our straightforward office operation.

3.1.4.1 Waste of electrical and electronic equipment
Computers or office’s electrical and electronic
equipment are well maintained to prolong life
span. Staffs are encouraged to recycle the
electrical and electronic waste through EPD
assigned recyclers. Thus, the waste is not material.

3.1.4.2 Other office wastes
Staffs are encouraged to reuse stationeries, e.g.,
paper clips, folders, binders, envelopes. Recycling
bins to separate papers, metal and plastic are
available at office. We also encourage our staff to
avoid the consumption of paper cups and other
disposable utensils.

3.1.4.3Paper reduction

For environmental protection, we implement
policies to reduce the use of paper. We promote
electronic communications and “think before you
copy” attitude and encourage our employees to
use both sides of the paper for printing and
copying. We adopt double-sided printing and
photocopying. Sending email is suggested instead
of letters or fax when possible and the E-fax
system was adopted without fax printing.
Clouding computing system is used for access of
emails.
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3.1.5

3.1.6

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the Waste Disposal Ordinance and other applicable
laws and regulations that have a significant impact
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharging into water and land, generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste of the Group
during the year.

No fines or non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations had been reported in
the year.

Emissions

The Group’s core business does not directly generate
significant air emissions. The greenhouse gases include
carbon dioxide, and nitrogen oxides, which can trap the
heat energy radiated from the Earth. The increasing
concentrations of greenhouse gases have led to global
warming. The most common emission from its daily
business activities is greenhouse gas (“GHG") and is
mainly generated from the consumption of purchased
electricity and the fuel consumed from the use of motor
vehicles.

Fuel consumption of motor vehicles is currently the
major sources of air pollutants which include nitrogen
oxides (“NOx"), sulphur oxides (“SOx") and particulate
matter (“PM") emissions. The calculation of each
emission in the following table is mainly based on the
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs issued by
the HKEX and the approximate estimation of kilometers
travelled by vehicles. The fuel consumption mainly
comes from the use of vehicles. During the year, the
number of company cars has been reduced to two.
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1 75 7 BE 55 R 2L e BE HE K

Gaseous Emissions from the Use of Mobile Combustion

Sources

Environmental Performance Year 2024 Year 2023
RIRRH —E-mE —=—-=
NOx AED Kg T 4.82 12.71
SOx maly Kg T3 0.08 0.24
PM SERL ) Kg T3 0.35 0.93
GHG emission Year 2024 Year 2023
mERBEHER —EolmE —2=-=
GHG emission (Scope 1) BEREHER (SEE)
It represents the petrol and R BIEH LA tCO e 15.73 4417
diesel consumption from YU RSB FE © %ﬂ: i 2
company cars and vessel.
GHG emission (Scope 2) RERBHER (EE2)
It represents the electricity ERENHERES tCO,e 8.49 9.72
purchased from power K E e o E — %1& T
suppliers.
Total GHG emissions BERBHREE tCO e 24.22 53.90
%ﬂ: & =
Average number of employees FRFHEE A& Employee 14 14.5
for the year ==
GHG emission intensity BERBIERRE tCO Le/Employee 1.73 3.72

—ftmEE
EE
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3.1.7 Environmental performance of waste and

reduction target

The Group does not generate hazardous waste
including chemical wastes, clinical wastes and
hazardous chemicals in its operations.

Non-hazardous wastes produced are mainly general
office consumables and are not material., We handle
the wastes using the 4Rs rules, and as explained in
Section 3.2.1 wastes are kept to be a low level. As such,
no relevant figure is quantified in view of its
immateriality, and no reduction target has been set.

3.1.8 Target for reduction of emissions

The emission factor for electricity utilization in Hong
Kong was 0.39 for 2024. The total GHG emissions for
Scope 1 and Scope 2 recorded 24.22 tonnes CO,e for
2024.

In 2024, the ESG working group has reviewed our
emission situation and recommended a target reduction
for financial year 2025 in the range of 2% to 4% per
annum. The Company is encouraged to reduce the
Scope 1 emission through the lower usage in petrol for
transport.
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3.1.8.1Decarbonization measures

Since the Group’s business does not involve any
manufacturing activities, combustion of fuels in
company cars is our major source for direct
emissions under Scope 1 and electricity purchased
from power companies is the major source for
indirect emissions under Scope 2. As the total
carbon emissions is insignificant, and the following
abatement measures may be implemented when
appropriate:

1. To incorporate low-carbon criteria in
procurement specifications

2. To further the green office procedures as
mentioned in 3.3 below

3. To replace company cars to electric/
zero-emissions vehicles

3.1.9 Waste collection and storage points are set up to collect

recyclable and non-recyclable waste separately.
Currently, the quantity of the waste is not material.

3.2 Resources Conservation
3.2.1 Management policy

The Group grasps every opportunity to encourage its
employees in supporting green initiatives in daily
operations and incorporate environmental sustainability
into our business operation.

The implementation of 4Rs rule can reduce the use of
resources and the 4Rs rule refers to reduce, reuse,
recycle and replace.

Reduce means reducing the use of resource that helps
reducing the generation of wastes. We encourage our
staff to buy office supplies with less package and
reduce the use of disposable items (e.g. paper cups,
paper plates), polystyrene foam lunch boxes and non-
rechargeable batteries.
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Reuse means use the items again or for more than one
purpose. Our staff is encouraged to use both sides of
paper for writing and printing, and wash and reuse
plastic and glass containers. Recycle means changing
waste material into usable goods. Recycling of wastes
can maximize the use of resources, decrease the rate of
exhaustion of resources and reduce the pollution.

We have recycling bins in place to collect waste paper,
plastic bottles and aluminum can separately. Replace
means the use of recycled or environmentally friendly
materials to replace the disposable or wasteful
products.

3.2.2 Energy and resource consumptions for the

BERERAZERRERY MK ER
REMBEEN - RMZEETERER
ERMINE  WEXRMEERERER
KBRS - MU IEIEREE M &
X8 R E) Pan o BE W) &Y B WoR A A
N KRENAER - FEERK
HRER KR A ITR

BB LYW - DRl ERER - 2

B E - B R EREREKEIER
R ER— R ER -

32 FREEMERRKRERHEF

Group
Environmental Performance Year 2024 Year 2023
RIERH —RlF ===
Electricity consumption AE kWh T FL B 21,774 24,931
Average number of employee ~ ERFHEE AZ  Employee (€8 14 14.5
for the year
Electricity intensity FAERE kWh/employee 1,555 1,719
TERE BB
Fuel Consumption MARLERE Litres AFt 5,369 16,007
Average number of FRFHEEAZ  Employee EE 14 14.5
employee for the year
Fuel intensity AR R S Litres/employee 384 1,104
2/ BE
Water Consumption ==FI3 M3 32 75 K 18 27
Average number of FAFHEEAEH  Employee EE 14 14.5
employee for the year
Water intensity K& E M3/employee 1.32 1.86
SNAKEE
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3.2.3 Energy use efficiency target 3.23BEMERE

The target for the two financial years 2023 and 2024 CECCER-TE-NMEREVRE
were set to reduce the 3-year average energy EMEERBE=FETHHEEREK%
consumption by 5% (i.e. about 2.5% per year) and in (BB FEH25%) M TFERHABEZE
the long term of 10 years, the reduction target is about K FE R D 4925%E30% o —F
25% to 30% of the average level. The overall reduction __¢)§Z_f R AR R R
for the years 2023 and 2024 was met. The electricity EEER - HEEHR-ZT-=F
consumption decreased from 24,931 kWh in 2023 to E’]24,931:Fﬁﬁqﬂ9§:f%ﬁfﬂiﬁ’ﬂ
21,774 kWh in 2024. We will continue to maintain the 21,774 F FLEF - IS A 18 &9 B R
reduction target plan of 5% in the coming financial FENEBEEFFZS%RFER Z5E -
years.

3.2.4 Water conservation

32488 AK

Our water consumption is not material and we
implement 4Rs rules to reduce its consumption. Water
Pollution Control Ordinance has been closely monitored
and the water consumption was decreased from 27M?3
to 18M? during the year. A 3% to 5% annual reduction
to the average consumption level will be targeted by
2030. We will review the target and review the
possibilities to change it, as and when appropriate. We
have saved water by: a) turning off the water tap
promptly, b) checking for water leakage from taps or
pipes; and ¢) by keeping the water level in toilet tanks
to a minimum to reduce spillage.

3.2.5 We are not engaged in any manufacture of goods,

and there is no packaging material used for
finished products.
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3.3 Green Office 33 #ERA
3.3.1 Management policy 330 BEKE
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We are committed to sustainability by seeking to reduce
the environmental impact of our operations, with a
particular focus on the reduction of greenhouse gas
emissions and conservation of resources. We
incorporate environmental responsibility into our daily
operations through the implementation of green
operation and green procurement policies to reduce the
environmental impact and consumption of natural
resources. We will continue to study the possible ways
to reduce emissions, including the use of electric
vehicles as replacement.

CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024

BRMBRFAIFEER - IRV ED
HIRBENEE  BFIFERIEER
BUERMEGHNER - BMBRRET
MABRKE BAERSGECEEN
FERBEEK  WRLEHRENTE
LR RAEREERE - BPIEEET
FRARERREE S L BIEFERASE A
HIEAENRE -



3.3.2

333

334

3.4.1

Environmental management system

To properly manage the office and effectively implement
environmental policies, we actively implement an
environmental management system, in an effort to
ensure compliance with relevant regulations, improve
environmental performance, and prevent environmental
pollution.

Promoting environmental protection

The Group encourages all employees to participate in
different kinds of recycling activities and reduce the use
of natural resources. We also update our management
and staff on the ESG requirements through attending
online training sessions as provided by the HKEX and
other related bodies.

During the year, there is no significant impact on the
environment and natural resources from the operations.
Employees are well-informed of our green measures
through the regular circulation of relevant information
to advocate their awareness and behavioral change.

Ecological conservation

We support environmental efforts, including protecting
biodiversity, reducing ecological footprint and raising
awareness of climate change. The Group has
implemented various measures to protect water
resources and reduce waste. The Group will continue to
encourage green office and resources conservation in
order to contribute to the sustainable development of
mankind.

3.4 Measures for Climate Change

Management policy

The Group is concerned about climate change issues
and strives to take measures to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions from business operations in order to combat
climate change. To illustrate our strong determination,
we have reduced from the staff’'s business travel and
the related Scope-3 indirect emission.

We carry out local procurement, use environment-friendly
materials to reduce the carbon footprint and impact on
climate change of our operations, so as to create an
ideal living place for our next generation.
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3.4.2 Climate-related financial disclosures of our 342 B MEREHABERENVEIRE
investments

Climate change is often cited as a leading WHRIEEEMS  /lEELEEHR

environmental priority for investors and due
consideration should be made to the climate-related
risks including transition risks and physical risks. We
support the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures (“TCFD") and our second set of TCFD report
was included in this annual report.

RERBEBENREZRNEREZ —
thEZEZEREARER S8
ERBREERRER - B RIEE
R TS B EE T1E/ B (TTCFDY) - 4
BE —MTCFDRECMALRFR -

SECTION 4 OUR PEOPLE FIHRMOAT
4.1 Talent Management 41 ANAER
4.1.1 Management policy 411 EBHER

74

We understand that it is essential to have a high-quality
and moral team of management to maintain
operational efficiency and improve overall performance
Our business success depends on our ability to attract,
retain and cultivate employees. Each employee is an
important family member to us and we strive to provide
employees with a work-life balance environment, in the
hope that they can firmly stand with the Group to
create the future together. The Group is committed to
creating a fair and comfortable working environment.

Management policies have been formulated in strict
compliance with relevant labour laws in Hong Kong.
They cover Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and
relevant laws and regulations in respect of employees’
compensation, recruitment, promotion, dismissal,
working hours, holidays, equal opportunities, diversity,
anti-discrimination, benefits and welfare, so as to fully
protect and respect employees’ rights and create an
ideal workplace for employees.

4.1.2 Compliance with laws and regulations

During the year, the Group complied with applicable
local laws and regulations on compensation, recruitment,
promotion, dismissal, working hours, holidays, equal
opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination, benefits and
welfare, child labour and forced labour. There were no
major employee or labour disputes that disrupted our
normal business operations, nor were we subject to any
punishment for violating applicable laws and regulations.
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4.1.3 Recruitment and remuneration

Human resources are the valuable assets and
indispensable to our Company. We are committed to
providing our staff a fair and equitable workplace
where they are treated equally in every aspect of their
work or employment and the staff is motivated to grow
with our Company and meet our company goals to
strive for the excellence in the industry.

We adopt fair and non-discriminatory recruitment
policies and comply with the requirements of the
ordinances of the Anti-discrimination and Personal Data
and Privacy aiming to recruit the appropriate and
qualified staff to grow with the Company.

Based on the market rates and benefits, we offer
reasonable and competitive salary to attract candidates
to join us and retain them. We strictly adhere to the
statutory requirements as stated in the relevant
employment laws, ensuring the rights and interests of
our staff being properly protected.

4.1.4 Equal opportunity and diversity

The Group is committed to creating an inclusive and
non-discriminatory workplace, providing equal
opportunities for all employees regardless of gender,
age, nationality, religion, sexual orientation or physical
fitness, and giving fair consideration to all job
applicants.

We follow the principles of fairness, impartiality and
openness to recruit and promote the right employees
and never discriminate against job applicants on the
grounds of race, colour, social status, place of birth,
nationality, religion, disability, gender, sexual
orientation, trade union membership, political position
or age. We prohibit the employment of child labour in
accordance with relevant standards and regulations.
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4.1.5 Protection of rights and interests ANSREFRERRE

We continually review the employee compensation
policy to ensure that employee compensation can be in
tandem with the Company’s performance. We believe
that employees should be rewarded fairly based on their
contribution, and provide attractive compensation and
benefits to employees. In addition, each employee may
resign by giving a reasonable period’s notice.

The Code of Practice Human Resources Management
issued by the Office of the Privacy Commissioner for
Personal Data has also been observed when handling
employment-related data.

BT EEEEBH MR  BRIE
BHEMERAREERISEE - KR
BEGEEMNERGTATER I
AlEEBREF RS DHH I REF -
gtoh - EE A BIBIEAIE LA EHR
3R AN 9T B o
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4.1.6 Employee communication 416 EEENEB

Cohesion among employees is a key driving force for
corporate development, and good communication
channels with employees serve as the cornerstone of
the Group’s operations. Accordingly, we set up channels
to collect employees’ opinions, actively listen to their
opinions and suggestions, and take timely measures in
response to matters of high concern to employees to
protect their interests.

BETIRBNRCEZROBES N -
HETRFERIFNBEAERNEERFIAN
BENEA - Bt HFASESR
BEREEER BRENEENER
M WRKEREHEBEE TS
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4.1.7 Staff composition 417ETARK

As at 31 December 2024, we employed a total of 15
employees, and all of them were located in Hong Kong.

Senior Staff

RZZE-_WNFE+-_A=+—H8 &R
AARERISRES  REHURE
/’%

General Staff

SHRET —RET
No. of staff No. of Staff
BTI#H BETI&H
41-50 41-507% 0 0 0 0
50 or above 50578 PA | 8 100 7 100
Total RET 8 100 7 100

Senior Staff

General Staff

BRET —mRET
By gender No. of staff No. of Staff
1 Bl ETHH ETHH
Female Z 3 38 3 43
Male 5 5 62 4 57
Total s 8 100 7 100
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As at 31 December 2023, we employed a total of 13
employees, and all of them were located in Hong Kong.

Senior Staff

RZZE-_=F+-A=+—H  AQ7
EHERI3BEES  HEHURES -

General Staff

BRET —mRET
No. of staff No. of Staff
ETIT#HAH EI&H
41-50 41-505% - - - -
50 or above 50578 A | 8 100 5 100
Total BET 8 100 5 100

Senior Staff

General Staff

SRET —®RET
By gender No. of staff No. of Staff
4 5l BTIT#HH ETIT#H
Female 4 3 38 2 40
Male s 5 62 B 60
Total FEE 8 100 5 100

4.1.8During the year ended 31 December 2024, there was
no turnover.

4.2 Health and Safety 4.2
4.2.1 Management policy

We implement various policies and measures to
maintain a safe and healthy workplace for the
employees. We value safety and take effective measures
to reduce safety risks. In accordance with laws and
regulations, we have formulated a set of appropriate
safety management programs, including hazard
identification and risk assessment and control, in order
to reduce and control potential occupational safety and
health hazards in business operations. We strictly abide
by the relevant safety laws and regulations. During the
year, there was no case of the prosecution against the
Group for violation of occupational safety-related laws.
Good housekeeping is essential to the maintenance of a
healthy workplace to the employees. Maintaining good
air circulation, we employ registered company to carry
out monthly maintenance service and annual
sterilization to the air conditioners in order to prevent
any possible diseases to be transmitted through the air
conditioning system.
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4.2.2

The Company took precautionary measures and stayed
alert against the disease. We also requested our
colleagues to maintain good personal hygiene.

Compliance with laws and regulations

During the year, the Group complied with the
regulatory requirements for workplace safety in Hong
Kong. We have not suffered any accidents or
complaints that have a material adverse effect on our
operations, nor were we subject to any punishment for
violating applicable laws and regulations.

R A EREUTA P 18 e 3 8 K 0 B AR
FED  RANERFAEREFRTH
BARAE -

422 BFEEER

TR AKEETEBEHEIESH
REMEERTE - RALEZGER
HRMAZEERBEATNEZENEIN
SRR - TN RE IRGE RDA AR N
HEERED °

423 BE=-FUERNTTHER -

4.2.3 During the past three years, there was no work-related
fatalities occurred.

43 IBFIREBR
431 EBBE

4.3 Training and Development
4.3.1 Management policy

78
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We firmly trust that continuous learning and
development can help staff to utilize fully their potential
and it is important to their future career development
and also supports the growth and strengthens the
competitiveness. The department heads will provide on
the job trainings to their new staff and help them to
grasp the job knowledge and duties. The job
performance appraisal will be conducted for the new
staff during the probation for assessing their
performance. Training programs will be planned for the
new staff against the performance assessment.

We provide continuous learning to the staff and
encourage them to attend online trainings or workshops
as provided by external training organisations. To
maintain our staff’'s professionalism and career
development, we support our staff for their continuous
professional trainings.

Orientation training

We provide all new staff with the orientation program
that will help them to know the Company culture, its
rules and regulations and their benefits. On the job
training will be provided to our staff during the term of
their employment.
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4.3.3 ESG training and other trainings
To enhance the ESG investing, training is essential.

4331

4332

ESG training

During the year, our ESG Working Group
encouraged active learning through the self-study
of useful materials, publications, and books,
including the training resources/materials offered
by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. An internal
continuing training system was used, which
allowed our staff to grasp a better understanding
of the ESG issues and keep ourselves abreast of
the relevant knowledge and latest requirements.

Other trainings

Apart from orientation training, we also provide
corporate culture training and professional skills
training to enhance professionalism and achieve
continuous improvement with us. We assess the
training requirements of our staff regularly and
encourage them to receive continuous training in
their respective professions.

4.3.4 The percentages of full-time employees trained in 2024
and 2023 were shown below:

433 RIE - L ERERBFIIREMEI
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e

4331

4332
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By gender -4 k1B

Female pegis 29 22
Male Bk 71 78
By employee category BRESERZ S

Management = 71 56
Senior staff =RET 29 22
General staff —RETL 0 22

FEER 81 2@MARAR | —E-NEFRH



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HERERBHSE

4.3.5 The average training hours completed per full-time
employee in 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Average training hours

per employee

AR3S —E-_NER-_E-_="FEELZ2BE
BRI FEHEEOT

52 &S F 192 I8 8

By gender -4k 1B
Female 4

Male B

By employee category ZRESERZ S
Management EIE[E

Senior mH&RET
General —m®REL

51 17
48 16
42 15
65 31
0 2

4.4 Labour Standards

4.4.1 Management policy and compliance with laws
and regulations
We recruit staff in accordance with the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance and prohibit any form of forced
labour and forced overtime work. During the reporting
period, there were no cases of child labour or forced
labour and we were not aware of any non-compliance
of relevant laws and regulations.

SECTION 5 OUR OPERATION
5.1 Product Responsibility
5.1.1 Management Policy
The Company is an investment company and does not
produce nor sell any products. Product responsibility is
found to be irrelevant to us.
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5.2 Supply Chain Management 5.2 HtESEERE
5.2.1 Management policy 5.2.1 BEHE

We rely on our vendors, agencies and third-party service
providers to support our operation. This enables us to
operate efficiently but potentially exposes us to certain
risks. Suppliers and service providers are also the
important stakeholders in the Group’s business value
chain and are closely connected with us. They mainly
consist of securities brokers, investment management
companies, and other services providers. We maintain
close contact with them to ensure good communication.
As of 2024, we had about 25 suppliers and service
providers in Hong Kong (2023: 30).

Effective supply chain management is vital to safeguard
our business and to promote responsible practices
among companies in our community. For financial
services, we work with reliable third-party service
providers who have demonstrably high corporate
standard. We conduct regular reviews to ensure they
can meet the requirements of our service contracts.

5.2.2 Our procurement

Our procurement of equipment and office supplies
mainly refers to the computers, printer consumable and
stationery. The procurement is normally to be not
material. We review the needs and availability before a
request for purchasing. We prefer to purchase in bulk
to minimize resources utilization in transportation and
packaging wastes generated in transportation.

Regarding supplier and service providers selection,
staffs are encouraged to select local suppliers and this
demonstrates our support for our community, while
eliminating unnecessary transportation can reduce our
impact on the environment.
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5.3 Anti-corruption

5.3.1

53.2

533

Management policy

We are committed to ensuring that no bribes, payment
or advantages are solicited from or given or offered to
any persons, whether in the public or private sector, for
any purpose. We regard honesty, integrity, and fair play
as the core values that must be upheld by our
colleagues at all times.

We establish an internal control system, which provides
the internal supervision, risk control and anti-corruption
management to ensure that our business procedures
are in compliance with local and international laws on
the prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

Improper conduct reporting

We implement improper conduct reporting and our
employees are encouraged to report improper conduct,
fraud and other irregularities. The investigation results
will be submitted to our management in the case of
fraud involving non-senior management personnel, or
to the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee in
the case of fraud involving senior management
personnel.

Compliance with laws and regulations

During the year, the Group abided by all relevant laws
and regulations on the prevention of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering. Neither the Group nor any
of its employees were prosecuted for or convicted of
corruption.

5.3.4 Anti-corruption training
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Training will be provided to new staff and useful
updates of the relevant laws and regulations will also be
made available.
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SECTION 6 OUR COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

6.1

6.2

6.3

Management policy
We strive to build a sustainable community by supporting

local initiatives that create effective and lasting benefits to
the community through corporate philanthropy, establishing
community partnerships, and encouraging our employees to
participate in volunteer work. We contribute to the
communities in which we operate and our policy will be
communicated to the Company’s stakeholders, including our
employees, shareholders, and business partners. We are
committed to the continual development of this policy and its
integration into our operations.

Focus areas of contribution
We strive to be a part of our communities, to serve and

contribute by promoting corporate social responsibility.
During the year, our Chairman was awarded the Medal of
Honour in recognition of his contribution made to the
society.

Our focus areas of community involvement are education,
poverty alleviation, health, the elderly and culture. We will
encourage staff to volunteer their time and core skills to
benefit local communities, which can give our staff the
chance to find out more about the social and environmental
issues and reinforce our corporate values.

6.2.1 During the year, the amount of contributions to Po
Leung Kuk was HK$2,000 (2023: HK$2,000) and the
number of hours that the staff volunteered for charities
or NGOs was 15 (2023: 18).

Nurturing youth
We view education as the cornerstone for maintaining

growth and development in our communities. Our goal is to
support youths to become outstanding leaders and more
importantly lifelong learners who embrace positive social
values. Our Chairman is a philanthropist and contributes his
time and donations to education. He had acted as the school
manager of Lam Man Chan Primary School, which aims to
reinforce student’s capacity for independent learning as well
as bi-literacy.
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CONTENT INDEX OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND ERBEI(RE HERERRE
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE OF THE HONG KONG Eol)RBZES

STOCK EXCHANGE

ESG Reporting
Guide of HKEX

EBBAORIE Description
HERERHEES) MW

Part B: Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

BEfi % : MMEHIIKEBRE

Referring section
in this ESG Report
AR\ - HER
ERBEHEAES

Governance Structure A statement from the Board containing the following
EREE elements:

MEZSHHNENR  ERHEATIAR

(i)  adisclosure of the Board's oversight of ESG issues;
BREEZQHRE HERELAEFENEE:

(i)  the Board’s ESG management approach and
strategy, including the process used to evaluate,
prioritise and manage material ESG-related issues
(including risks to the issuer’s businesses); and
EZTEMNRE e REREERHRRE - BT
it BREFIREBEEZNRE HERECHEBE
H (BEEETAXEBNER) (B2 X

(iii) how the Board reviews progress made against
ESG-related goals and targets with an explanation
of how they relate to the issuer’s businesses.
EZGORIRE g RERIEME SREE
WARFE (A B BT AR TS B RAAE o

Section 1.1 Messages from the

F1.160 Chairman
F E BB
Section 1.2 Our Corporate
$1.260 Values
MR EEEE
Section 1.3  Basis for
%F1.350 Preparation of the
Report
Bl EHEE
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ESG Reporting
Guide of HKEX

BBBXACRIR -

Referring section
in this ESG Report
Description ARE -HER

HEREAHEESD

Reporting Principles

bEE 3R R A

i ot ERBEHEAES

A description of, or an explanation on, the application of Section 1.5
the following Reporting Principles in the preparation of £ 1.560
the ESG report:

Rl FEERGBRE HEMREARERWUMEMT Section 2.3
| BE ¥R R A - 552380

Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: (i) the process Section 2.4
to identify and the criteria for the selection of material %2455
ESG factors; (ii) if a stakeholder engagement is

conducted, a description of significant stakeholders

identified, and the process and results of the issuer’s

stakeholder engagement.

EEM RRE HEREAMEERE : ()BRNEERE -

e hkErEENBREMNERELARNER  (MNE#
THRNELE BEHANEENREEE ORI RETA
NMBEEEE2ENERERER -

Quantitative: Information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools
used, and source of conversion factors used, for the
reporting of emissions/energy consumption (where
applicable) should be disclosed.

=1t AAERBENE RREA (WER) FTARIZRE -
FE - BER/RFETANER  URFEANER
B = H) KR E T HKEE o

Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG report
any changes to the methods or KPIs used, or any other
relevant factors affecting a meaningful comparison.
B BOTARERE HeREARESPRELS
HDENAREVEENEET S EMAEMTEEERLR
M MERE A = -

Reporting Principles

EE 3 JR A

Materiality
Assessment
EEMTE

Stakeholders
Engagement

M AR E 2 8

Reporting Boundary
VEE ¥ &3

A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the Section 1.4
ESG report and describing the process used to identify %1.480
which entities or operations are included in the ESG

report. If there is a change in the scope, the issuer should

explain the difference and reason for the change.

RERIR HeREAMESHWERDE - RHRIER
LERIEBAARE HERELSRENGBE - 5E
HREEFANE  BOARBRETRAZEREHRA -

Reporting Period
and Boundary
W& RS

FEER 81 2MARRAR | —E-NEFER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HERERBRSE

ESG Reporting Referring section

Guide of HKEX in this ESG Report
EBEBRRIE - Description AREBE -HER
HERERBEES) ik ERREHBES

A. Environmental

A. IRIE

Aspect A1: Emissions

BHEA1 : BE

General Disclosure Information on: Section 3.1 Environmental
— R EE (a) the policies; and F3.158 Responsibility

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that RIBEME

have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges 3.1.1 Management policy

into water and land, and generation of hazardous and BB R

non-hazardous waste.

FRABERIREREHEN  MAKELHOBES - BER 3.1.3 Energy conservation

BEBRRVNELSH g B

(@ HBR: Rk

(b) BFHETABEAZENMBEEEER 3.1.4 Waste reduction

B E R o WA REY)

Note: Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other 3.1.5 Compliance with
pollutants regulated under national laws and relevant laws and
regulations. regulations

Mt BREERBER|Y WAt RAEMZEK BTHEBEERER
ERERBENITLRY o
Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide,
methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons,
perfluorocarbons and sulphur hexafluoride.

BRERBBE_SH Tk SR &

e - 2R RSB ©

Hazardous wastes are those defined by national

regulations.

BEREDMEBERBROIRMAESE -
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 3.1.6 Emissions
BB AR IRAL HEpu iR 5 R AR B HE PUBEE - 213587
KPI'A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) 3.1.6 Emissions
8 52 45 WIS 1ZA1.2 greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where BEp

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

B (FBE) RepREE (SE2) AEREFHRE (LANE
FE)R(WER) ZE (MNEEEEN - BIERBTE)
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ESG Reporting Referring section

Guide of HKEX in this ESG Report

EBEBRGRIE - Description ARBE-HER

HERER|EES) #Hik ERREHEES

Aspect A1: Emissions

BHEA1 : BEW

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, 3.1.7 Environmental

52 48 B 1RA1.3 where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production performance of
volume, per facility) waste and reduction
FMEEEEREYESE (UETE) R (WER) ZE (B target
BESEM  BEREHE) - BEEMHRFERER

RRERE

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, 3.1.7 Environmental

R E BB IRA1.4 where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production performance of
volume, per facility). waste and reduction
FTEAEEZEEYEs (WEE) R (ER) ZE (A target
BESEM  BERMETHE) - FEEMHRIFERER

KR RE B

KPI' A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps 3.1.8 Target for reduction

B R 4B B EAT15 taken to achieve them. of emissions
HPTET BV BE 8 B IR R R E R L B IR EREREY 2P 58 - WEE B 1R

KPI'A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous 3.1.6 Emissions

B A TUIEIZA1.6 wastes are handled, and a description of reduction 2387

target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HREBEEEREBEEEEYMN AL - R PTET LR RE
BRERmES BRI -

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EBEA2: EiRER

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including Section 3.2 Resources
— B R energy, water and other raw materials. 53280 Conservation
BERERAER (BREER - KEREMEREMR) HBUR - BIRIRE
Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, 3.2.1 Management policy
transportation, in buildings, electronic equipment, EIBIER
etc.
Hiit - BERFAREE - &7 B BF  EFREF -
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.  3.2.2 Energy and resource
B AR B 1RA2.1 electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity consumptions for
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). the Group
RENESNEER SHEER (WWE - RIUh) #F= REERRLIR
(AFRETERRFE) RBE (MASESEL - BERE K& RH
itE)
FEER 81 2@ARRAR | —E-NEFH 87




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B HEREARS

ESG Reporting Referring section
Guide of HKEX in this ESG Report
EBEBRRIE - Description ARE -HER
HERER|EEL) BERmEHBAES
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of 3.2.2 Energy and resource
R SR 4B BUEIZA2.2 production volume, per facility). consumptions for
BFKEREE (WABESHEM - BIEFRETE) - the Group
NEE R EER
N &R E
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and 3.2.3 Energy use
RARAE SFEIEA2 .3 steps taken to achieve them. efficiency target
R PAET ZEVRERE AR B R R RERELAR R B R
FEREREY 25K -
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing 3.2.4 Water conservation
BA SR A IEIZA2 4 water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) i 49 A 7K

set and steps taken to achieve them.
Fa R EGE /KR ER] B EMFRE - DARATE] 2 89 K e
BRRAEDEL R EAERER P8R o

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in N/A
RAR A SFEIEA2.5 tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit Rig B
produced.
HRmATABEMENEE (AMAE) &k (NER) 84
EEMAE -

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHEA3: RERXAER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on  Section 3.3  Green Office

— iR the environment and natural resources. %F3.350 e
BMEZBTABRRERRAAREREREAZENBR -

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the Section 3.3  Green Office

B8R 4B BB IZA3.1 environment and natural resources and the actions taken £53.3£% RN

to manage them.
Rl EBEHHRERRAERNEAZE LD RINE
BERTENTY -

Aspect A4: Climate Change

BEA4 : RIRE(L

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant Section 3.4 Measures for

— R climate-related issues which have impacted, and those F3.450 Climate Change
which may impact, the issuer. R L
BRIREHERA LR BETAEEZENERARIE & it
HEEEHBUR -

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which Section 3.4 Measures for

R 1A FEIZEAL 1 have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, £3.4%53 Climate Change
and the actions taken to manage them. R 2t &
BB AR EEHBEITAEETENERRIFEBRER H bt
NELTTE ©
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ESG Reporting
Guide of HKEX

Referring section
in this ESG Report

EBEZFORIE Description ARBE-HER
HERERHEES) Wit ERBSHBAEE
B. Social
B. &
Employment and Labour Practices
EBRERETER
Aspect B1: Employment
[EEB1 : ER
General Disclosure Information on: Section 4.1 Talent Management
— AR EE (a) the policies; and 4180 ASEHE
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer 4.1.1 Management policy
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and B IR R
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and 4.1.2 Compliance with
welfare. laws and
ERFHREE BERSEA ITERH - BRE - 5 regulations
2 Zuft REBAREMASRRENA : BFRRIER
(@) B Kk
(b) BFTHBETABERATZEMEBEERER 4.1.3 Recruitment and
K&K} o remuneration
B8 1% s B
4.1.4 Equal opportunity
and diversity
TE#RE RE T
4.1.5 Protection of rights
and interests
REH e R 2 (R
4.1.6 Employee
communication
HifE B HE B
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for 4.1.7 Staff composition
B8 S A5 U8 1B 1 .1 example, full-or part-time), age group and geographical 8 T4
region.
RIER - EEER (MEBFRE) - Ficdn kit =S
DHEEBE -
KPI'B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 4.1.8

FA B4R 51581 .2

geographical region.

SRR - AR R0 E 815 8B B Rk LK -

TEER 81 eMARDE |

—E-MEER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HERERBRSE

ESG Reporting Referring section
Guide of HKEX in this ESG Report

EBEBRRIE - Description AREBE -HER
HERERJ{EES) Wik ERBESEHAER

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2: RREEZZ

General Disclosure Information on: Section 4.2 Health and Safety
—RIFE (@) the policies; and $£4.265 EREEZE
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer 4.2.1 Management policy
relating to providing a safe working environment and EIRIR
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
ERARELZE2IEREAREREBHE#ABEMLEEN : 422 Compliance with
(@) B & laws and
(b) ETFTHBETABERTENEBERER regulations
BB K - BPERER
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in 4.2.3
B4 4B IR 1EB2.1 each of the past three years including the reporting year.
BE=ZF (BRERFE)FFRAITHRNHABRLE -
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 4.2.3
B2 4E W5 15B2.2 ETHEEAIERS-
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures  4.2.1 Management
B 1 48 SIE 12823 adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored. policy
RIRPTER AN B R R RE T 20 - ARMBERITRER EIRER
T e

Aspect B3: Development and Training
[ETEB3 : R M&IEH

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills Section 4.3  Training and
— B R for discharging duties at work. Description of training F4.360 Development
activities. = DN E
BHRRAEEBITILEBRENTBRRAENBE -
Rt SIE S o 4.3.1 Management policy
EIBHE
Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include
internal and external courses paid by the employer. 4.3.2 Orientation training
BfaE - BIEREEY - AIREAEENENRINDRE - AR I
433 ESG training and

other trainings
R%E g RES
& 3 B E At 35
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ESG Reporting
Guide of HKEX

Referring section
in this ESG Report

EBEZFORIE Description ARBE-HER
HERER|EEL) ERmEHBAES
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and 4.3.4
Bl S AR W IE 15831 employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).
BRUERREERF (NEREEE FREEE)SHH
XiEEBDL o
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee 4.3.5
41 48 AN IE 1$B3.2 by gender and employee category.
RIERRESRMNE D  BREBTHRIIIEFHERE -
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EmEB4 : 5T %A
General Disclosure Information on: Section 4.4  Labour Standards
— R EE (@) the policies; and F£4.455 A TR
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer 4.4.1 Management policy
relating to preventing child and forced labour. and compliance
B IEE TR H4 T with laws and
(@) BUR: & regulations
(b) ETFHBETABERTENEBERER EIRBUR &
BWEH - BTERER
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment 4.4.1 Management policy
8 2 45 FIE 12841 practices to avoid child and forced labour. and compliance
R BB S B AR R E T REH 5T - with laws and
regulations
EEBERK
BERER
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices Section 4.4  Labour Standards
5 48 AN IE 15B4.2 when discovered. B4 450 4 TR
MM AEZERERBRREREABRARIN LR
Operating Practices
EEEN
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
JETEBS : HLFESEE R
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of Section 5.2 Supply Chain
— B R the supply chain. 5.2 Management
ERHEENRERMEERERBOR - e
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 5.2.1 Management policy

A $2 48 245 15B5. 1

iR E| D HEEEEE -

EIBHE

FEER 81 2RAMRAR |
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HERERBRSE

ESG Reporting
Guide of HKEX

BBBX AR -
HEREAHEESD

KPI B5.2
B S 4R SR $5 15B5.2

Referring section
in this ESG Report
Description ARE -HER
i U BERmEHBAES

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, 5.2.2
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and

monitored.

M BEARERHEEENEN  mERTEREMNHER

2E ARBEERTRERTE-

Our procurement

MM RE

KPI B5.3
8§ 45 3 F512B5 .3

Description of practices used to identify environmental 52.2
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

MR BEAZBAEEESEARGTNRERESRARNED -
ARAEBMITRERTE -

Our procurement

HFIE R

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally 5.2.2 Our procurement
8 52 45 JIE 1285 .4 preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, TR REE
and how they are implemented and monitored.
MR EREHRERRRESARRERRBRENED - 1A
REARITRERT A -
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
JEMEB6 : EmEE
General Disclosure Information on: 5.1 Product
— R EE (a) the policies; and Responsibility
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that EmET

have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.
FRAMRHERMREONREELZSE  BE  BH
KRB EEARBRITED

(a) BER: &k

(b) BTFHBTAGEATENHBERESR

By o
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to N/A
8§12 4 U5 15B6. 1 recalls for safety and health reasons. i A

EEXRCEXEMAHTELREEMERE MM AR WK
BOL e

KPI B6.2
4 45 512862

Number of products and service related complaints N/A
received and how they are dealt with. A iE A
EEANERERBHORFHEEUREE T -
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ESG Reporting
Guide of HKEX
BHRBXA(RIE

HEREAHEESD

KPI B6.3
A48 M HE 15B6.3

Referring section
in this ESG Report

ARR - HER

Description

it ERmEHBAES
Description of practices relating to observing and N/A

protecting intellectual property rights. N FA

et B MREANBERERNED -

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall N/A

B2 4R AR FE 15B6.4 procedures. g A
HEERTAHEREROKERT -

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy N/A

48 42 45 IE 1ZB6.5 policies, and how they are implemented and monitored. 7~ A
HAEBEERRERLEHE  URBBERITRERS
VA e

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

BHEB7 : RES

General Disclosure Information on: Section 5.3  Anti-corruption

— e EE (a) the policies; and %5.353 R&5

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer 5.3.1
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRAM LB  BR - BEFRARER

Management policy
BRI

(@) EE: Kk 5.3.3 Compliance with
(b) BTFHBETAGEATZENHEBERESR laws and
B EHL regulations
BFERER
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt 5.3.3 Compliance with

7 5 45 AR 1RBT 1

practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
RBEHANEBRTASAEEREYEFTEANEITHA
RHEREE RFRER -

laws and
regulations

BTRRER

KPI B7.2

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing  5.3.2

Improper conduct

78 52 A FIE1ZB7 .2 procedures, and how they are implemented and reporting
monitored. NEITRER
P EE R BHRET  UAREARITRERTE -
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided 534 Anti—corruption
fA B2 4E W5 1EB7.3 to directors and staff. training
HitmEERETRENRE)SHE - R&EFE
FEER 81 2MARRAR | —E-NEFER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERBHSE

ESG Reporting Referring section
Guide of HKEX in this ESG Report
EBEBRRIE - Description AREBE -HER
HERERHEES) ik BERmEHBAES
Community

#HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEBS : HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the Section 6 Our Community
— R R needs of the communities where the issuer operates and Z56&0 Engagement
to ensure its activities take into consideration the B APIH 4 = 22

communities’ interests.
BN EIP2ERTHREEMELRT EMBRALER
B E)EE B[R R &S A BUR ©

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, 6.2 Focus areas of

8 $2 45 N5 1ZB8. 1 environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture, contribution
sport). BT HREE
EIEREE(NHE REFHE SIFK BE X
£ 8BF) -

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus 6.2.1

742 45 5 15B8.2 area.

EEIERABAER(WEEXKHE) -
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TASKFORCE ON CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES (*TCFD") REPORI

TAXtHEI B 35 T(F/ M (TTCFD)) 3| &

1.

2.

INTRODUCTION TO THE TCFD

1.1

As an investment company, the value of the Company
is directly related to the underlying investments. Climate
Change is a systemic risk which can affect the value of
our investment portfolio and we seek to manage that
risk on behalf of the stakeholders. The Board is
supportive of initiatives that contribute towards
mitigating Climate Change risk on the Company’s
investments. The recommendations of the Taskforce on
Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) with
reference to the specific guidance for asset owners are
used to prepare this second report.

We consider to incorporate climate risk management
into investment processes, because investors are
expected to concern about the investees’ carbon
emission, emission targets and their steps to meet these
targets. It is in the interest of the industry that the
market is able to effectively reflect climate- related
risks.

GOVERNANCE

2.1

2.2

TCFD Recommended Disclosure
a) Describe the board’s oversight of climate-related

risks and opportunities

2.1.1 Details of our board oversight and environmental
policy are set out in section 2.2.2 and 2.2.3 of the
ESG report.

TCFD Recommended Disclosure
b)  Describe the management’s role in assessing and

managing climate-related risks and opportunities

2.2.1Three of the committees/working group in the
management structure will be specifically
responsible for assessing and managing
climate-related risks. They are:

a) Investment Committee for monitoring the
investment portfolio, including the
climate-related exposures.

1.

_—

TCFDEF A

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

2N
=]

R —KEERR  ARARWEER
ERBANRERERME - RIREL
RBEARERR  EARZERMO
KEMAEE  BMISRAKRANEA
MEEREZER ﬁ%Aﬁ%Eﬂﬁ

m%moﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm%%ﬁﬁ%
TENBETCD)MERE 22 Y
EEHRAANEERES|IFRESE — MR

&4 o

BMZEBRERBREERMNARE
B RAREHREESHIRE
HERMBREREE - FRERKEA
ERZEEEMENN TR - H1TH
mE - Ti5aE 5 MR B SRR AR B R
M'Eﬁéﬁ%Q%ﬂﬁﬂ

TCFDERNE
a) %ﬁt%%

B EE SN

S5 A A A L e e

QINESSEENREBEBERZFRE
HRRE HERERRES
2.2.2%2.2.35 o

FEER 81 2RAMRAR |
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by HMEBEREENHEIEREREE
R SN AR

2N ERBEREYBE=(XES

TENMEBMEREMEREER
RAEERR  EA:
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3.
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b) Executive Committee for implementing
relevant policies and procedures.

¢)  Risk Management Working Group, for
maintaining the risk register and managing
the risks.

2.2.2 For our investing, our Investment Committee and

Executive Committee will be responsible for the
identification and assessment of climate related
risks and opportunities in the investments on
annual basis. Investment Manager will then take
into account of them in investment decisions. We
plan to implement this strategy on or before
2025.

STRATEGY

3.1

3.2

TCFD Recommended Disclosure

Describe the climate-related risks and
opportunities the organisation has identified over
the short, medium and long-term

3.1.1We consider the physical and transition risks both

in the perspectives of the company and the
investee companies. We will also analyze them
over the short to long-term. For our investment
portfolio, going forward, the Company will
identify those sectors and companies which are
more likely to be adversely affected by the
transition to a low-carbon economy and will tilt
away from them. Companies with high green
revenues are of potential of climate-related
opportunities.

TCFD Recommended Disclosure

Describe the impact of climate-related risks and
opportunities on the organisation’s business,
strategy and financial planning

o FEREEIENE BaF
“#EER B E R E IR A

7a
i

o o
ZoN

222 BMNEEMS - REZES
E#TREeRBEBFRARIN
BREEACYELN Y PSR g
g REKLEBRENVIRERR
Rat R EFRE - RN =
T-RAFNZAIE MR R ©

R &

3.1

3.2

TCFDEZRIEE
a)  HEMEEATERINE R K58
TR BB R 8

3N BMEERAR B RREH R AT
AEEZREERRRSERRER
BB EERERBONUSE
Rk - LRI EASME
FREARIR - AR A 8R! A A5 28
RRE R B A XD AEHEE
BRATMEZENTERRR - &
BlmsN AR AR BENRR
B E -

TCFDEZRIEE
b)  Haul SR A BE LR M B Y e
%5 ERRMERENTE




efl:( /
3.2.1Climate change risks are assessed both in the 32N WEARRFREEMAE R AER
perspective of the Company and to our investment fhRES (R - WERIATE
portfolio and the following key risks, their impact TRk ExZELERER:
and management measures are identified:
Management
Type of risks Sources of risks Impact measures
EgER BT 2E BB
Physical risks Physical risks resulting  Physical risks may have In relation to the
EERE R from climate change can financial implications company: Monitor
be event driven (acute) or  for companies, such as the impact regularly
longer-term shifts (chronic)  direct damage to assets and continue the risk
in climate patterns. and indirect impacts assessment
EEﬁf“*Mt&fﬁzE’J%‘&f from supply chain  BARAFME : EHME
[ Bz AT fh & Bl 4 (R disruption. ERXEBUHETHRAR
") Yﬁﬂ%ﬁ@ﬁi_ﬁj """"" EREBRAENSERE
(REIE) BIH#E - Rt E - DImEE In relation to our
TWENEETZE LM investment portfolio:

JESERET R E - ?diﬁﬂ?ﬂﬁﬂxéiﬂ/\

E

Understand the potential
physical risks to which
our investments are
exposed, by analysis of
ESG Reports of each
individual investee.

BRAIMBEAREY
SHMRE -HEKER
BE BREIMOKE
PrEERR BB e

We will also consider
how climate-related
risks and opportunities
are factored into
relevant investment
strategies
BT E B R
i A8 8 Ja B R 58 A A
S
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Type of risks
EpRER

Sources of risks

EL e

Impact

®E

TASKFORCE ON CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES (“TCFD”) REPORT
RIZFGHBYEBRELENDA ([TCFDI]) HE

Management
measures

BEiEE

Transition risks

FENETENE

Policy and legal risks
R MOER R

An investment company is
strictly involved in and affected
by the latest developments
in climate-related policies
and regulations, such as the
potential introduction of policy
measures by governments and
regulators

BRERRER2ERIZIEH
WERERWEEZE -
BUR & B E M PT Be HEH Y
BERIE

Market risk
miZERE
Investors’ appetite for
sustainable finance products
has increased and continues to
grow
REEHAHESRERT
SRAE AN A5 12

Uncertainties over new
regulations (greenhouse
gas emissions reduction,
carbon taxes, etc.) will
increase operating costs.
The increasing demands
and requirements of
climate-related information
disclosure may increase the
compliance costs.

AR CRERBRE
MR ) B T HETE MG 15
g B R - ¥ 5 K 48
BENBEENTRNE
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In relation to the
Company:

HARRAIME

Closely monitor
climate-related laws,
regulations and policies
enforcement.

= ) B R R AR B A
@‘iﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁo

In relation to our
investment portfolio:

AEMNREAAMS

Understand the potential
transition risks to which
our investments are
exposed, by monitoring
the carbon footprints of
each individual investee.
BIEEEREMNKRE Y
KAV B - B AR B AP
V1% & P H B 60 B B
B o

Monitor the market
development of green
finance products.
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3.3

Sources of risks

E e

Type of risks
EpRER

Impact

®E

Management
measures

BEiEE

Reputational risk

BERMR

3.2.2 As an investment company, there are significant

financial impact of physical and transition risks
that may arise on each investee company’s
business, strategies for products and services,
value chain, and operations. For our stock
selection, we will integrate the investees’
climate-related risks and opportunities into their
evaluation and assessment using the bottom-up
approach.

TCFD Recommended Disclosure

Describe the resilience of the organisation’s
strategy, taking into consideration different
climate-related scenarios, including a 2 degree
Celsius or lower scenario

3.3.1Scenarios analysis is a tool to estimate the

financial impact of climate-related risks on the
portfolio assets. However, its effectiveness will be
dependent on the data availability of investee
companies.

3.3.2Translating the climate scenario analysis into an

investment strategy is also a challenge because
there is a wide range of plausible climate scenarios
and the probability of any given scenario is
difficult to determine. Subject to the data
availability, various climate scenario analysis tools
and climate stress tests methodologies may be
employed in future.

Lack of or delayed
actions for tackling
climate change may
damage our reputation
Bz EE SRR ZE(HTT
B REDIRE - EQ
AIBREXA
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Closely monitor
climate-related laws,
regulations and policies
enforcement.

BB RIGEEER -
TERR B BURIT -

= E&Lﬁ:
A REHRAAMNE
EmMRIEERE  BEHER

o BB

msE - HASEBE T LA
% BREHRORRERRR
KB A B R R fhET e e

3.3| TCFDEZRE &

o  HIMERERR
FR X ARG IR (B
#EE)

BESEBIE - WEE A
FH2CHER

331 BES

1 = AR A T R R A B R

RHREEEEENBEEN—
BTA - AW ERZGEEURR
BPWREHR AR BT RHEHK

A

3.3.2#4%

RIRBED B BT E KR

HAKE REEARZMEER
BEE AR IRB R MR E
MBERENELRERMRAEE

RYRE

ARSI - SEATRE

ERABEERREBERAMIAR
RAREE DR TTE

FEER 81 2RAMRAR |

—E-WmEFHKR 99



TASKFORCE ON CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES (“TCFD”) REPORT
RIZFGHBYEBRELENDA ([TCFDI]) HE

4. RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1

4.2

4.3

TCFD Recommended Disclosure
a)  Describe the organisation’s process for identifying

and assessing climate-related risks

4.1.1For the process of identifying and assessing
climate related risks in the perspective of the
Company,
materiality assessment are done to cover the

stakeholder engagement and

climate change and details of which are include in
section 2 of the ESG report.

4.1.2 For the climate-related risks in the perspective of
our investment portfolio, we plan to perform
material environmental risk analysis on an annual
basis in future. This is to understand

environmental factors that pose risks to financial

assets and translate these to inform firms’
investment decisions. The environmental risk
assessments will also be conducted at sector and

market level initially.

TCFD Recommended Disclosure
b)  Describe the organisation’s process for managing
climate-related risks

4.2.1 Details are set out in the column of management
measure at Section 3.2.1.

TCFD Recommended Disclosure

c¢)  Describe how processes for identifying, assessing
and managing climate-related risks are integrated
into the organisation’s overall risk management

4.3.1 Climate Change is considered as a principal risk to
the Company and our risk management working
group will regularly review it and report to the
Board.

4.3.2For our investment portfolio, the Investment
Committee together with our Investment Manager
will identify, assess and monitor the related
climate-related risks.
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5.

METRICS AND TARGETS

5.1

5.2

TCFD Recommended Disclosure
a) Disclose the metrics used by the organisation to

assess climate-related risks and opportunities in
line with its strategy and risk management process

5.1.1For the metrics of the Company’s climate related
risk, we use the various KPIs as required by the
Listing Rules. Details of them are set out in the
Section 3 of the ESG Report.

5.1.2 For the metrics of the investment portfolio, we
would use the carbon emission intensity. However,
there are several common measurement units in
use and they are per floor area, employee and
revenue, respectively. As the measurement unit
varied across the investee companies, this makes
meaningful comparison difficult.

TCFD Recommended Disclosure

b)  Disclose Scope 1, Scope 2, and if appropriate,
Scope 3 greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, and the
related risks

5.2.1The GHG emission intensity of investee companies
can help understand their carbon footprint.

5.2.2Based on their latest ESG/Sustainability reports
(mainly of their financial year 2023) of our top 10
portfolio companies, a summary of their carbon
footprints is prepared below. The Company has
not independently verified the information
published by such listed issuers. All figures cited
below are approximate ones only.
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TASKFORCE ON CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES (“TCFD”) REPORT
RIZGHEBEBEBEEIHENDAEA(ITCFD]) HE

Top 10 Equity Investments +REARKRE
2023 2022
ket ot ot
Scope 1 Scope 2 Emission Scope 1 Scope 2 Emission
Stock Code ~ Company Name Direct Emission  Indirect Emission Intensity Direct Emission  Indirect Emission Intensity
Rff%E  AF4 HEMERER  EEIMEHR  HHEE HENERHR  EEIMEHR  HHEE
(intC0.¢) (intC02) (intC0.¢) (intC0.¢) (intC0) (intC0.¢)
(RE_GLE (RH_GLE  (RN-ELE (RE_GLE (RH_ELE  (RN-ELE
E£5it) E5it) E£5it) E£5it) EE5it) E£5it)
11871 China Oriented International ~ 2,777.35 639.43 0.09 322297 801.77 0.08
Holdings Limited per thousand RMB Revenue per thousand RMB Revenue
AeERBERERAE FTTARBRE0.09 FTTARBNE0.08
2550 Allegro Culture Limited N/A N/A N/A 383 N/A 0.12
(Formerly known as Kingkey M@ TER NER TER per Employee
Intelligence Culture Holdings FLEE0.12
Limited) (note 1)~~~
BEXIARAT (HEREE
S RRERAA) (M)
31810 Xiaomi Corporation 12,2505 104,470.04 043 7,122.60 78,620.01 031
NKEE per millon RMB Revenue per millon RMB Revenue
FRETARMUE043 FRETARBUE031
41010 Sky Blue 11 Company Limited 3534 167 24,60 39.90 2.06
RERNERAT per Employee per Employee
BEER167 BAER206
5 94 China Mobile Limited 35.18 0.013 0.2 3424 0.015
HEEHERAA per unit of data traffic per unit of data traffic
SEMHERE0013 SEMHERE005
6 1929 Chow Tai Fook Jewellery 60,735.40 39 1,778.37 56,907.84 423
Group Limited per million HK$ Revenue per million HK$ Revenue
BARKEEEERAA CEEERGER FRERTHGLS
79988 Alibaba Group Holding 3,732,000.00 8.1 928,939.00 8,897,965.00 8.7
Limited per million RMB Revenue per million RMB Revenue
MECEEERRERAT FRETARENRS. FEETAREN=HST
§ 0005 HSBC Holdings plc 167,174.00 5.8 19,329.00 223,334.00 5.9
ELRRARAR per Employee per Employee
84558 §2ER59
9 2628 China Life Insurance 639,990.83 8.23 48385.05 659,856.65 8.57
Company Limited per million RMB Revenue per million RMB Revenue
HEASRBRNERAA SEETARR &S SRETARBUESST
10 0960 Longfor Group Holdings 645,634.38 3N 21,3729 587,625.15 243
Limited per million RMB Revenue per million RMB Revenue
ENEERRERAA FRETAREYEIN FRETAREH243
Note: B3t -
1. Due to the delay in publication of its 2023 annual results and the 1. HRALEEFBR-_ZT_="F2FZERFE_Z

T=FFR - EZBEEERARZKHE ZF
TMENAZBERRBRAEFEES -

dispatch of its 2023 annual report, trading in the shares of Allego
Culture Limited on the Stock Exchange has been suspended since 2
April 2024.
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5.3

TCFD Recommended Disclosure
c¢)  Disclose the targets used by the organisation to

manage climate-related risks and opportunities
and performance against targets

5.3.1The ability for diversified investors to set
meaningful climate targets is inhibited by the
paucity in credible methodologies and data
currently available. The Company is supportive of
the development of target-setting methodologies,
and of the increasing completeness of carbon
datasets. The Company wishes to set meaningful
climate targets for its investment portfolio subject
to the limitations of currently available data.

5.3
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS
EEZEE

CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Lam Man Chan M.H. (“Dr. Lam"”), aged 75, joined the
Company on 11 February 2014. He has over 30 years of
management experience and in depth knowledge of the electronics
industry. Dr. Lam has been awarded the Medal of Honour in July
2022 in recognition of his dedicated service to the Kwai Tsing
District, especially in the area of crime prevention.

Dr. Lam was graduated from the World Electric Engineering
College in 1969. Dr. Lam holds an honorary degree of Doctor of
Science from Armstrong University in the United States. He is
currently the chairman of Ngai Lik Group Limited (“Ngai Lik”). He
is responsible for the formulation of corporate strategy and overall
direction of Ngai Lik. Dr. Lam has invested in different industries,
including securities broking, finance business, hotel development,
motor cycle business and properties investment. He was granted
the Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong in 1994 and the
World Outstanding Chinese Award in 2005.

He was once a standing committee member of Qingyuan Region
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (“CPPCC") and a committee member of Guangdong
Provincial Committee and Dongguan Regional Committee of
CPPCC. Dr. Lam had been the chairman and executive director of
Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited (now known as Yuan Heng Gas
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 332), a company publicly listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”), during the period from 1992 to 2010. Dr. Lam is the
husband of Ms. Ting Lai Ling who is the Project and Administration
General Manager of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Lee Kwok Leung (“Mr. Lee"), aged 71,
on 8 May 2014, Mr. Lee is a member of Nomination Committee.

joined the Company

He is a licensed person to carry out type 9 (asset management) and
Type 4 (Advising on securities) regulated activities under the SFO
since 2003 and 2018 respectively. He has over 15 years of relevant
experience by serving as one of the responsible officers of
Silverstone Investments Limited (“Silverstone”) for Type 9 (asset
management) for the period from 2003 to December 2020 and
licensed representative for Type 4 (advising on securities) regulated
activity under SFO for the period from 2018 to December 2020.
Silverstone has been the investment manager of the Company for
the period from 2015 to December 2020 providing investment
advisory services to and managing investment portfolios for
professional/institutional investors mainly in Greater China and
Hong Kong to the Company.

Mr. Lee is currently the responsible officer of Success Advance
Investments Limited (“Success Advance”) for Type 9 (asset
management) and the licensed representative for Type 4 (advising
on securities) regulated activity under SFO. Success Advance is the
investment manager of the Company since 25 January 2021 which
carries out Type 9 (asset management) and Type 4 (advising on
securities) regulated activity under SFO providing investment
advisory services to and managing investment portfolios for
professional/institutional investors mainly in Greater China and
Hong Kong to the Company.

Mr. Lee has strong experience in portfolio construction, portfolio
management, risk assessment and investment due diligence.
Furthermore, Mr. Lee had been the Managing Director of BOCI
Direct Management Limited from 1992 to 1999. In this private
equity fund, he was responsible for the overall management of the
fund.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS
EECZRE

Mr. Lee is currently an independent non-executive director of EV
Dynamics (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 476), a company listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lee was the chairman and executive director of Mayer Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 1116), a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange for the period from 9 October 2014 to 12 June
2024.

Mr. Lee was an independent non-executive director of Imperial
Pacific International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1076), a
company listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange, for the period from
November 2013 to August 2022.

For the period from 1 June 2020 to 27 August 2021, Mr. Lee was
an independent non-executive director of Guoan International
Limited (delisted in November 2022 from the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange/old stock code: 143).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Ng Chi Yeung Simon (“Dr. Ng”), aged 67, joined the
Company on 26 November 2013. He is also the Chairman of
Nomination Committee and a member of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Dr. Ng is a solicitor in Hong Kong (non-practising). He was a
consultant of Rowland Chow, Chan & Company, a law firm in
Hong Kong, for the period from 2003 to 31 December 2020.

Dr. Ng holds a bachelor’s of laws degree from the Manchester
Metropolitan University in the United Kingdom in 1986, a master
degree in Chinese and Comparative Law from the City University of
Hong Kong in 1997 and a doctoral degree in worship studies from
the Robert Webber Institute for Worship Studies in June 2013.

Dr. Ng is currently an independent non-executive director of
Winfair Investment Company Limited (stock code: 287), a company
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Dr. Ng was a Part-time Lecturer of the Department of Professional
Legal Education of The University of Hong Kong for the period
from September 2013 to December 2020.

Dr. Ng was an independent non-executive director of a publicly
listed company in Hong Kong, namely, Century Sage Scientific
Holdings Limited (now known as Be Friends Holding Limited) (stock
code: 1450) for the period from 13 June 2014 to 29 September
2021.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang Sammy (“Mr. Tam”), aged 61, joined the
Company on 31 December 2013. He is also the Chairman of Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee and a member of
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Tam graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in Accountancy, and holds a
Master of Science degree in Professional Accountancy from
University of London. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Tam possesses good accounting
and financial experiences and qualification, and expertise in risk
management and sustainability.

Mr. Tam is currently the director of Essentack Limited, a corporate
strategy and management advisory company. Mr. Tam was an
independent non-executive director of Huajin International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2738), a company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, for the period from 23 March 2016 to 17
March 2023.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Law So Fun (“Ms. Law"), aged 57, joined the Company on
28 December 2023. She is a member of each of Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company.

Ms. Law holds Bachelor degree of Business (Management) —
Specialization in Human Resource Management of Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology in Australia in 2011. Ms. Law also holds a
Diploma in Management Studies (with distinction) of Lingnan
University awarded jointly by The Hong Kong Management
Association in 2009.

During the past 20 years, Ms. Law has once been the Administration
& Executive Supervisor of Yong Zheng CPA Limited (formerly
known as Chu and Chu, CPA). Ms. Law possesses solid secretarial
and administration works experiences and qualification, such as
human resources and office administration.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EFTHEE

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is principally engaged in investment in equity and
debt securities of listed and unlisted companies. During the year,
there were no significant changes to the Group’s principal
activities. Further discussion and analysis of these activities,
particular of important events affecting the Company that have
occurred since the end of the financial year and an indication of
likely future developments in the group’s business can be found in
the Chairman’s Statement and the Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 4 to 11 of this Annual Report. The
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the group
during the year is set out in the Section 5.2.1 Risk profile and
Section 5.2.2 Principal Risks identified in the Corporate Governance
Report. The above discussion and description form part of this
Report of Directors.

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND RESTRICTIONS
China Castson 81 Finance Company Limited (the “Company”, and
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is an investment
company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) under Chapter 21 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”).

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company may change
the Company’s investment objectives and policies from time to
time. The Company is also subject to the investment restrictions set
forth in the Listing Rules and its Bye-laws. Details of the major
investment objectives, policies and restrictions of the Company are
set out as below:

Objectives

The Company is an investment company with the primary objective
of achieving capital appreciation as well as generating income from
interests and dividends by investing in listed and unlisted
companies in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), Hong
Kong and Macau (collectively, “Greater China”), United States,
Asia-Pacific Region and any other appropriate countries/capital
markets as the Board may direct from time to time. The Company
also intends to invest in unlisted companies with the potential to
seek a listing on the Stock Exchange or any overseas stock
exchanges.
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Policies
The Group has adopted a diversified investment approach and has

added the use of derivatives for the purposes of hedging the
investment portfolio. Below are the key details of policies:

1. Investment will normally be made in the form of equity
securities, equity related securities (including but not limited
to convertible notes, preference shares, options, warrants
and/or futures contracts) and/or debt securities in listed and
unlisted companies in Greater China, United States,
Asia-Pacific Region and any other appropriate countries/
capital markets engaged in different industries including (but
not limited to) manufacturing, bio-technology, services,
telecommunication, technology, infrastructure,
pharmaceuticals and property sectors, aiming at maintaining
a balance in the Company’s exposure to different industry
sectors.

2. The Group may, where the Board considers appropriate, use
or invest in derivatives for hedging purposes. In this
connection, the Group may buy, write or sell warrants,
covered warrants, options or traded options on its underlying
investments. The Group may also short-sell shares, buy or sell
futures contracts on stock indices or shares (if any) as a
means to hedge against adverse price movements of its
investments.

3. When considering and identifying potential investments, the
Group will seek to identify entities with a record of positive
profit growth, strong management, and high levels of
technical expertise, and research and development capabilities
as well as management commitment to long-term growth. At
the same time, the Group is also flexible in considering
investments in companies or other entities which are
considered by the Board and the investment manager of the
Company as being special or in recovery situations with
return potential.
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4. As to the period of investment, the investments are usually
intended to be held for capital appreciation. The actual
holding period will depend on the return from investment
and the potential of listing on the Stock Exchange or other
internationally recognized stock exchanges. The Group will,
however, realise investments where the Board believes the
realization would be in the best interests of the Group or
where the terms on which such realisation can be made are
considered by the Board as particularly favorable to the
Group.

The above investment policies may be amended by the Board from
time to time without approval by the Company’s shareholders, but
subject to the investment restrictions as set forth below or as
applicable to the Company from time to time.

Investment Restrictions
Under the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules relating to the listing of

investment companies, certain restrictions on investments are
imposed on the Company. The Board has resolved that the
Company may not:

1. either itself or through its wholly-owned subsidiaries or in
conjunction with any connected person take legal, or
effective, management control of underlying investments and
in no event will the Company itself or through its
wholly-owned subsidiaries own or control more than 30% (or
such other percentage as may from time to time be specified
in the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers as being
the level for triggering a mandatory general offer) of the
voting rights in such company or other entity, except in
relation to such wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company;

2. invest in any company or entity other than wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company if such investment will result in
more than 20% of the net asset value of the Company
(calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Company’s Bye-laws) being invested in such company or
entity as at the date the investment is made;
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3. without the prior approval of the Shareholders by ordinary
resolution, buy or sell commodities, commodity contracts or
precious metals, except that the Group may purchase and sell
future contracts on stock indices and securities which are
secured by commodities or precious metals; and

4. invest more than 30% of the Company’s assets outside
Greater China to the extent of contravening its primary
objective of achieving capital appreciation by investing in
listed and unlisted companies in Greater China.

The Company has to comply with investment restrictions 1 and 2
above at all times while it remains listed as an investment company
under Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules. Investment restriction 3 can
be changed subject to Shareholders’ approval and investment
restriction 4 can be changed without Shareholders’ approval.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024
and the state of affairs at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 125 to 199. The Directors do not
recommend the payment of a dividend.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements and restated and
reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 200. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are
set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company has not purchased, sold or redeemed any of its own
shares during the year ended 31 December 2024.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Donations to charitable organization by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$2,000.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 128.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had no distributable
reserve because its accumulated losses amounted to be about
HK$392.0 million.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed in
the below section headed “Share Option Scheme” below, no
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or

existed during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

2022 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 27 June 2022 (the
“Adoption Date”), the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “2022 Scheme”) for the primary purpose to
recognising and acknowledging the contributions the eligible
participants had or may have made to the Group. Eligible
participants include the full-time and part-time employees,
executives, officers, directors (including executive directors and
non-executive directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and other non-employee participants (as defined in the 2022
Scheme). Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the 2022
Scheme will remain valid for a period or 10 years from the date of

its adoption.
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The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the 2022 Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted to any individual
in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors in excess of
0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a value in excess of
HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up on or before the relevant
acceptance date, upon payment of HK$1.00 for the options
granted. Options may be exercised at any time from the date of
grant of the share option to a period to be notified by the Board to
each grantee at the time of making such offer, which shall not
expire later than 10 years from the date of grant.

The exercise price is determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion and will not be less than the higher of (a) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the
average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of grant.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no share options were
granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the 2022 Scheme.
There were no share options outstanding as at 31 December 2024.

114 CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024

EREARRABES M ERN > BRE-S=-=F
FrEM L CEREMS R RN BE - T5H
BARRB R EMEIR 2 EITRN 210% © £
REARRNBIRERBLMMER - RER—FHRA]
MAERBENATRD ZERERNS R ZRHH
B TEBAARAIRNEMNERER 2 EBETRN 2
1% > WA EERRRBILIENTESH BB
RRBIRAO0.1% KB EiEBB5,000,000%8 7T .2 fE
IR - B RERRRIRFERE

ERZBRELANBREZME B AIAR -
AR AL E R 2 BRI 1.00/8 T2 FUR
BRETHZERERLENEEEESNIREH
BRZARNEZARAZBEAERITE - 2
HEAARL BHEFTFR-

TEEREFSERPNBETE X/ TERAT
K% @QARARMONE LD B HRE &M
ZEARERMHREHIE  ()ARBRNDNER
R AMATAEZ X BB AEM 2SR RE
RITRFHRHE - R(OARE RO PR L
HEIZEE -

REBE-_Z-_NFE+_A=Z+—HLEFE =T
TTFEEETWEBRERD - 176 - Kk
i oR T oWNE+ - A=+—H  WEHK
Tz BERAE -



EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period are
set out in the note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were as follows:

Chairman and Non-executive Director:
Dr. Lam Man Chan

Executive Director:
Mr. Lee Kwok Leung

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy

Ms. Law So Fun

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Lee Kwok Leung
and Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offers themselves for
re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY

ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2024, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
the Listing Rules, below were the interest and short positions of
the directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of part XV of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited:
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Number of Shares held

FiisiRa 8B
Percentage
Long Short No. of share of Issued
Name of Directors Position Note Nature of interest position position options held share capital
FiisBIRE LERTRE
EERE Bk 31 it EEtE 9 wE #H BoH
Lam Man Chan Chairman and 7 Beneficial owner 35,305,770 - - 20.80
("Dr. Lam") Non-executive EalEBA
& (THEL]) Director
IRFOFMTES
Note: Wi -
1. Dr. Lam is the sole shareholder of Goodchamp Holdings Limited. He 1. #M{E =+ AGoodchamp Holdings Limited .z M — %

thus has the beneficial interest in the 35,305,770 shares of the
Company and his wife, Ms. Ting Lai Ling, who is one of the
management team members of the Company, is deemed to have an
interest on such shares of the Company.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosures in note 29
to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, so far as was known to the directors or
chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other than
the interests disclosed above in respect of certain directors and
chief executive of the Company) has, or is deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of
the Company as recorded in the register to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO are set out below:

FERRERHEMALTRBRG REER
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ERNRBEEARAEKRANEICKAETFEZE
itz ToERSRA

Capacity/Nature of Percentage
Name of shareholders Note interest Long position Short position of holding
IRERBE it B EEME R RE BRESE
Goodchamp Holdings Limited 1 Beneficial owner 35,305,770 - 20.80
ERERBA
Dr. Lam 1 Beneficial owner 35,305,770 - 20.80
N EnEAA
Ting Lai Ling 1 Beneficial owner 35,305,770 - 20.80
TER EREBA
Note: Hia -
1. Dr. Lam is the sole shareholder of Goodchamp Holdings Limited. He 1. M I ABEGoodchamp Holdings LimitedZ M — %

thus has the beneficial interest in the 35,305,770 shares of the
Company and his wife, Ms. Ting Lai Ling, who is one of the
management team members of the Company, is deemed to have an
interest on such shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the directors
and chief executive of the Company are not aware of any persons
who had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.
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EMOLUMENTS POLICY

The emoluments policy for the Directors of the Company are
decided by Remuneration Committee, with reference to his
respective qualifications and experiences, duties and responsibilities
with the Company, the Company’s performance and the prevailing
market situation. Details of the emoluments of the Directors are set
out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set
out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

INDEPENDENCY OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The Company considers that all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except as detailed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Except as detailed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Company were entered into or existed during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

According to the bye-laws, every Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities (to the fullest extent permitted by the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) which he/she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his
office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Group has maintained
directors’ liability insurance, which provides appropriate cover for
legal actions brought against the Directors and directors of the
subsidiaries of the Group. The level of the coverage is reviewed
annually.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 have been audited by RSM Hong Kong.

RSM Hong Kong will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of RSM Hong
Kong as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Man Chan
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZHEIRES

RSM

To the Shareholders of
China Castson 81 Finance Company Limited
(Continued into Bermuda with limited liability)

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Castson 81 Finance Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 125 to 199, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. We have determined that there are no key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

122 CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024

EERBEREEERGEMBHRREA
EENEME

BERAESAREAREESGHMASRMNE
B BImE G ER LR BRG] &R R E R
HEEMAFRRIENNGEEF HRE - KE
FETHREGAVMBHRRBUL 2N E BN
B UEZEGRAMBRROGRIEFEHARN
AP R MERMERERRA -

EREGAMBRRE  EFXHBANE &
BRrELENR)  URBEESBKERABANSE
HER) - BIFESHE BEREBR/IAFL
LB ARG EEMBERATONE B
AIERANRERLE RERNEEE -

mf

JiEE

BERZBEMDEERITRENREE
MBERERBEEAENEL -

S

iy

\

BB B AR S MR RAREN
B

RRIE N BB A BRETE Il SR A M SRR E
BT 5 T & 7 1 RO AR o B AR T B0 AR
MBI WHHRARME RO LBAERS - R
FREERE—NN\—FAAELE0KER 2
BERE - TELMASE  RPUTRAREZ
REE AR A LA EEAEHRERAAE
f£

AEREREERNKE R REBELA
EITNBE TETERBRERENTENEA
SERBRR - RPN A E MR AR RE L - (41E
Rl mBEs BENER TALERAERES
AFBRE L OERER - BIRIR B E AL
BB -



As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for
forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of
the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ms. Ng Wai Kwun.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants
24 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIV _,INCDME
HEBRmREMEENGER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —_Z _WNF+ _-_A=+—HILFE

2024
—EMF
HK$'000
FExT

Note
izt

Gross proceeds from operations

Revenue

Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through
profit or loss ("FVTPL")

Total revenue

Net (losses)/gains on financial assets
at FVTPL

Other income

Other gains and losses

Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs

Loss before tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive loss
for the year attributable
to owners of the Company

Loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company
Basic (HK cents per share)

Diluted (HK cents per share)

E&ﬁ@ﬁkﬁ
FABEFDZE
BUA

]

B s
BRARER AR

(T2 E
MEEZK

ZEREE

2 (B1R) W%

A ON
H i Wt 25 K% B3 18
THRRAX
HEfb &

EEBR
BB KA

B ¥ B0 B 4R
PS5 F 2

ADTHEEAEIL
FEBE

FEHM2EKES
(SMFRHE)

ADTEEAEIL
PHBRAHE

AATHEEANEIL

AR (FREN)

58 (ZROBAL)

£E

BREE

8 23,652

8 328
328
(10,445)
9 83
10 213
(10,579)
(1,185)
(21,585)
12 (13)
(21,598)
13 =
14 (21,598)
(21,598)

18

(15.11)

(15.11)

TEER 81 2@MABRAT

2023

—E-=F

HK$'000
TAET

71,754

220

220

13,030
63

(15)
(18,436)

(1,144)

(6,282)
(29)

(6,311)

(6,311)

(6,311)

(4.46)

(4.46)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR E B ANR B|aR

As at 31 December 2024 R —Z W&+ - A=+—H

Note
k23
ASSETS BE=E
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB M ERE 19
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREFABZZEMEE 20
Interest in an associate R—EEE R E 2 s 22
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEAEBGZER®
BE 20
Other receivables, prepayments H b E Y ERIE ~ T FRIA
and deposits Mz 23
Bank and cash balances RITRR A 24
TOTAL ASSETS BEHSE
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2024
—ENE
HK$'000
Fi#&x

16,990

33,098

2023

HK$'000
TET

8,294
9,366

17,660

21,976

745
12,177

34,898

52,558



2024

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accruals
Secured bank loan

Total liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Net current assets

Net assets

Net asset value per share (HK$)

—ENEF
Note HK$'000
i T
EXREE
ADTBEEAELES
& A 25 1,697
k] 27 30,165
ESBE 31,862
=R
mENE &
BRI X
BERFIEITER 28 47
EELE 1,236
EZkEEATE 33,098
MEBEEZFRE 15,754
BEERE 31,862
BEREEZFEGET) 33 0.19

Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2025 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Lam Man Chan

FRICH%

TIEERRERE !

Lee Kwok Leung

FER

TEER 81 2@MABRAT

2023
—E-=F
HK$'000
FHET

1,414
47,890

49,304

2,657
597

3,254
52,558
31,644
49,304

0.35

R-ZE-_RAF=-—A_+MNBEE=eE  THh
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEEREERK

For the year ended 31 December 2024 2 — T — &+ _—_A =+ —HILFE

As at 1 January 2023

Total comprehensive loss and
changes in equity for the year

As at 31 December 2023 and

1 January 2024

Issue of shares upon placing
(Note 25)

Total comprehensive loss
for the year

Changes in equity for the year

As at 31 December 2024

RZE-_=%—-F—H

FRAEABRARRE

%29

E\

RZE-=%+=-H
=t-Bk-Z-@
F—F—H

R & M2 1TH
(Hfiz25)
FEXASBELE

FRRRE

RZE-_MF+=A
=+—H

Share Share Contributed Accumulated
capital premium surplus losses Total
B K& AR E-41) 1 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET THET FTHET THET
1,414 7,725 394,561 (348,085) 55,615
_ - - (6,311) (6,311)
1,414 7,725 394,561 (354,396) 49,304
283 3,873 - - 4,156
- - - (21,598) (21,598)
283 3,873 - (21,598) (17,442)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLC WS

n'.R (=] iﬁr@”lbi%

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —_Z _WNF+ _-_A=+—HILFE

Note
1 iF

2024
—EFCWF
HK$'000
TR

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Loss before tax

Adjustments for:
Bank interest income

Dividend income from financial assets at

FVTPL

Finance costs

Depreciation

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net losses/(gains) on financial assets
at FVTPL

Write back of accruals

Operating loss before working
capital changes

Proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at FVTPL

Payments for purchases of financial
assets at FVTPL

(Increase)/decrease in other receivables,
prepayments and deposits

Decrease in accruals

Interest income received

Dividend income received

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

REEBHERE

BRI AT EE

FLATIE B A%
HRATH B WA
BEARBEABRIERE
E 2R BEWA

B & A

e

HEME - BEREZHEZ
(Wa), /BB
BARBEABRZE/RE
EZER/ (W) F58
BEEEA

}‘

EeEHncKermi

HERAR B AER
BEZMEBRE

BERANEGFABR
BEZNHK

H b FEURFRIE ~ TEAR
& (3mSR

FE TR SR

B R S WA

B U R B A

5.7 &l

5.2 % R

B NE

meEE (R, EEx2
Be 5

(21,598)

(77)

(328)

12 13
19 544

10 (40)

10,445

10 (175)

(11,216)

23,324

(22,492)

(275)

(1,293)
77
EEX]

TEER 81 2@MABRAT

2023

HK$'000
THET

(19,026)
71,534
(41,297)
134
(687)

63
215

10,936

“ERE_NFEFHR 129




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

|Vj_\ IEI ﬁ 1L E %%

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & Z T —MFE+ -_A =+ —HIFE

Note
15
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REXBRLRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE BERRH
equipment 19
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BEMKRBE MG
plant and equipment FKIE
Net cash generated from/(used in) WEEKEEL/(FTA) 2R &
investing activities FER
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING FMEFBRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Repayment of secured bank loan BEAEIFRITER 34
Interest paid EAAHE 12
Gross proceeds from placing of shares FRERR D TS R IH AR %8 25
Payments for placing expenses BREMS ZN® 25
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEEBELS (FFBA)2HSE
financing activities HEE
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH ReRRALZEMOED)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EhNFEEE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FUzR2RRASZEY
THE BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FERZARRZED
THE END OF YEAR
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH ReERBALZEMAF
EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIBEER
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2024 2023
—ENE
HK$ 000

T

HK$'000
THET

(25)

(562)

10,349

1,828

12,177

12,177



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENtI'S

n'.R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & ZE —Z —ME+ - A=+ —HILFE

SR IS SRR M 5E

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Castson 81 Finance Company Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company continued into Bermuda as an
exempted company under the laws of Bermuda. The address
of the Company’s registered office is Victoria Place, 5th Floor,
31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda and its principal
place of business is Flat 18, 9/F, Block B, Focal Industrial
Centre, 21 Man Lok Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock

Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in investments in equity
and debt instruments. The principal activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRS Accounting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
“HKICPA™). HKFRS Accounting
Standards comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS"); and
Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements also

Public Accountants (the

comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure requirements of
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRS
Accounting Standards that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected
in these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 2 — T — &+ _—_A =+ —HILFE

B %5 ¥R 2% B &

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRS Accounting

Standards
The Group has applied the following amendments to

HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the HKICPA for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2024 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
("HK Int 5") (Revised) - Classification by the Borrower of a

Term Loan that Contains a

Repayment on Demand Clause

Amendments to HKAS 7

and HKFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangements

These amendments and interpretation listed above did
not have any material impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

Revised HKFRS Accounting Standards in issue but

not yet effective
Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial

statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of new
standards and amendments to standards and
interpretation, which are not effective for the year
ended 31 December 2024 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. The Group has
not early applied the following which may be relevant
to the Group:
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3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRS 3. BRANFEIRRIETEBMBERE
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED) =8 ()
(b) Revised HKFRS Accounting Standards in issue but b) CHEHMEHMARERZEETE

not yet effective (Continued)

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after

ARG ENE21HR K
FRMBHREELE
VRZ BT —R=A
o0y

Amendments to HKAS 21 and HKFRS 1
- Lack of Exchangeability

1 January 2025

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
- Classification and Measurement of

1 January 2026 BBV BERELREI
HRBBUBREE
AE7HR 2B -2
MITADEMGE

Financial Instruments

HEBMBRELL S
FTAERI A E iUl —
EARESS

Annual Improvements to HKFRS 1 January 2026

Accounting Standards - Volume 11

BREMBHRELERNFE18
5 — B 15 ¥R R 51 ¥R AN
wE

HKFRS 18 — Presentation and Disclosure
in Financial Statements

1 January 2027

HKFRS 19 — Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures

1 January 2027 BEPBEREEAZFE9
i /NS o= R o

MHELAT  RE

BB

&

FRENERSRL
T— B SR K T
HB-ERAHRES
AR ERE RGN
EHERH D

Amendments to HK Int 5 - Presentation 1 January 2027

[ gz

of Financial Statements — Classification

il

by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its

BAMBRELEREO
REBEBCFELE
28R ZIBF] — 1 EH
HEBERAEEDHE

ZHEMEELESE

‘g

To be determined by
the HKICPA

Associate or Joint Venture
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 2 — T — &+ _—_A =+ —HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Revised HKFRS Accounting Standards in issue but

not yet effective (Continued)
The directors of the Company are in the process of

making an assessment of what the impacts of these
new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretation are expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements except for the
following.

HKFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements”

HKFRS 18 will replace HKAS 1 “Presentation of financial
statements”, introducing new requirements that will
help to achieve comparability of the financial
performance of similar entities and provide more
relevant information and transparency to users. Even
though HKFRS 18 will not impact the recognition or
measurement of items in the consolidated financial
statements, HKFRS 18 introduces significant changes to
the presentation of financial statements, with a focus
on information about financial performance present in
the statement of profit or loss, which will affect how
the Group present and disclose financial performance in
the financial statements. The key changes introduced in
HKFRS 18 relate to (i) the structure of the statement of
profit or loss, (ii) required disclosures for
management-defined performance measures (which are
referred to alternative or non-GAAP performance
measures), and (iii) enhanced requirements for
aggregation and disaggregation of information.

The directors of the Company are currently assessing
the impact of applying HKFRS 18 on the presentation
and the disclosures of the consolidated financial
statements.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS Accounting Standards requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The area where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements is disclosed in note 5.

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the

financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. The Group has power over an entity when
the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(a)
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Consolidation (Continued)
When assessing control, the Group considers its

potential voting rights as well as potential voting rights
held by other parties. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to
exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Separate financial statements
In the Company’s statement of financial position,

investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale). Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investments. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received or receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
Foreign currency translation

(c)

(i)

(if)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"),
which is the Company’s functional and

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The
transaction date is the date on which the entity
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in foreign currencies are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates when the
fair values are determined.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(i)

(iii)
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Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements (Continued)

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When
a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the
Company’s presentation currency as follows:

—  Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the translation reserve.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

4.

EZSTTHEES (&)

(c)

Phﬁﬁﬁﬁi(mﬁ)
(i) ZEERMBERZRZIRE
%G@

(iii)

%#M%Eazw*@%ﬁwﬁ
e 2T RS TRRES - R3S
EZEWER% SR 2 E R
%ﬁﬂo%#“mﬁazw\a

BIER AR - RS
ﬁ%ZZfEﬁﬂEZELﬁBJJ REBERER °
REREBRE

AREMEERZNEERHE
AIRARBIZ25E% X
NN BRAT T BE
REARBZZ2NEE :

- BOHBBRIABKRAMZ

2 BEEMRABBERZY
B R B H 2 W

R

- WARRXIZEHTIHE

RHE  BRIFUFHER
TRAAEARBRBRNR
ZHBBAZERZ R5
TEOAELBRT K
AMRXERRZEHRZ
EXBZE: Rk

- FERIEMEEZENE

RN H M 2wk m g
RENBEFEERNRE -



4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that form
part of the net investment in foreign entities are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified to consolidated profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, including buildings and

leasehold land, held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at
initial recognition. To the extent the allocation of the
relevant payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in
the consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying

amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Shorter of lease term

or 4%

Leasehold improvements Shorter of lease term
or 20%

Office furniture and fixtures 20%

Motor vehicles 33.3%

Yacht 33.3%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Recognition and derecognition of financial

instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in

the consolidated statement of financial position when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Recognition and derecognition of financial

instruments (Continued)
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and

only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are

recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace. All recognised financial assets are
measured subsequently in their entirety at either
amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified into
amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(f)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment
the Group makes an election to designate the
investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI") (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made
if the investment meets the definition of equity from
the issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is
made, the amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
until the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to accumulated
losses. It is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends
from an investment in equity securities, irrespective of
whether classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised
in profit or loss as revenue.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and

on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses ("ECL").
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(h)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified

according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRS
Accounting Standards. An equity instrument is any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of

transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless, at
the end of the reporting period, the Group has a right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

Other payables

Other payables are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

()

Revenue and other income
Revenue is recognised when control over a product or

service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance)
of the asset.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
(m) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits, and when
the Group recognises restructuring costs and
involves the payment of termination benefits.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for

the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in

profit or loss because of items of income or expense

that are taxable or deductible in other years and items

that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s

liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that

have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(n)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences

between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit and
at the time of transaction does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and an associate, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 2 — T — &+ _—_A =+ —HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(n)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are

expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
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4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
(o) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications of
impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is written
down as an expense through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income to its estimated recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
("CGU") to which the asset belongs. Recoverable
amount is the higher of value in use and the fair value
less costs of disposal of the individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/

CGU whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated pro rata
amongst the assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases
in the recoverable amount caused by changes in
estimates are credited to profit or loss to the extent that

they reverse the impairment.

(p) Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on other
receivables. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since

initial recognition of other receivables.

The Group recognises lifetime ECL for the financial
instruments when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial

instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 2 — T — &+ _—_A =+ —HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(p)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all

possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the
industries in which the Group’s debtors operate,
obtained from economic expert reports, financial
analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and
other similar organisations, as well as consideration of
various external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group's core operations.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(p)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

- significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor;

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 2 — T — &+ _—_A =+ —HILFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(p)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

(iy  the financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i)  the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when the asset has external credit rating of
“investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty
has a strong financial position and there are no past
due amounts.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(p)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default
The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by
the counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 2 — T — &+ _—_A =+ —HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(p) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more

events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated

future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(p)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, including when the debtor has been placed
under liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised
in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As for
the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(p)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the
current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain

timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation. The discount rate used to determine the
present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.
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4.

5.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(r)  Events after the reporting period
Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of
the reporting period or those that indicate the going
concern assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are
not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

In applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors are required to make
judgements (other than those involving estimations) that
have a significant impact on the amounts recognised and to
make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B ISR R M
For the year ended 31 December 2024 i Z — T —ME+ A=+ —HILFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key

sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(@) Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. In
determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgement and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
CGU to which the asset belongs. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, could materially affect the
recoverable amounts.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment

as at 31 December 2024 was approximately
HK$7,750,000 (2023: HK$8,294,000).
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5.
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) B THBEZEZEERE (&)
(b) Fair value measurement of suspended equity (b) FEBRAKREZAAETE

A 5% 3 T & = E k5T (&)

investment

In the absence of quoted market prices in an active
market, the directors estimate the fair value of the
Group’s investment in Allegro Culture Limited (”Allegro
Culture”), details of which are set out in note 21(b) to
the consolidated financial statements, by considering
information from a variety of sources, including
referenced to the latest transaction price with an
adjustment of discount for lack of marketability and
return on relevant industry index.

Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could
result in material adjustments to the fair value of this
investment.

The carrying amount of the investment as at 31
December 2024 was HK$1,578,000 (2023: HK$NiIl).

EABMZSAREMSEREZBR
T EFHAAKEREEXEER
DA ([REX]) 2RE (BHFE
FNEE BB HRERME2100) AR
B TEREBERKRMESER
BR2EROMPIIFER LR
G RBENELARETEERD
BETIAFE -

BpEREZBMoBRIOARE - A
AERHBRREZ AAEIEHES
M -

RZE-_WNF+_-_A=+—H ' #%=&
& 7 REHEEA1,578,0008 T (=&
Z=FEBT)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2024 i Z — T —ME+ A=+ —HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, equity price risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and interest rate risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks, if any, are set out below. The management of the
Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manners.

(a) Foreign currency risk
The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency

risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the Group entities. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

(b) Equity price risk

The Group is primarily exposed to equity price risk
through its investment in listed equity securities, if any.
The management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk and return
profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity securities quoted on the Stock
Exchange.

The sensitivity analysis below was determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period.

As at 31 December 2024, if the prices of the respective
listed equity securities had been 10% (2023: 10%)
higher/lower, loss after tax for the year ended 31
December 2024 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$2,007,000 (2023: HK$3,134,000) as
a result of the changes in fair value of listed equity
securities.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities and
from its financing activities, including equity instruments
and deposits with banks and financial institutions,
foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instruments.

Financial assets at amortised cost

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the financial assets
at amortised cost include bank balances, other
receivables and deposits.

Bank balances

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies, for
which the Group considers to have low credit risk. For
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the
Group performed impairment assessment on bank
balances at 12-month ECL by reference to information
published by external credit rating agencies relating to
average loss rates of respective credit rating grades and
concluded the ECL on these balances are insignificant.

Other receivables and deposits

Other receivables and deposits are considered to be low
credit risk when they have a low risk of default and the
issuer have a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term. For the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group
assessed the ECL for other receivables are insignificant
and thus no loss allowance is recognised.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks, the Group does
not have any other significant concentration of credit
risk.

6.

B b e ()

(c)
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B BRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 2 — T — &+ _—_A =+ —HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(d)

162 CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED |

Liquidity risk

The Group regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities is as follows:

6.

%R EEE (E)
(d) WEE SRR

AEEEHERBAARERZRDE
EHRE UERESENRSFHE
MERRRERRDESHE -

BEASEFTLESRABBEZAHR
MBRREREETZEHANFAT :

On demand or
less than

1 year Total

FEE R
LR—F
HKS$’000

Ly
HK$°000
FTER

FTHET

As at 31 December 2024

Accruals FEETR X
Secured bank loan (Note) BIEMIEITER

As at 31 December 2023

Accruals e X
Secured bank loan (Note) BEMBITER

(Bat)

(Bat)

R-ZE-_EmF+=A=+—H

R-B-=%+-"RA=+-—H

2,657
597

2,657
597

Note:

Secured bank loan with a repayment on demand clause is
included in the ‘on demand or less than 1 year’ time band in
the above maturity analysis. Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the directors do not believe that it is
probable that the bank will exercise its discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment. The directors believe that such
secured bank loan will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreement.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity analysis of secured bank loan subject to a

repayment on demand clause based on scheduled

repayments is as follows:

As at 31 December 2024
Secured bank loan

As at 31 December 2023

R-—B-mE+=A=+—§
BERRITER

R-E-_=F+=-A=+—H

BIRMIRITER

Secured bank loan

M EEEE (&)

d RBEESER ()
REATERKRARMAETEENR
BRER2BRRRITEFETZH
HAESHFOT :

Less than Between

1year 1and 2 years Total

DR—F —EWmF st

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

TiEn FHET

FER

563 47 610

Interest rate risk
The Group's cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates

to the above variable-rate bank loan. It is the Group’s
policy to maintain its borrowing at commercial loan
rates, which include a floating rate of interest within
reasonable ranges so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk. The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However, management
monitors interest rate exposure closely and will consider
other necessary actions when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.

The effect of changes in interest rates is not expected
to be significant to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group has no other significant
interest-bearing assets and liabilities except for bank
deposits and secured bank loan, the Group’s income
and operating cash flows are substantially independent
of changes in market interest rates.

(e) FZ=pmEk
AEBEZREREN XRE R E BT
BRITEFREH - ARB ZBR AR
FIEERBEERN XL - B
BEBEANZFBNE - EMmEER
AEMERR - NEE B A &KL
FRERHEE - AT - EREEIE
BN EER  TREFEHBEEKAR
KEpr  ZERMEMMBETE -

MEHPHEMH GV BRRALES
AREE BRRTEAREERRTE
RO AEBUYEBEMBEAGFEEE
REE - AEEZBAREERER
BERBTEMBHNEEHTE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M BRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 2 — T — &+ _—_A =+ —HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. MERREE (&)
(f) Categories of financial instruments as at 31 fH R-TBE-_WE+=-—A=+—H
December 2024 Zem I AEER
2024 2023
—E-F TEC=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
Financial assets: EMEE:
Financial assets at FVTPL: BRARBERIABEZERERE
Mandatorily measured at FVTPL R E /N DRI N =i 31,342
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 1R K AT E 2 2B E E 12,244
Financial liabilities: SEAaE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RHBHEKATFECE2BAE 3,254
(g) Fair values (99 DARE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets BREMBIKAREAR®R 2 NEES
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated MEENMSHEBEZEEAERAERR
statement of financial position approximated their RNABERA -
respective fair values.
7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AREGE
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset ARERTHB2BEEZAREFXSHH
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction EEEMKRSEZEaEMI N ZstEH
between market participants at the measurement date. The B -UTAARBFERBAAREERE
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair THE ZArRBERBIEAREA
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs to HEFTEZBABIES R=(EER
valuation techniques used to measure fair value:
Level 1 inputs:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets FIRBARE . R ERAHRLKSRE
for identical assets or liabilities that the EHZHEREERE
Group can access at the measurement date. fERER™ IS 2 RE

(REEBE) -

Level 2 inputs:  inputs other than quoted prices included L2RMABIE © BB SAUEEK
within Level 1 that are observable for the REBRCAEXRE
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. B AN B A B o
Level 3 inputs:  unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. B3I ABUR - EESREZTAE

RBARIE -
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers

out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or

change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

(a)

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy as at

31 December 2024:

Description

D REE (#)

AEBEZBRAERBEARBRE R
AR EHERBBELEZRAREB A=
BEERETZEMEAREL -

(a)

Fair value measurements using:

DAEHERRZER:

Recurring fair value measurements:

Financial assets
Financial assets at FVTPL
- Listed equity securities

Level 1
F1R
HK$'000
TEx
BEEDABHE:
SHEE

BRAEMARRZEREE
-ERAES

Level 3
H34R
HK$'000
T

Level 2
E YL
HK$'000
TEx

R-EBE-_NE+=-H=+—H
ZRAREEBREE :

Total

b

2024

it 13
HK$'000
Tign

Fair value measurements using: Total
DB EFRAZER: b
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2023
ft F1R E25 3 ZECIZE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL THL THL TAR
Recurring fair value measurements:  EEHAAEHE :
Financial assets SHEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BOREG NERZERERE
- Listed equity securities -l RES 31,342 - - 31,342

If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on

observable market data, the instruments are included in

Level 3. During the year ended 31 December 2024, a

listed equity security was transferred from Level 1 to

Level 3 due to no available quoted price in active

markets for the shares which were subject to suspension

of trading since 2 April 2024. The fair value was

referenced to the latest transaction price with an

adjustment of discount for lack of marketability and

return on relevant industry index.

it —IE S Z THE K A BRI IEERN
AEBRMSEE - AZEIAIAZES
HoHET-_WMF+-_A=+—H
LEFERN —EBETRAZSFARE
BB T _MFONA—HREERFEE
BEMEENERMHE LIRERE - &
HEIREEZEIMN - DAELER
MR GER  WRkRZTHRA

MEITRE R AR TT R IR B 3K T AT

Ko
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NDTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 2 — T — &+ _—_A =+ —HILFE

S

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7.
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value (b)
based on Level 3:

~ R fERE (&)

BREFIREIAREFEZEE
O

Financial assets at FVTPL

BROAERABSZEMEE

2024 2023

—E-mEF —E-=fF

HK$'000 HK$'000

Description i TFiEx FET

At 1 January n—H—H -
Total unrealised losses recognised RERERZ KERHEEREY

in profit or loss® -

Transfer from Level 1 EERFSE LT , -

At 31 December R+=—H=+—8H -

® Include gains or losses for assets O BERRERARFTEZ
held at end of reporting period BERWR S EE (554) -

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
including those for assets held at end of reporting
period are presented in net (losses)/gains on financial
assets at FVTPL in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.
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7.  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. DREFE(E)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group (0 ZXEBR=-=2E-_NWE+=A
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair =t+—HBEAZEERERD
value measurements at 31 December 2024: REFTEFAZHER ERE

ABBHHKE
The Group's financial controller is responsible for the REE U BEER S MU BERE
fair value measurements of assets and liabilities required ?‘T%{F&E\LZ’&jﬂEE‘I‘%  BIFEEE3
for financial reporting purposes, including Level 3 fair MAREFE -G REEERES
value measurements. The financial controller reports AE#&EZ%’A?‘DTE.#E o BA TS B EE K
directly to the Board of Directors for these fair value EFEentERFEREFHETRD
measurements. Discussions of valuation processes and MR ET R ©
results are held between the financial controller and the
Board of Directors at least twice a year.
Level 3 fair value measurements FIRAAREE
Valuation Effect on fair value
Description technique Unobservable inputs for increase of inputs  Fair value
fi it RERE FUBERBARE WABEEAYH DAE
DAENTE
2024
—EIME
HK$'000
FTEx
Listed equity security classified as Market Discount for lack of Decrease
financial assets at FVTPL (which approach marketability at 15.6%
had been halted for trading)
NEREARBEABRRZ %A RZ S RBIENEIS.6% HD
CTREEN FTRAES
(HE@*EEE)
Market multiple at 12.3% Decrease 1,578
miZEE12.3% D
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M BRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 2 — T — &+ _—_A =+ —HILFE

8. GROSS PROCEEDS FROM OPERATIONS 8.

CERBRERE

2024
—ENEF
HK$'000
Fi8xT

Gross proceeds from disposal of
financial assets at FVTPL

Dividend income from financial assets
at FVTPL

HEZ IR EBEFABE 2SR
BEZFISFARE
BAREFABRBEZEREE

Z BB A 328

9. OTHER INCOME

9. HUA

2024
—EMEF
HK$'000
o FAET

Bank interest income

RITH B A

Sundry income FETEA
10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 10. Httzm REE
2024
—EMF
HK$'000
T8
Exchange (loss)/gain fE 5 (&18),/ e
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, TEYE BMEMEHZ
plant and equipment W, (E#E)
Write back of accruals BEETEA
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2023
—E-=F
HK$'000
FAET

71,534

220

71,754

2023
—E-=F
HK$'000

63

63

2023
—E-=F
HK$'000
FAEIT




11.

12.

13.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's principal activity is investment in equity and debt
instruments. For the purpose of resources allocation and
assessment of performance, the management regularly
reviews and manages the Group’s investments on a portfolio
basis. Information is regularly provided to the management
and mainly includes fair value of respective investees and the
related investment income. Therefore, no segment
information is presented other than entity-wide disclosures.

The Group's revenue is generated from operations in Hong

Kong. The Group’s non-current assets (excluding financial
assets at FVTPL) are located in Hong Kong.

FINANCE COSTS

11.

12.

7 HPE
AEEZIZEBKEHRBRENKRARE
BTR -BRERNPERFERREAME - &
EEREAELETHERANEEAERY
BRE EHREEEREZENIERR
BRREHRZ AR BERBEBRERA -
Hit BABREEERERETRESN
I 8 2 5|75 5B EHY -

AEEZBDZREBRELEE -AEHE
FRBEE (HERAAEFABSE 2 SRE
BRON) BN EE -

Z
3

BE KA

2024 2023
—ENEF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiBxT FAT

Interest on secured bank loan

BHEMRITERZHE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is not subject to any taxation under the jurisdiction
of the Bermuda during the year (2023: Nil).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was required since
the Group had no estimated assessable profit for the year
(2023: Nil).

Under the two-tiered Profits Tax regime, Profits Tax rate for
the first HK$2 million of assessable profits of the qualifying
Group entity established in Hong Kong will be taxed at
8.25% (2023: 8.25%), and profits above that amount will be
subject to the tax rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%). The profits
of the Group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered Profits
Tax rate regime will continue to be taxed at a rate of 16.5%
(2023: 16.5%).

13.

FrBFHAxX
AEBRFANHERMNBREREZERZ
TEBE(ZE_ZF ) o

BN ASEENFALEMEFHEFTEN - 8
BARETENEHTREB (T _=4F:
&) -

BEMEBRRS - REBKY 2EERE
% & 88 & 2,000,0007 T BT & 7 2§15
MR R8.25% (ZE-=4:8.25%) °
WL SR 2 mAgIR16.5% (2T ==
F 16.5%) CHERR - THAFESHM
RHIERZEEER & F K EER16.5%
ZEZ=F 1 16.5%) 2 TRER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M BRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 2 — T — &+ _—_A =+ —HILFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The reconciliation between income tax expense and product
of loss before tax multiplied by the applicable tax rates is as

follows:

13. FrS®iRx ()

ZHEERIT ¢

Loss before tax

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
16.5% (2023: 16.5%)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable
Tax effect of expenses that are
not deductible
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

B T AT &S 18

BEBREHRI65% (T =4
16.5%) 2 MEFHE 2 HIIA
BERMBAZ G E
TSR BB E

AERNBABBZREEE

PrEmAX BERABRTERRE ZE

Tax effect of temporary differences
not recognised

PS5 7 2

Income tax expense

AEREREZRIMBTE

2024 2023
—ENEF —E-=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#&x FATT
(21,598) (6,311)
(1,041)

(47)

385

662

41

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$506,893,000 (2023:
HK$504,646,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax assets have been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The estimated tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$4,631,000 (2023:
HK$4,912,000). No deferred tax asset was recognised as it
was not probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.
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14. LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF 14, KA RIEE A EEER
THE COMPANY

The Group's loss for the year attributable to owners of the REEB AR HEEAEBLHEEZERIE
Company is stated after charging the following: MK THIEEESE
2024 2023
—E-ME TEC=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T8 FAT
Auditors’ remuneration Z B B 2
- Audit services — FBZRT 290
— Non-audit services — EEZRE 41
Depreciation e 550
Donation B 45
Investment management fees (Note) KREEBRE(KT) 308
Custody services fees (Note) SERBE (HiE) 42
Note: They were de minimis continuing connected transactions of Ffat - #%Z1EB A LMHRAFE14A.73NET
the Company under Rule 14A.73(1) of the Listing Rules. RARFERIERE KT 2 HEMRER
% °
15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 15. BERAMX
2024 2023
—EMmE = Sl =
HK$'000 HK$'000
T8 FAT
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e TEAL R ERL 12,364
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R K4E R 51 21 2% 200
12,564
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M BRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 2 — T — &+ _—_A =+ —HILFE

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 15. EEEFBX (&)
Five highest paid individuals EREEHFAL
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year FAREELR&EeFATHAEME (Z
included two (2023: two) directors whose emoluments are T-=F WME)ARBEE HEIZNESNM
reflected in the analysis presented in note 16. The HI6 2z oA R A T =R (ZF
emoluments of the remaining three (2023: three) individuals TEZEF ZZR)ALTZENEHANWOT ¢

are set out below:

2024 2023

—ENEF —E-=fF

HK$°000 HK$'000

TET T

Basic salaries and allowances EXRFH e KRM 6,497
Discretionary bonus 1B TEAL -
Retirement benefit scheme contributions & K38 | 5 2] 4 5% 48

3,179 6,545

The emoluments fell within the following bands: e BRIATEE :

Number of individuals

A B
2024 2023
—E_NF —E-=4F
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 T ITE 1,000,000 7T 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7Tt £2,500,0007% 7T 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7t £4,000,0007 7T 1
3
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16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 16. EERA K FIZF

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments (a) EERTHHEAZM
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the RIEER EmRA R ARG TE 2
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, disclosed BE-_Z-_NFN-_ZT-_=F+_-A
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the T BUEFECZESERITHBES
Companies Ordinance, is set out below: Ban T

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

RRARFLIANELIRU L ESRHCEATRYME

Employer's contribution
to a retirement
Fees Salaries and allowances benefit scheme Total
#e HeR2s RIVENHE 2 BEGR At

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
CEIMF el CECNF et 2o et —ECMF e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEx TiL TAT ThL TER T TET TETL

Chairman and Non-executive EEREHTES
Director

Lam Man Chan ("Dr. Lam") #3502 ([#E L))

Executive Director HTEE
Lee Kwok Leung ("Mr. Lee”) 2B ([%%4%))

Independent Non-executive U FHTES

Directors
Ng Chi Yeung, Simon RE
Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy Bt
Florence Ng (Note i) RBE (W)
Law So Fun (Note ij Bz5 ()

Chief Executive Officer THas
Yeung Cheuk Kwong (Note i) .2 5¢ (W&ii)

Notes: Btaz
() Resigned on 28 December 2023. () BRZZEZ=F+ZA=+N\HE
£
(i) Appointed on 28 December 2023. (i) MZTEZ=F+_A=-+N\HEZ
£
(i) Retired on 1 November 2023 and no new Chief (i) ER-_ZT-_=%F+—F—HET-
Executive Officer had been appointed up to the date of MBEARFRBBILEWAREENT
this annual report. ABE
TEERE 81 2RARRAR | ZBEZNEFEEFHR 173




NDTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

For the year ended 31 December 2024 2 — T — &+ _—_A =+ —HILFE

B BRERME

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

(Continued)
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the chief

executive officer or any of the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2023: Nil).

Neither the chief executive officer nor any of the
directors waived any emoluments during the year (2023:
Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors of the Company received any

termination benefits during the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the

Company did not pay considerations to any third parties
for making available directors’ services (2023: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, bodies corporate
controlled by and entities connected with such

directors
As at 31 December 2024, there are no loans,

quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of the directors,
their controlled bodies corporate and the directors’
connected entities (2023: None).
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16.

17.

18.

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)
(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements and contracts
Save as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated

financial statements, no other significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company and the
director’'s connected party had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2023: Nil).

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed by the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil), nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period.

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

Basic loss per share

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the loss
for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$21,598,000 (2023: HK$6,311,000) and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
142,891,482 (2023: 141,423,187) in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share
During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, diluted

loss per share was same as the basic loss per share for the
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 as there were no
potential dilutive ordinary shares.

16.

17.

18.

EEEARME (FH)

) EERNXRE RGN
EXAE
Brira S MR E36PT I EE & S -
A G AR SR 6F 1A £ ] B ] 0 488 77 48 )
HMEARS  RHEEHTIARTA
RERZITNITARARREZRE
FHETRETEEIHERBEX
FE(ZT=—=F &) -

BB
ARARRBE-_Z-_NE+-_A=+—H
IEFEATERS S ERZREFARE (=
To=FE) BREBTEERINERE
HIREBET RS -

RARFERAREBRER

BERELXEBE
BREABRNDEALGHEE AEBLF
fEE184921,598,0008 L (Z T — = :
6,311,000 7T) R FRN 2B BT ERERKR
DNAE 19 #142,891,48208 (— & — =4 ¢
141,423,1870%) 51 & -

ERE#EER
HE_ZT-_WEER-_ZT-_=F+-A=+—
BIEFER BRI ELBEIERZE
TER MEHE - E-NFER T -=F
+-AZ+—HLFEzERESEEE
BREKREIEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M BRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #ZE T — WM&+ —_A=+—HIFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. Y% - BMERZE
Office

Leasehold land Leasehold  furniture and Motor
and buildings  improvements fixtures vehicles Yacht Total
AETHRET  HENEEE HOZBRAREE RE i it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
L TAL TEL T TEL L

Cost A

As at 1 January 2023 A S s b 13,257 1,676 606 5,052 490 21,081
Additions RE - - 25 - - 25
Disposals e - - (45) - - (45)
Write off s - - - (3417) - (3.417)

Asat31December2023and ~ WZEZ=#+-fA=+-H
A

1 January 2024 R=F-mE-RB- 13,257 1,676 586 1,635 490 17,644
Disposals e - - 6) (872) - (878)
As at 31 December 2024 R-B-ME+ZA=+-A 13,257 1,676 580 763 490 16,766
Accumulated depreciation and ~ ZHFERFE

impairment
Asat 1 January 2023 \ZE-ZF-F-H 4,463 1,676 562 5,052 490 12,243
Charge for the year Erfk 530 - 20 - - 550
Disposals & - - (26) - - (26)
Wite off s - - - (3.417) - (3417)
Asat31December2023and  W=B-=f+ZfA=+-R

1 January 2024 R=F-m#£-5-H 4,993 1,676 556 1,635 490 9,350
Charge for the year Enmk 530 - 14 - - 544
Disposals e - - 6) (872) - (878)
As at 31 December 2024 R-B-mE+=A=+-H 5,523 1,676 564 763 490 9,016
Carrying amount KaE
As at 31 December 2024 RZB-ME+ZA=+-B 7,734 - 16 - - 7,750
As at 31 December 2023 R-B-=F+-R=1-H 8,264 - 30 - - 8,294
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the leasehold land and RZE_WNER_E_=F+_A=+—
buildings were pledged as security for the Group's bank loan. H HETHREFE TEBEAREEH

RITERZEZRY

176 CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024



20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 200 BAAREBEFFAEBRZEHMEE

2024 2023
—E-mE —EC-=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FEL
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, BEAEETERAE
at fair value BAREAR 20,065 31,342
Analysed as: DR
Current assets MEBEE 11,707 21,976
Non-current assets EMEBEE 8,358 9,366
31,342
Fair values of equity securities listed in Hong Kong are EELTTRAZBSZAARABETERERTS
primarily based on quoted market prices, except for an equity WE - EHRE210FREZ—BEE A
security as disclosed in Note 21(b) that had been suspended “ENMA-—HEEEES ZIRAE %K’JF
from trading since 2 April 2024. For valuation detail of this Gh e BB IBIRE ZHEFNS  S28M
investment, please refer to Note 7(c). F¥7(c) °
As at 31 December 2024, an amount of approximately N-_E-_NWE+-_A=+—H ' —E%D
HK$8,358,000 (2023: HK$9,366,000) was classified as 8,358,000/ 7T (— & = =4 : 9,366,000/5
non-current assets as the management of the Group expected IT) Z‘f%ﬁ%ﬁ’\*ﬁﬁ#m@ﬁF - JREE R
that such amount might not be realised within twelve months SEEEEENZeETENmERE T =
after the reporting period. B A RNEIR -
THEER 81 emMERRAR | ZEBEZNEEHK 177




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M BRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 2 — T — &+ _—_A =+ —HILFE

21. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY 21, REEREZEFEREZER
THE GROUP
Particulars of top ten investments held by the Group as at 31 B FHEAE21 120V EEEAREEN -
December 2024 and 2023 disclosed pursuant to the Listing E-MER-E-—F+-_A=+—B#
Rule 21.12(1) are as follows: YL ABE Y ERNT
2024 —B-QmEF
CEN
investment
attributable
Net assets to the
Nature of attributable Invested Fair value Carrying Dividend Dividend ~ Group's total
Name of investment [TTHNTSI Interest held to the Group amount  (losses)/gains amount received cover assets
RENFER
. K DA HEERL
RELH EHME s EEESE REE (FR)/ k& REE  Bhke  REnE Bt

(%) HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOO (%) (%)
i TR T#T TR TR

Financial assets at FVTPL

REREN FE 22 BEE

Listed equity investments

LHRAR]

China Oriented International Holdings Limited Notea I 19877 12,700 (4342
("China Oriented")

ReRERERBRAR (A9 ]) i

Allegro Culture Note b ! 4,495 (2,917)

REXL Hith

Sky Blue 11 Company Limited ("Sky Blue 11") Note ¢ | 2,200 (352)

RERI1ERAH ([RER1)) it

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited Note d 1,505 (159)
(*Chow Tai Fook) - )

BAEREEEARAD (BAR] fiitd

Longfor Group Holdings Limited (“Longfor Group”) ~ Aotee 0.0007 (44)

ENEEARARAR (RHEE)) fiite

Xiaomi Corporation ("Xiaomi") Note f 0.0002 193

PREE (%) B

China Life Insurance Company Limited (" China Life") ~ Moteg 0.0002 267

REARRBROERAA (AR Wity

China Mabile Limited ("China Mobile") Note h 0.0001 134

REBHERLA (T3] Hiith

HSBC Holdings plc (“HSBC") Note/ 0.0001 105

ELRRARLA(ES]) i

Alibaba Group Holding Limited (" Alibaba Group”) — Aote/ 0.0001

WECEEEARARAT(MECERE)) Hi

26,631 (7,083)
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21.

PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY

21, REBRBEZ2ETERECEHR

THE GROUP (CONTINUED) (48)
2023 —_F-=
Percentage of
investment
attributable
Net assets tothe
Nature of attributable Invested Fair value Carrying Dividend Dividend ~ Group's total
Name of investment business  Interest held to the Group amount  (losses)/gains amount received cover assets
&
#rgs
) » \¢%E ) ) ﬂﬁ@ hEE
RELR EBtE fiskn EHEERD REE (BB)/h& FmE  B4RE RERE  AEESR
(%) HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 (%) (%)
Tén Tén Thn TR Thn
Financial assets at FUTPL
BAREH BRlt8EE
Listed equity investments
LhgAkE
China Oriented Note a 10.50 21,820 12,700 (3.334) 9,366 - N/A 1782
A Hita TER
Allegro Culture Note b 349 9,930 4,495 2,825 7320 - N/A 13.93
EELL Hitb MER
KNT Holdings Limited 1.28 740 5,020 (970) 4,050 - N/A 0n
FERRERLE MER
JTF International Holdings Limited 0.76 3617 4,880 (968) 3912 - N/A 744
SRERRERERAR AER
Okura Holdings Limited 0n 2,678 2,805 (892) 1913 - N/A 364
Okura Holdings Limited il
ID.com Inc. 0.0003 837 1,955 (776) 1179 25 092 224
PREERNARDE
Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing Limited 0.0003 162 1389 (317) 1072 48 3.26 2.04
BERSREEHARLA
PT International Development Corporation Limited 0.49 3,542 2,936 (1,879) 1,057 - N/A 201
REARIRAEERAR AER
Xiaomi Note f 0.0002 431 1877 (941) 936 - N/A 1.78
I b T
Alibaba Group Note j 0.00002 210 366 12 3 - N/A 072
MEELLE Vi) MER
38423 (7,240) 31,183 73

FEER 81 RMBMRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HREMBHRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2024 i Z — T —ME+ A=+ —HILFE

21. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY
THE GROUP (CONTINUED)
A brief description of the business and financial information
of the investee companies, based on their published annual
report, interim reports, quarterly report and results
announcements, is as follows:

(a) China Oriented

China Oriented was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1871.HK). China Oriented and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
driving training services in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC"). For the six months ended 30 June 2024,
the unaudited consolidated loss attributable to owners
of China Oriented was approximately Renminbi (“RMB")
2.3 million and its unaudited consolidated equity
attributable to owners of China Oriented was
approximately RMB192.8 million.

(b) Allegro Culture

Allegro Culture was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and continued in Bermuda with limited liability and its
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 550.HK). Allegro Culture and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
advertising services, sales of medical and health products,
provision of E-commerce services and investment
holding. For the six months ended 30 June 2023, the
unaudited consolidated loss attributable to equity
shareholders of Allegro Culture was approximately
HK$9.6 million and its unaudited consolidated equity
attributable to shareholders of Allegro Culture was
approximately HK$285.7 million.

Due to the delay in publication of the 2023 annual
results and the dispatch of the 2023 annual report,
trading in the shares of Allego Culture on the Stock
Exchange has been suspended since 9:00 a.m. on
Tuesday, 2 April 2024.
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21. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY
THE GROUP (CONTINUED)

(c)

Sky Blue 11

Sky Blue 11 was incorporated in Bermuda limited
liability and its shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1010.HK). Sky Blue 11
and its subsidiaries were principally engaged in (i) the
design and sales of integrated circuits and
semi-conductor parts, (ii) executive jet management
services, and (iii) manufacturing and sales of yachts and
other yacht related businesses. For the six months
ended 30 June 2024, the unaudited consolidated loss
attributable to owners of Sky Blue 11 was approximately
HK$24.1 million and its unaudited consolidated equity
attributable to owners of Sky Blue 11 was approximately
HK$10.8 million.

Chow Tai Fook

Chow Tai Fook was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1929.HK). Chow Tai Fook and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the business of
manufacturing and selling of jewellery products,
including gem-set, platinum and k-gold jewellery and
gold jewellery and products, as well as the distribution
of various watch brands. For the six months ended 30
September 2024, the unaudited consolidated profit
attributable to shareholders of Chow Tai Fook was
approximately HK$2.5 billion and its unaudited
consolidated equity attributable to shareholders of
Chow Tai Fook was approximately HK$25.3 billion.

f%%ﬁZiE?ﬁﬁZﬁﬂ
&

(c)

AEEN
KERNA—HEAEREZIMALN
BERAT  HROEBIAMER LT
(B2 5% - 1010.HK) - RER11K&
EIBHFA?IE&E% EREE RF
ERTHRTTREE  (DLARKE
Iiﬁiﬁ“ M (ingd i & sEE i fE 2 EAth
PBREEEAER HE T _WFXA
=+HIENEAR RER1ESARE
HREEZEE BB /%24,100,000
BT MAERIIEA ABEREE
Zir & #a A%10,800,0008 7T ©

BAXE
ARBEEREHSFMAL ER
MEBZFER LM (RHRKE:
1929.HK) - A RE R HEWE AR E*
TRELEFMHEHELKBEER (BREK
EZf NeRKEEHNESEN
MEM) UNEDETRMERER -
HEZZ-_MWFALA=+THILAE
A ABAEREEEREEZGES G
# & 492,500,000,00058 7t M & K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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21.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 2 — T — &+ _—_A =+ —HILFE

PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY
THE GROUP (CONTINUED)

(e)

182 CHINA CASTSON 81 FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED |

Longfor Group

Longfor Group was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0960.HK). Longfor Group and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the property
development, commercial investment, asset
management, property management and smart
construction. For the six months ended 30 June 2024,
the unaudited consolidated profit attributable to
owners of Longfor Group was approximately RMB5.9
billion and its unaudited consolidated equity
attributable to owners of Longfor Group was
approximately RMB157.5 billion.

Xiaomi

Xiaomi was incorporated in Cayman Islands and its
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1810.HK). Xiaomi and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the development
and sales of smartphones, internet of things and
lifestyle products, provision of internet services and
investments holding in the PRC and other countries or
regions. For the year ended 31 December 2024, the
audited consolidated profit attributable to owners of
Xiaomi was approximately RMB23.7 billion and its
audited consolidated equity attributable to owners of
Xiaomi was approximately RMB188.7 billion.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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21.

PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY
THE GROUP (CONTINUED)

(9)

China Life

China Life was incorporated in the PRC and its shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 2628.HK). China Life and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the underwriting of life,
health, accident and other types of personal insurance
business; reinsurance business for personal insurance;
fund management business permitted by national laws
and regulations or approved by the State Council of the
PRC. For the nine months ended 30 September 2024,
the unaudited consolidated profit attributable to equity
holders of China Life was approximately RMB104.5
billion and its unaudited consolidated equity
attributable to equity holders of China Life was
approximately RMB566.7 billion.

China Mobile

China Mobile was incorporated in the Hong Kong and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0941.HK). China Mobile and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
telecommunications and information related services in
the mainland of China and in Hong Kong. For the year
ended 31 December 2024, the audited consolidated
profit attributable to equity shareholders of China
Mobile was approximately RMB138.4 billion and its
audited consolidated equity attributable to equity
shareholders of China Mobile was approximately
RMB1,392.0 billion.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 2 — T — &+ _—_A =+ —HILFE

21.

B F% ¥R 3R B R

PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY
THE GROUP (CONTINUED)

(i)

HSBC

HSBC was incorporated in England and Wales and its
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0005. HK). HSBC and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
banking services. For the year ended 31 December
2024, the audited consolidated profit attributable to
ordinary shareholders of HSBC was approximately
United States dollars (“US$") 22.9 billion and its
audited consolidated equity attributable to ordinary
shareholders of HSBC was approximately US$184.9
billion.

Alibaba Group

Alibaba Group was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 9988.HK). Alibaba Group and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in core commerce,
cloud computing, digital media and entertainment, and
innovation initiatives. For the nine months ended 31
December 2024, the unaudited consolidated net income
attributable to the ordinary shareholders was
approximately RMB117.1 billion and its unaudited
consolidated total shareholders’
approximately RMB1,001.1 billion.

equity was
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22. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

22. R—HEBE LT 2R

2024
—F-MF
HK$’000
FET

Unlisted investment, at cost (Note a)

Share of post-acquisition losses and other
comprehensive income, net of dividends
received

Impairment loss (Note b)

FLEMERE  WRA (K ita)

2023

HK$'000
THET

9,000

DEREEREE R E M2

il aEE o

R (A 7Eb)

(4,530)
(4,470)

Notes:

(@)  The amount represented acquisition cost of 30% shareholding
in Superb Kingdom Limited (“SKL") including a goodwill of
HK$4,613,000 arising from acquisition in Year 2016.

(b)  The amount represented the impairment loss recognised in
prior years for the equity share investments in SKL.

Details of the Group’s associate as at 31
2023 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

December 2024 and

Issued and paid up

(a) ZeBEEBKELBEARAR([HBE])30%
BEZKA  BER-_Z—NFRKEM
EHEZRE4,613,0008 7T ©

(b) ZeBEEANBEFERBEREREM
R ZMERE -

RZEZOFR_T_=F+=A=+—
B AEEZBEABFBET

Percentage of ownership
interest/voting

Name registration capital power/profit sharing Principal activities
SRR RS RIRE
Bl E i 3t B4 BRTRAZRA SHBARZE A EFEXRH
2024 2023
et SN T — 4
SKL Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 30% 30%  Sale of LED lighting
products
HBE =& 100f% & i@ iz 30% 30% SHELEDRAAEM
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23. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND . HttEWRTE - AN RIERRE
DEPOSITS
2024 2023
—EMF T =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T FAT
Other receivables and deposits HAn e IB RiE & 67
Prepayments TE T 3IE 678
745
24. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 24, RITRBEHE
Bank and cash balances of the Group comprised bank NEFZIET &Eﬁfi\ ERBEANEFEER
balances, cash and short-term bank deposits with an original ZiRTES ReMRIBEEA=ZEA %
maturity of three months or less held by the Group. AR Z 5 BRSRIT 3K o
The bank and cash balances were denominated in the RIS ERATHEBE
following currencies:
2024 2023
—EMF —EC-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T FAET
HK$ BT 12,174
RMB AR 3
The conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to A REE BHNE 8 rh B COME B IR (551
the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and K(GEE - EERNEESERTIRRE -

Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.
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25. SHARE CAPITAL

Number of shares Amount

K388 &H
'000 HK$’000
T Fign

Authorised: JEE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREME0.0VEIL @Ak 20,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRERE :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREEONE L LB
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 HR-_ZE-_=F—HF—H "
and 1 January 2024 T =F+-_A=+—-HRK
—E-mME—-HA—H 141,423 1,414
Issue of shares upon placing (Note) A EmaETRD (M) 28,284 283
At 31 December 2024 RZZB-_ME+-_A=+—H 169,707 1,697
Note: The placing of 28,284,000 shares was completed on 13 Wt ARalRZZEZMF+=A+=AREAR
December 2024 in accordance with the terms and conditions HA-Z_NFE+—A-+AHBZEER
of the placing agreement dated 25 November 2024 at the EHBERRGS  LER01S3BITZE
price of HK$0.153 per share. The net proceeds from the & TR B 28,284, 00008 f& 15 < MR FTA
placing received by the Company, after deducting all related HEKA - B2A - X RELE  KNAQF
costs, fees, expenses and commission, are approximately HK$4 U B fic 5 FT 13 378 % 88 494,000,000 7T ©
million.
Regarding capital risk management, the Group’s objectives BEAERESENS  AL£EY B IEAR
are to safeguard the ability to continue as a going concern in BBy B ARDERER
order to provide returns for stakeholders and to maintain an W REEBSEEAER BB AR
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The I o BEBS S K B 1L 4 T MRS R o
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group 4 ok SRS R BR K - 7R AR B ] 4k S
may adjust the amounts of dividends paid to shareholders, FREER Y REL%E  MREEEEEA
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets BATH IR SN E S I o
to reduce debt.
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25.

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors its
capital structure primarily on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as debt divided by total equity. Debt is
calculated as “borrowing” (representing secured bank loan
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position).
Total capital is calculated as “total equity”, as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The gearing
ratios as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 were as follows:

25. B (48)

AEBREMAEARRAKEZENELRS
B REREREREE T H - X
REBRNGERASE - BB DEANME
B (MR EMBRRBEM T2 BEAR
TER) - BERTE BRA BB ®
EA Rzl RZE_NFR=F
=+ A=+ BZEXREBAEKLERN

Borrowing BE
Total equity Mt
Gearing ratio BERBELE

T~

2024 2023

—ENE — o=
HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti&x FHET
597
49,304
1.21%

The only externally imposed capital requirements for the
Group is in order to maintain its listing on the Stock
Exchange it has to have a public float of at least 25% of the
shares.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, the 25% threshold of public float should be
complied with throughout the year.
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26. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 26.

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
Statement of financial position of the Company

(a)

;‘;’D\ﬁ ZHMBRABR R EER

(a) A2 FZ#BIRRH=E

As at 31 December

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Financial assets at FVTPL

Other receivables, prepayments
and deposits

Bank and cash balances

Current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Accruals

Total current liabilities

Net current assets

Net assets

m+=—H=+—H
2024 2023
—ENF —E =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#ExT FAET
EREBEE
Y - BB MR iE 21
RETBE AR ZRE 378
399
REEE
JE Uk B /B A R ZR B - -
BARBEFABRZZEMEE 11,707 21,976
H b EYGRTE « FENRIE
K& 978 690
RITRIBEEH 4,176 11,761
16,861 34,427
REAE
JE B B A B FRIR 434 915
BRI R X 1,183 2,637
mEBEAE 1,617 3,552
mBEERE 15,244 30,875
BEEFE 15,632 31,274

TEER 81 2@MABRAT
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26. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 26.

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company
(Continued)

%’AﬂZEﬂ%Hﬁiﬂiﬁ%&ﬁﬁ@
RAZ W HARR TR (F)

A
5
rd

As at 31 December
BR+=—HA=+—H
2024 2023
—E-@mE TE-=F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
i3 T T

Equity R

Equity attributable to owners ZN/NSIEZ 2 S DN )
of the Company 7

Share capital [N

Reserves ]

Total equity A

1,414

27 29,860

31,274

Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2025
and signed on its behalf by:

Lam Man Chan

PRI #5%
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26. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE  26. AR Z BB ABE R EES
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) ) (4E)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) AR ZFEERE

Share Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
13 a 8 BABR RS |zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Tiégx TiEx TEx TEx

As at 1 January 2023 RZZE-=F—H—H 7,725 394,561 (365,966) 36,320

Total comprehensive loss and changes € 2 [ 12 8% &
in equity for the year i B E)

e

- - (6,460) (6,460)

As at 31 December 2023 and N-E-=%+_H
1 January 2024 [ phenll = - = |
¥—H—H 394,561 (372,426) 29,860

Issue of shares upon placing of shares [E# 77 % {7 B &

(Note 25) BTG (475725) = 3,873
Total comprehensive loss for the year %2 & &8 8% (19,798) (19,798)
Changes in equity for the year FEERE (19,798) (15,925)
As at 31 December 2024 RZE-_NF+=-A

=+—H 394,561 (392,224)
27. RESERVES 27, R
(@) Group () REH
The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements NEE T BESERESH NG
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of AERREMEERSE N REARE
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and KBERE R o
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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27. RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

()

(i)

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from
the issue of shares at a price in excess of their par
value per share. The application of share premium
account is governed by Section 40 of the
Companies Act of Bermuda.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company mainly
represents (1) accumulated amounts transferred
from share premium account in previous years and
(2) the total amounts of credit transfer after
capital reorganisation.

28. SECURED BANK LOAN

The analysis of the repayment schedule of secured bank loan

is as follows:

27. f#1E (&)
b) EEzZMHEERAZRE
(i) RHBE
RR15 % BIE AR LRI SREE
2 EBBBITRIDETE S 2 %18 -
BRDHEE ERTERE(A
FE) LA E 8 o

(i) BARER
KRB ZHABHEBIENB
EFEEaBRMEER RS
8 RQBRAERRER LR
HE -

28. BIEHEITER
BEABTER Y ERBMESRNOT :

2024 2023

—EMEF —E-=4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

T AT

Within one year —F R 550
More than one year, but not —FU EEAEBBMRF

exceeding two years 47

IIIII!I 597

The 10-year instalment loan contains a repayment on

demand clause which is repayable on demand and has been

secured by a mortgage over the Group’s office premise (Note
19), bearing interest at 2.5% (2023: 2.5%) below the
prevailing Hong Kong dollar prime rate per annum.
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

2022 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 27 June 2022,
the Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2022
Scheme™) for the primary purpose to recognising and
acknowledging the contributions the eligible participants had
or may have made to the Group. Eligible participants include
the full-time and part-time employees, executives, officers,
directors (including executive directors and non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and other
non-employee participants (as defined in the 2022 Scheme).
Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the 2022 Scheme
will remain valid for a period of 10 years from the date of its
adoption.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the 2022 Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual in any one year is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors in excess
of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a value in
excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

29.

B 044 =
—EC—FBERESSE
BERA-_Z-_—_FXA-t++RBENH—

HERBRRR  ARBRM BB RE
AE(ZT-—F58])  T2ENESR

MERAAERSEEDHARCHAR
EELMER - B ER2EEBREARR
HEEFAMBRARNZRBRFRES 17
HAR 2AME EX(BEATESEK
FUTEF) REMFREEZEE (EER
TECFHE) c RFFREMREEHNK
i  BAIZTE__FiEHaEEMA

HIEET T FHIRANER B -

EREARNRBRRELAERN  BE-F
T ZFRTEINI AR 2 BEARERTS R 2 K
MEE  THBAARAREMNKEZE
BITRMD210% c EARKEARRNEIREEL
BERT - RER —FHARERAER AL
ARERECEREMSIRZBRGEE T
BRBARRAREMEIR 22 EHTRG
1% ° WM EZRRKBILIERITEZR L
BEARRPEA0.1% R EEFRES,000,000
BB - BRLEANRRELE o
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

2022 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Options granted must be taken up on or before the relevant
acceptance date, upon payment of HK$1.00 for the options
granted. Options may be exercised at any time from the date
of grant of the share option to a period to be notified by the
board of directors to each grantee at the time of making
such offer, which shall not expire later than 10 years from
the date of grant.

The exercise price is determined by the board of directors at
its absolute discretion and will not be less than the higher of
(a) the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant; (b) the average closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal
value of a share of the Company on the date of grant.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no
share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed.
There were no share options outstanding as at 31 December
2024 and 2023.
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R4S =(F)
—E__FEREE (E)
¥Ry BRI B R AE R B B sk 2 Al
BN - ARG A RN B AR AE 11,008 T
T EIE o IR AR S I B AR
ZEEERNZEENEAESRBEAY
HARS AU BE RS 7715 - BUHA B AR B e
HAER -

TEEREFSZRNBETE  XHTE
RIATESE : (QARRRORE L A
BB FrEm 8 ARERMBUHE :
(O)RAFROHRERR L H A AEEE
BB RMEm 2 EARERARFHI
ME: RORRAE—BREOREHBERZ
18 -

HEZZT-_NFR-ZZT_=F+=ZA=+—
HIEFEAR - WHEERERD - BITE - #§
SHEEAR R E_MER_T_=%F
+ZA=+—8  WEHRTEZERE-



30.

31.

32.

PARTICULARS OF SIGNIFICANT SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the significant subsidiaries of the Company as
at 31 December 2024 and 2023 were as follows:

Principal country of operation/

30 FEMBLARZHE
RZE-_NFR-_FE-_=ZF+=-_A=1+—
B AARETEMBARIZFEBOT

Country of incorporation/ Particular of issued Percentage of ownership interest/  Principal
Name of subsidiary ~ Kind of legal entity share capital voting power/profit sharing activities
IBEEER RRALER/ WERREDS ®AE/
(] NS FREREY BERTRAHE MESRZES FERY
Indirectly held
BERE
2024 2023
—R-RF “TC=f
Greater Sino Ventures — Hong Kong/British Virgin Islands/ 2,100,000 ordinary 100%  Investment holding
Limited Limited liability company shares of US$1 each
BEARARAT EB/ERELME/BRECRAT 2,100,000 BREEIZFTL 100%  RERK
EgEli
Nicefield Asia Limited ~ Hong Kong/Hong Kong/Limited 15,000,000 ordinary shares 100%  Asset holding
liability company
NBEEHERAA BR/BE/BRRLELT 15,000,001 & % 100% #HEEE

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, the office premise with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$7,734,000 (2023:
HK$8,264,000) was pledged as security for an instalment
bank loan.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Hong Kong retirement scheme

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group joined the
mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for
all the eligible employees of the Group in Hong Kong.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are required to
contribute 5% of their monthly salaries up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 and they can choose to make additional
contributions. The employer’s monthly contributions are
calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries up to a
maximum of HK$1,500. The employees are entitled to 100%
of the employer’s mandatory contribution upon their
retirement at the age of 65, death or total incapacity.

31 EEER
R-ZE-_NF+_-_A=+—H8 ' EEEY
7,734,000 7T (—F = =4 : 8,264,000/5
L) ZIMAEYMED TET - tEA—ESH
IRITERZIERY -

32. RAREREE
EBRAKGTE
BE-ZETEF+-_A AR A5£EAHE
REBZFBEEREBMAZS AR
ST & ([RESEE]) -

RERESTE  REVAREAH Z5%
(LEBR1,500/8 70) fE 50 - WAl BB /ED
BIMER -BECBAEFIREERFZ
5% (_LEPR1,500% ) 5T & © /& E R FE6S
PRRRFER - BT 2B ARTIERE M -
A ZH100%EEH 258 HIH R -
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32.

33.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
Hong Kong retirement scheme (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the
Group had no forfeited contributions under the MPF Scheme
which might be used by the Group to reduce the existing
level of contributions. There were no such forfeited
contributions available as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

The total cost charged to consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of approximately
HK$167,000 (2023: HK$200,000) represented contributions
payable to this scheme by the Group in respect of the current
accounting year.

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

The calculation of the net asset value per share at the end of
the reporting period is based on the Group’s net assets of
approximately HK$31,862,000 (2023: HK$49,304,000) and
the number of ordinary shares of 169,707,187 (2023:
141,423,187) in issue as at that date.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

32.

33.

RARBHNEME (E)

EBRAE (F)

BE-T-_MER-F_=Ft-A=+—
AL  AEERRESHBETLED
R R A R R B R AR IR A
BKF -R-B-MFR-F-=F+-
A=+— B @M Rz BB -

RGEEBEEMHEMEEBER I HEZHRA
#EEAI167,00058 T (ZE =4 : 200,000

B ERARBERAGHFERE L EIX
1#21 R e
BREEFE

RREPRZBREEFENBRERZBZ
ANRABFEFEH31,862,0008 T (T ==
F 49,304,000/ 7T) RE#HITERKREE
169, 707 187 (ZZ = =4 : 141,423,187
&) &t E



34.

35.

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

34.

REBRERERKE
METBHFELEEEZHER

TRHAVNAEBERETPFELRABZE
B ERRENIRCEYH BELTHE
EZEfE RREVEIXARAKRSRER
ARERAREREXRTOERBRELRD
ReEREZBE-

Secured bank loan

At the beginning of year F4
Cash flows RERE
At the end of year FR

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any

significant contingent liabilities (2023: Nil).

35.

HIERBTER
2024 2023
—EME —E-=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FE T
1,130
(533)
597

RAREE

RZZE-_MF+-_A=+—HB XEEY
BEFNEASIARAB(ZTE_=F: &) -
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36. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 36. EXEABALIREREAERS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(a) Transactions with related parties and connected (a)

persons
In addition to those related party transactions and

balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with its related parties and connected
persons during the year:

BEEBATIRBEALZRS

BRRGAHBEREL BN RS
M A T2 5 R Ba4 AL
RS R A R BB A
TR :

2024 2023
—E-NEF B =4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Investment management fees paid and ENEENKEERE :

payable to:
Success Advance Investments Limited BREEAR AR (&R
(“Success Advance”) (Note (i): (B7aEa) 308
Employee benefits expense paid and ENREMEERAMAS
payable to:
Ting Lai Ling (Note (i) TR (i) 2,087
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36. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Compensation of key management personnel

(b)

The k

ey management personnel of the Group comprise

all directors and the chief executive officer. Details of

their emoluments are disclosed below:

EXREABALIRZRBERS

(&)

b) FEEEER S HRMH
AEBTEEREEXNEREMAES

RITHEE - REZMEFBREN

T

Fees

Salaries and allowances
Contributions to retirement

Ha MR

benefit schemes

B4R &R

2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiBx FAIT
2,204

573 4,279

18 33

Notes:

Pursuant to Rule 14A.08 of the Listing Rules, any
investment manager, investment adviser or custodian (or
any connected person thereof) is regarded as a
connected person. Success Advance has been appointed
as the Company’s new investment manager with effect
from 25 January 2021. Mr. Lee, Executive Director of the
Company, is one of the responsible officers of Success
Advance.

Ms. Ting Lai Ling, wife of Dr. Lam, acted as the Project
and Administration General Manager of the Company
and received employee benefits in exchange for services
rendered to the Company.

37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The net gains on financial assets at FVTPL as at 31 December

2024 to the date of approval of these consolidated financial

statements amounted to approximately HK$2.2 million.

37.

Hite -

() MRIELWHBFEI14A.081 - £
WELE REBBHTE A (K
BEZAMNBEAL) HERABH
BAL -BEEA-_ZE=-_—F—A
Tt+RAREZEARRRHEE
KR - ARBIMTESTETAEREE
BEP—FBEAB -

(i) MELZZETBERLIEETARF
ZHEBRITHAEKRE  THRAAN
AREREZRBWERREERF -

REHREE

R-ZE-_NFE+-A=+—BEARGAH
HHEIERHIE  BAREMABEYZ
B ELE E 2 W FEELY 22,200,000 7T ©
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hEF R EE

RESULTS

E

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—ALEE

Loss before tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
ot Sl f Sl — T ——F —F— — T —ZTTF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#&x FATT FAT FAET TAEIT
Br AT ES 18 (21,598) (6,311) (27,991) (9,579) (43,928)
FEfmx - - - - -
KAEHEB AEN
EEEE (21,598) (6,311) (27,991) (9,579) (43,928)
EEREE
As at 31 December
W+=—B=+—H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
ot Sl f —F——F —F——fF —FT-—F —FE-FF
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiBxT FA&TT FABTT FABTT FATT
BEBE 33,098 52,558 60,089 89,467 95,537
ElEmsE (1,236) (3,254) (4,474) (5,938) (10,650)
M 4B R 31,862 49,304 55,615 83,529 84,887
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www.hk0810.com.hk/en/

Unit 18, 9/F, Block B, Focal Industrial Centre,
21 Man Lok Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong

BRNEAMRET 21 RESTETLBEIE 18 E

Tel E 3% : (852) 3589 6710
Fax {22 : (852) 3102 2970
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